MINUTES

AIR QUALITY COUNCIL

January 14, 2004

Department of Environmental Quality

Multipurpose Room 707 N. Robinson

Oklahoma City Oklahoma

Approved April 14, 2004

Notice of Public Meeting  The Air Quality Council convened for its regular meeting at 9:00 a.m. January 14, 2004 in the Multipurpose Room of the Department of Environmental Quality, 707 North Robinson, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.  Notice of the meeting was forwarded to the Office of the Secretary of State giving the date, time, and place of the meeting on October 13, 2003; and agendas were posted on the entrance doors at the DEQ Central Office in Oklahoma City at least twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  

As protocol officer, Ms. Beverly Botchlet-Smith convened the hearings by the Air Quality Council in compliance with the Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act and Title 40 CFR Part 51, and Title 27A, Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 2-5-201 and 2-5-101 - 2-5-118. She entered the Agenda and the Oklahoma Register Notice into the record. Ms. Smith announced that forms were available at the sign-in table for anyone wishing to comment on any of the rules. Ms. Sharon Myers called the meeting to order.  Roll was called and a quorum confirmed.
	MEMBERS PRESENT

David Branecky

Bill Breisch

Gary Kilpatrick

Bob Lynch 

Gary Martin

Sharon Myers

Sandra Rose

Rick Treeman

Joel Wilson

MEMBERS ABSENT

OTHERS PRESENT Sign-in sheet is attached as an official part of these Minutes
	DEQ STAFF PRESENT

Eddie Terrill

Beverly Botchlet-Smith

Scott Thomas

Pam Dizikes

Kendall Cody

Joyce Sheedy

Lisa Donovan

Pat Sullivan

Lynne Moss

Dawson Lasseter

Myrna Bruce


Approval of Minutes   Ms. Myers called for approval of the October 8, 2003 Minutes.  Hearing no discussion, she called for a motion to approve the Minutes as presented.  Mr. Wilson made the motion with Mr. Martin making the second.

	Roll call.

Sandra Rose              Yes

Gary Martin              Yes

Joel Wilson               Yes

Bill Breisch               Yes

Bob Lynch
                Yes
	David Branecky        Yes

Rick Treeman           Yes

Gary Kilpatrick         Yes

Sharon Myers            Yes

                           Motion carried.


Election of Officers   Mr. Branecky moved to retain Ms. Sharon Myers for Chair and Dr. Bob Lynch for Vice-Chair.  The second was made by Mr. Breisch.

	Roll call.

Sandra Rose              Yes

Gary Martin              Yes

Joel Wilson               Yes

Bill Breisch               Yes

Bob Lynch
                Yes


	David Branecky        Yes

Rick Treeman           Yes

Gary Kilpatrick         Yes

Sharon Myers            Yes

                           Motion carried.


OAC 252:100-5 Registration, Emissions Inventory and Annual Operating Fees                   OAC 252:100-7 Permits for Minor Facilities   

Ms. Botchlet-Smith convened the hearings and called upon Dr. Joyce Sheedy for staff presentation. Dr. Sheedy advised that the proposal establishing a new permit exempt facility category was before the Air Quality Council in April, July, and October of 2003 and was continued to January 14, 2004 to allow time to resolve outstanding issues.  She stated that the proposed revision would create a permit exempt facility category for facilities with actual emissions of 40 tons-per-year or less of each regulated air pollutant emitted and with potential emissions less than the threshold levels for PSD and Title V; and that owners and operators of facilities that qualify for this category would not be required to obtain air quality permits, pay annual operating fees, nor be required to submit an annual emission inventory, but would remain subject to all other applicable state and federal air quality rules and regulations. Dr. Sheedy set forth the staff’s recommended changes.  

Dr. Sheedy entered into the record letters of comment received from Trinity Consultants, MOGA, and EPA and heard comments from OIPA, MOGA, Martin Marietta Materials, CC Environmental, and Bob Kellogg.  Dr. Sheedy and Mr. Terrill fielded questions from the Council and from the audience. After discussion, Mr. Branecky made motion to approve the proposal as presented with the additions that were made with the understanding that the DEQ continue to review and fine-tune the rule and bring it before the Council whenever necessary.  Mr. Treeman made the second.

	Roll call.

Sandra Rose              Yes

Gary Martin              Yes

Joel Wilson               Yes

Bill Breisch               Yes

Bob Lynch
                Yes
	David Branecky        Yes

Rick Treeman           Yes

Gary Kilpatrick         Yes

Sharon Myers            Yes

                           Motion carried.


OAC 252:100-13  Open Burning   Ms. Lisa Donovan provided staff’s recommendations stating that the proposed amendments would bring the rule in line with changes in the Oklahoma Clean Air Act and would also address open burning of yard brush. She entered into the record a letter of comments received from EPA.  Comments were received from the Guthrie Fire Department, Guthrie Public Schools, and Bob Kellogg. Mr. Martin made motion to approve with the changes addressed and Mr. Kilpatrick made the second. 

	Roll call.

Sandra Rose              Yes

Gary Martin              Yes

Joel Wilson               Yes

Bill Breisch               Yes

Bob Lynch
                Yes
	David Branecky        Yes

Rick Treeman           Yes

Gary Kilpatrick         Yes

Sharon Myers            Yes

                           Motion carried.


OAC 252:100-29 Control of Fugitive Dust   A third party petition for rulemaking was filed by Pace International Union, Ponca Tribe of Oklahoma, and Concerned Neighbors of Continental Carbon seeking to amend Subchapter 29 by removing the words “visible” and “adjacent” and adding the concept of “credible evidence” as sufficient to determine violation of the rule. Speaking for the petitioners was Mr. Rick Abraham, environmental consultant. Comments were received from Julie Faw Faw, Bud Vance, Todd Carlson, Ralph Mangrum, David Westerman, Wally Shops, Michael Bigheart, Lalit Bhatnagar, CC Environmental, Bruce Evans, Pat Jaynes, and Mike Peters.  Ms. Sullivan entered into the record three letters of comment in addition to the three letters in the Agenda Packet. 

Ms. Pat Sullivan presented staff recommendations and Ms. Lynne Moss provided information regarding the Agency’s program to investigate and resolve citizens’ environmental complaints. Considerable discussion followed and Mr. Terrill addressed issues and concerns that were raised by the Council and the public.  

Mr. Branecky felt that the changes to the rule as presented were not necessary in the state of Oklahoma, therefore moved that Council reject the petitioners’ recommendation for changes and leave the rule as it is currently written.  Mr. Kilpatrick made the second.  

	Roll call.

Sandra Rose              No

Gary Martin              Yes

Joel Wilson               Yes

Bill Breisch               Yes

Bob Lynch
                Yes


	David Branecky        Yes

Rick Treeman           Yes

Gary Kilpatrick         Yes

Sharon Myers            Yes

                           Motion carried.


Division Director’s Report    None

NEW BUSINESS - None

ADJOURNMENT - 1:30 p.m.  Next meeting scheduled for April 14, 2004.
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 1
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 2
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 1

                             PROCEEDINGS

 2

                    MS. MYERS:   Good morning.   I

 3

     would like to call this meeting to order,

 4

     please.   Myrna, are you ready to call roll?

 5

                    MS. BRUCE:   Yes, I am.   I was

 6

     just making sure Jamie was ready over

 7

     there.

 8

               Ms. Rose.

 9

                    MS. ROSE:   Here.

10

                    MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Martin.

11

                    MR. MARTIN:   Here.

12

                    MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

13

                    MR. WILSON:   Here.

14

                    MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

15

                    MR. BREISCH:   Here.

16

                    MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

17

                    DR. LYNCH:   Here.

18

                    MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

19

                    MR. BRANECKY:   Here.

20

                    MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Treeman.

21

                    MR. TREEMAN:   Here.

22

                    MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

23

                    MR. KILPATRICK:   Here.

24

                    MS. BRUCE:   And Ms. Myers.

25
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 1                  MS. MYERS:   Here.   The first item

 2   on the agenda is approval of the Minutes

 3   from the October 2003 meeting.

 4                  MS. BRUCE:   Everyone might have

 5   to pull your mikes a little bit closer.

 6                  MR. WILSON:   Sharon, I'll make a

 7   motion that we approve the Minutes.

 8                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion.   Do

 9   we have a second?

10                  MR. MARTIN:   Second.

11                  MS. MYERS:   Myrna.

12                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Rose.

13                  MS. ROSE:   Yes.

14                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Martin.

15                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.

16                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

17                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

18                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

19                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

20                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

21                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

22                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

23                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

24                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Treeman.

25                  MR. TREEMAN:   Yes.
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 1                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

 2                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

 3                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

 4                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.   The next item

 5   is the election of officers for 2004.   

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   I would like to go

 7   ahead and move that we retain Ms. Myers and

 8   Dr. Lynch as Chairman -- Chairwoman, excuse

 9   me, and Vice-Chair for another year.

10                  MR. WILSON:   David, should we ask

11   them first?

12                  MR. BRANECKY:   No. 

13                  MR. BREISCH:   I'll second that.

14                  MS. MYERS:   Myrna.

15                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Rose.

16                  MS. ROSE:   Yes.

17                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Martin.

18                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.

19                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

20                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

21                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

22                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

23                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

24                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

25                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.
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 1                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

 2                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Treeman.

 3                  MR. TREEMAN:   Yes.

 4                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

 5                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

 6                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

 7                  MS. MYERS:   We'll move into the

 8   public hearing portion of it.   Beverly.

 9                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Good

10   morning, I'm Beverly Botchlet-Smith,

11   Program Manager with the Air Quality

12   Division.   And as such, I'll serve as the

13   Protocol Officer for today's hearing.

14             These hearings will be convened by

15   the Air Quality Council in compliance with

16   the Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act

17   and Title 40 of the Code of Federal

18   Regulations Part 51, as well as the

19   Authority of Title 27A of the Oklahoma

20   Statutes Section 2-2-201, Sections 2-5-101

21   through 2-5-118.

22             These hearings were advertised in

23   the Oklahoma Register for the purpose of

24   receiving comments pertaining to the

25   proposed OAC Title 252 Chapter 100 Rules,
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 1   as listed on the agenda, and will be

 2   entered into each record along with the

 3   Oklahoma Register filing.

 4             If you wish to make a statement,

 5   it's very important you complete the form

 6   at the registration table and you will be

 7   called on at the appropriate time. 

 8             Audience members, please come to the

 9   podium for your comments and please state

10   your name.   Today we have two podiums set

11   up because we have a pretty full house. 

12   There is one in the back center and then

13   one up here by the Council table.

14             At this time, we will proceed with

15   what's marked as Agenda Item No. 5A on the

16   Hearing Agenda, OAC 252:100-5,

17   Registration, Emissions Inventory and

18   Annual Operating Fees and OAC 252:100-7,

19   Permits for Minor Facilities.   

20             We'll call Dr. Joyce Sheedy, who

21   will give the staff position on the

22   proposed rule.

23             For anyone who hasn't gotten an

24   agenda, we have brought some others in and

25   they are on the table at this time, if you
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 1   need one.

 2                  DR. SHEEDY:   Okay.   The

 3   microphone and I will have to come to an

 4   agreement here.

 5             Madam Chair, Members of the Council,

 6   ladies and gentlemen, the proposal to

 7   establish a new permit exempt facility

 8   category was first presented to the Air

 9   Quality Council on April 16, 2003.   The

10   hearing was continued to July 2003 and to

11   October 2003 to allow time for input from a

12   workgroup convened to study the proposed

13   revision.   At the October meeting, the

14   hearing was continued again to January 14,

15   2004, to allow time to resolve outstanding

16   issues.

17             The proposed revision creates a

18   permit exempt facility category for

19   facilities with actual emissions of 40 tons

20   per year or less of each regulated air

21   pollutant emitted and with potential

22   emissions less than the threshold levels

23   for PSD and Title V.   

24             Owners and operators of facilities

25   that qualify for this category will not be
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 1   required to obtain air quality permits,

 2   will not be required to pay annual

 3   operating fees, and will not be required to

 4   submit an annual emission inventory.   These

 5   facilities, however, will remain subject to

 6   all other applicable state and federal air

 7   quality rules and regulations.   

 8             The changes necessary to add the

 9   permit exempt facility category are located

10   in Subchapters 5 and 7.   We believe a

11   permit exempt facility category will reduce

12   the time staff spends on permits for minor

13   facilities without any appreciable

14   lessening of the control of air pollutant

15   emissions.   The proposed revision will also

16   provide relief for owners and operators of

17   those minor facilities that will no longer

18   be required to obtain permits.

19             While we have these sections open,

20   we are proposing to correct some errors in

21   grammar and punctuation, to delete some

22   language that is no longer relevant, to

23   update rule citations, to make some non-

24   substantive formatting changes for

25   uniformity, and some language changes for
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 1   clarity.

 2             Since there are a number of these

 3   nonsubstantive changes, I will not go

 4   through them individually.   If there are

 5   any questions about them, however, I will

 6   be glad to address those at the end of this

 7   presentation.

 8             The substantive revisions to

 9   Subchapter 5 are primarily to exempt

10   facilities from the requirements to submit

11   annual emission inventories and to pay

12   annual operating fees.   We have made the

13   following substantive changes to Subchapter

14   5 since the October 2003 Council meeting.

15             In Section 5-2.1, Emission

16   Inventory, in Subsection (a), Paragraph (3)

17   on page 1, we propose to exempt permit

18   exempt facilities from the requirement to

19   submit an annual emission inventory.

20             Proposed revisions to Subchapter 7

21   since the last meeting -- these changes are

22   primarily to define permit exempt facility

23   and to add this new category to the permit

24   continuum.   We have made the following

25   substantive changes to Subchapter 7.   In
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 1   Section 7-2, requirements for permits for

 2   minor facilities, we added new Subsection

 3   7-2(g) Emission Calculation Methods on page

 4   5.

 5             Paragraph (1) delineates the methods

 6   that may be used in calculating emission

 7   rates for purposes of determining if an Air

 8   Quality Division permit is necessary and,

 9   if so, what type of permit is required.

10             Paragraph (2) contains the criteria

11   that may be used in lieu of calculating

12   regulated air pollutant emission rates, to

13   determine if an oil and gas exploration and

14   production facility or a natural gas

15   compressor facility can be considered a

16   permit exempt facility.

17             We are proposing some changes to the

18   revision as it appears in the Council

19   packet.   Copies of the revised version have

20   been furnished to the Council and are

21   available to the public on the table with

22   the other rule changes.

23             In the new version, except for one

24   deletion, the changes from the version in

25   the Council packet are shaded to make them
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 1   easier to find.

 2             We are proposing one change to

 3   Subchapter 5.   Based on verbal comments

 4   received from industry on January the 8th

 5   and 9th, we propose to delete Subsection 5-

 6   2.1(g) that was on page 3 of the rule in

 7   the packet.   This subsection required

 8   owners or operators of facilities to notify

 9   the DEQ of transfer of ownership or name

10   changes within 10 days of the event. 

11   Industry stated that this 10-day period is

12   too short.   

13             Since this change is not germane to

14   the permit exempt facility revision, we

15   propose to delay its addition to the rule

16   in order to study it further, as far as the

17   timing's concerned.

18             We are proposing several changes to

19   Subchapter 7 based on comments received and

20   additional errors that we have found.

21             We have capitalized the word

22   "federal" in several places for format

23   uniformity.   Those are located in paragraph

24   (B) of the definition of "de minimis

25   facility", in the definition of "hazardous
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 1   air pollutant" in paragraph (G) of the

 2   definition of "permit exempt facility" and

 3   in 7-2(b)(2).   Those, of course, are

 4   nonsubstantive.

 5             Based on verbal comments received

 6   from OIPA on January 9th, we have revised

 7   7-2(g)(2)(A) and (B) on page 5 to clarify

 8   the method that may be used by oil and gas

 9   exploration facilities and compressor

10   facilities to determine permit exempt

11   facility eligibility in lieu of

12   calculations.

13             On page 9, Section 7-18, Operating

14   Permit, in Paragraph (1) of Subsection (c),

15   we propose to replace "will" with "shall"

16   for uniformity.   This change is based on a

17   comment from Mr. Don Whitney of Trinity

18   Consultants.

19             On page 9, also, Section 7-18, we

20   propose to add the tagline "emission tests"

21   to Paragraph (2).   Since Paragraph (1) has

22   a tagline, formatting requires that

23   Paragraph (2) also have a tagline.

24             On page 10, we propose to delete

25   Subsection 7-18(e) in response to a comment
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 1   from Mr. Whitney.   Since the date when all

 2   existing Title V facilities were required

 3   to submit initial Title V permit

 4   applications has passed, this section is no

 5   longer valid.

 6             We have one change that, I'm sorry,

 7   is not on the handout that I gave you

 8   because we just received it very late

 9   yesterday afternoon and this particular one

10   does deserve looking at.   It's on page 5 in

11   7-2(g)(A).   

12             We are adding after maximum

13   "manufacturer's design rated" in front of

14   horsepower to make it clear, to try not to

15   have any loopholes on the horsepower that

16   the engines may have on site.

17             We have received a letter of comment

18   on December 12, 2003, from Don Whitney of

19   Trinity Consultants.   A copy of the letter

20   is in the Council packet and the letter

21   will be made part of the hearing record. 

22             In addition to the comments that

23   resulted in some of the changes just

24   mentioned, Mr. Whitney pointed out that the

25   rewording of (A)(i) of the definition of de
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 1   minimis facility is a significant

 2   tightening of the de minimis facility

 3   exemption and makes the exclusion much more

 4   limited than current interpretation, which

 5   allows other individual activities with

 6   actual emissions less than 5 tons per year

 7   that are not on Appendix H to be conducted

 8   at a de minimis facility.   

 9             The proposed wording would allow

10   such non-listed activities only if the

11   total facility emissions were less than 5

12   tons per year.   We intended, when we first

13   introduced the de minimis facility concept,

14   that all emissions from all emitting units

15   at a facility be counted in determining if

16   a facility is de minimis and the proposed

17   revision merely clarifies this.

18             The inclusion of Appendix H was an

19   attempt to simplify the determination of de

20   minimis facility status for small

21   facilities without expertise in calculating

22   emission rates.   

23             If all the emitting activities at a

24   facility are listed on Appendix H, then the

25   facility may be considered to be de
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 1   minimis.   Otherwise, the facility may be

 2   considered to be de minimis in the total of

 3   all emissions from all the emitting

 4   activities at the facility are less than 5

 5   tons per year of each regulated air

 6   pollutant emitted.   

 7             As a safeguard to ensure that Title

 8   V facilities are not mistakenly identified

 9   as de minimis facilities, total facility

10   emissions must be counted in the same

11   manner that emissions are counted in

12   determining Title V and PSD applicability

13   when determining de minimis facility

14   eligibility.

15             Mr. Whitney pointed out that in

16   keeping with the permit continuum concept,

17   the exclusion for a smaller de minimis

18   facility should be at least as broad as

19   that for a larger permit exempt facility

20   and that as far as NSPS and NESHAP

21   limitations are concerned this is not the

22   case.   He suggested that Paragraph (B) of

23   the definition of de minimis facility be

24   changed to mirror Paragraph (G) of the

25   definition of permit exempt facility that
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 1   only excludes facilities that are subject

 2   to an emission standard, equipment

 3   standard, or work practice standard in NSPS

 4   or NESHAP.   

 5             We don't agree.   It must be kept in

 6   mind that although both permit exempt

 7   facilities and de minimis facilities are

 8   exempted from the requirements to obtain

 9   permits, submit annual emission

10   inventories, and pay annual operating fees,

11   de minimis facilities remain subject to

12   only four air quality rules.

13             Our rule then basically says that de

14   minimis facilities are not subject to NSPS

15   or NESHAP.   If we made the suggested

16   change, there could be a problem if there

17   is a NESHAP or an NSPS requirement other

18   than an emission standard, equipment

19   standard, or work practice standard that

20   applies to a facility that has been

21   designated as de minimis.   This could

22   include such things as recordkeeping,

23   reporting requirements, and notification

24   requirements.   

25             Permit exempt facilities, on the
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 1   other hand, remain subject to all other

 2   applicable state and federal rules and

 3   regulations and standards and requirements,

 4   including NSPS and NESHAP.

 5             Mr. Whitney's remaining comments are

 6   related to Parts 7 and 9 of Subchapter 8,

 7   which contain the NSR program.   These parts

 8   are not being revised at this time.   There

 9   are currently at least two ongoing lawsuits

10   regarding the proposed NSR revision and in

11   one case a portion of the regulation has

12   been stayed.   Our actions with regards to

13   the NSR revisions may be affected by the

14   outcome of these lawsuits.

15             We received a letter of comment from

16   EPA Region 6, dated December 19, 2003,

17   signed by Rick Barrett for David Neleigh. 

18   The letter will be made part of the Council

19   -- of the hearing record and is in the

20   Council packet.   

21             EPA expressed concern that the

22   Technical Support Document does not fully

23   explain how emissions from existing and new

24   facilities that qualify for the proposed

25   permit exempt facility category will not
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 1   cause a violation of the control strategy

 2   or interfere with the maintenance of a

 3   national standard in certain Metropolitan

 4   Statistical Areas (MSA).   

 5             They suggest that since the current

 6   readings obtained from the ozone monitors

 7   located in some of these MSA's in the state

 8   are very close to the new 8-hour ozone

 9   standard, the existing 5 ton per year

10   threshold should be retained in those

11   areas, especially Tulsa and Oklahoma City. 

12   They stated that the Technical Support

13   Document should include emissions of --

14   estimations of emissions from undocumented

15   facilities and that -- our response is that

16   since all of the proposed rule -- all the

17   proposed rule revision does is remove the

18   requirements to obtain a permit, pay an

19   annual fee and submit an annual emission

20   inventory for facilities that qualify for

21   permit exempt status, and since we have no

22   current mechanism for requiring these small

23   facilities to reduce their emissions, it is

24   the Department's position that this will

25   not affect our ability to stay in
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 1   attainment with the ozone standard.

 2             At the same time, removing these

 3   facilities from permitting and inspection

 4   requirements will allow us to shift our

 5   responses -- our resources to the larger

 6   Title V facilities, which have the greatest

 7   potential for environmental harm.

 8             The rule as proposed contains a

 9   mechanism for requesting information that

10   will allow us to assess the impact of these

11   small facilities on Tulsa, Oklahoma City

12   airsheds, in the event that we have a

13   future attainment issue in any of these

14   areas.

15             On January 9, 2004, we received

16   comments from MOGA via e-mail.   They were

17   received too late to be included in the

18   Council packet, but they will be made part

19   of the hearing record.

20             MOGA suggested that we add new

21   Paragraph (I) to the definition of permit

22   exempt facility in 7-1.1.   This paragraph

23   allows a facility that is associated with

24   an oil or gas well to be permit exempt

25   facility during the initial 90 operating
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 1   days prior to custody transfer.   

 2             We don't think this is the

 3   appropriate place to add this language. 

 4   Permit exempt facility category, for one

 5   thing, is not limited to just oil and gas. 

 6   We recognize that the industry has a

 7   problem and we -- but we feel it is a

 8   separate issue and we will work with them

 9   further on this.

10             In conjunction with the previous

11   suggestion, MOGA asked that we add a

12   definition for oil and gas facility.   Since

13   we do not -- since we're not going to add

14   Paragraph (I), we don't see the need to add

15   this definition.

16             They also suggest that we add a new

17   Paragraph (3) to 7-2(b) under Exceptions. 

18   This new paragraph allows owners or

19   operators to determine permit exempt

20   facility eligibility based on rated

21   horsepower of the internal combustion

22   engine at the facility. 

23             We don't think we need to have this

24   change in that particular place.   We

25   already have added 7-2(g)(2), which
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 1   simplifies the determination of permit

 2   exempt facility eligibility based on total

 3   horsepower of the facility and the

 4   facility's throughput.   

 5             Because this rulemaking increases

 6   the threshold for requiring a permit, EPA

 7   has required a demonstration that the

 8   proposed revision will not violate

 9   applicable portions of control strategy or

10   interfere with the attainment or

11   maintenance of the NAAQS.   We are now

12   presenting this demonstration for the

13   second time at public hearing as the

14   Technical Support Document.   

15             Some changes have been made to this

16   document since the last Council meeting. 

17   We have added new language in Section (I),

18   Permit Exempt Facilities, on pages 1 and 2,

19   to further explain our position.   We have

20   added a new Section (III) which summarizes

21   the data for the Oklahoma City MSA and the

22   Tulsa MSA.

23             In the technical document, we

24   provide gross data for emission inventory

25   YOR (year of record) 1999.   We summarize
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 1   this data for facilities reporting greater

 2   than 5 tons per year and less than or equal

 3   to 40 tons per year of each regulated air

 4   pollutant.   These are the facilities that

 5   may qualify for permit exempt facility

 6   status.   

 7             As requested by EPA, we have also

 8   separated out the data for Oklahoma City

 9   MSA and Tulsa MSA.   We also discussed fee

10   losses based on the facilities that may

11   qualify for the permit exempt facility

12   category and the document includes a list

13   of the potential permit exempt facilities

14   that reported emissions on the YOR 1999

15   emission inventory.   

16             While the numbers in the Technical

17   Support Document are based on the emission

18   inventory data, we are aware that there are

19   a number of facilities with emissions

20   greater than 5 tons a year of any one

21   pollutant and that are not on the

22   inventory.   We understand there are

23   numerous oil and gas production facilities

24   that have emissions of at least one air

25   pollutant that is greater than 5 tons per
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 1   year and with emissions of each air

 2   pollutant that are less than 40 tons per

 3   year that are not on our emission

 4   inventory.

 5             We have not included an estimate of

 6   emissions from these facilities because

 7   these emissions will be the same whether we

 8   have a permit exempt facility category or

 9   not, therefore, they could be considered as

10   a sort of "background noise" and ignored

11   for the purposes of this demonstration.   We

12   do not believe that the fees generated by

13   these undocumented facilities would cover

14   the cost of permitting, inventory, and

15   inspecting them.

16             Staff requests the Council to

17   recommend the proposed rules as amended to

18   the Board for adoption as permanent rules. 

19   Thank you.

20                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Before we go

21   to questions, I would like to remind

22   everyone to please turn off your cell

23   phones and pagers or put them on a silent

24   ring.

25             Now, questions from the Council.
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 1                  MS. MYERS:   Joyce, I've got one

 2   question for you.   In the memorandum, it

 3   refers to staff's currently evaluating

 4   promising alternative methods to obtain the

 5   information without getting it directly

 6   from the owners and operators of the

 7   individual facilities.   Can you share a

 8   little bit about how -- what you're looking

 9   at or what's being considered?

10                  DR. SHEEDY:   I can share a little

11   bit about that.   I'm not sure if our person

12   who is doing that is here with us today. 

13   But the Corporation Commission now has on

14   their website lists of -- and throughputs,

15   I believe, on all the producing facilities

16   or well sites that report to them.   And I

17   believe it's got locations and the whole

18   thing, so that will give us a handle on

19   well sites.   

20             And another portion that we are

21   concerned with would be those that have

22   compressor engines, which ones may have

23   them in their sizes.   And we have received,

24   I think, some information from a compressor

25   rental company.   We have been told that
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 1   this information may be available from the

 2   Tax Commission as ad valorem tax, maybe. 

 3   So -- and I believe there is one or two

 4   other (inaudible) that Morris has -- that

 5   he knows of that may be a possibility for

 6   finding information on how many compressor

 7   engines are out there and perhaps what size

 8   they are.

 9                  MS. MYERS:   Thank you.

10                  MR. TERRILL:   Joyce, let me

11   clarify something and make sure I heard you

12   correctly.   On Subchapter 5, 5-2.1(g),

13   transfer of ownership or change of name. 

14   We're deleting that section, not delaying

15   it, right?

16                  DR. SHEEDY:   Yes.

17                  MR. TERRILL:   Okay.

18                  DR. SHEEDY:   We're deleting it. 

19   If there is a need for it, we can look at

20   it again at another time.   But right now,

21   we're just -- we're taking it out.

22                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, I heard you

23   say delay and we're not delaying it --

24                  DR. SHEEDY:   I'm sorry.

25                  MR. TERRILL:   -- we're deleting
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 1   it.

 2                  DR. SHEEDY:   I meant to say

 3   delete, my tongue just got carried away

 4   with itself.

 5                  MR. TERRILL:   I just wanted to

 6   clear that up.

 7                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Other

 8   questions from the Council.

 9                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I have a

10   question.   On the documentation, Paragraph

11   (C), I notice that it requires that the

12   documentation be maintained at the

13   facility.   Is that an actual practice done

14   that the compressor stations might have to

15   calculate?

16                  DR. SHEEDY:   I don't believe so,

17   because some compressor stations, of

18   course, have no --

19                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Nobody there.

20                  DR. SHEEDY:   -- nobody there and

21   no -- and they don't always have a building

22   or -- I think in practice --

23                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'm just

24   wondering -- it looks like that's not

25   something that's going to change.
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 1                  DR. SHEEDY:   No.

 2                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I guess that's

 3   been the wording forever, but I'm wondering

 4   what the real practice is.   I'm assuming

 5   maintained back at an office somewhere.

 6                  MR. TERRILL:   Yeah, we always get

 7   it.   And they try to -- at an unmanned

 8   station, that's one of the few instances

 9   where we may notify the owner or the

10   operator that we're going to do an

11   inspection so they can have those records

12   available.   

13             In fact, that's probably the only

14   time we do that, is when we know that

15   there's not going to be anybody at a

16   particular facility and they'll have those

17   records back at their -- generally a

18   centralized location out in the field.   

19             I think that came directly out of

20   the federal requirement and it's kind of a

21   generic thing that just doesn't work very

22   well with this particular industry.

23                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Okay.   We're

24   now going to move on to questions from the

25   public and I have several that have
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 1   indicated they want to speak.   Angie

 2   Burkhalter.

 3                  MS. BURKHALTER:   My name is Angie

 4   Burkhalter and I'm the Director of

 5   Regulatory Affairs for the Oklahoma

 6   Independent Petroleum Association.   

 7             And you are just now getting a copy

 8   of my comments.   There are a number of

 9   items on there, but I would just like to

10   talk about a few of those in specific.

11             This rulemaking is going to impact

12   probably a large majority of our members. 

13   We -- I represent about fifteen hundred oil

14   and gas members here and small independent

15   oil and gas operators here in Oklahoma.

16             One of the items that we have a

17   concern with and it's item number two

18   listed on our letter and it's the special

19   inventories.   That's in 252:100-5-

20   2.1(a)(4).   We are very concerned with this

21   proposed language that would allow the

22   Director to request emission inventory data

23   for anything at any time, without going

24   through a rulemaking process and justifying

25   a problem or a need to the regulated
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 1   community.

 2             I believe that ODEQ states that they

 3   feel like that they have authority to make

 4   this request by statute.   However, my

 5   interpretation of the statute is that it

 6   says that it basically -- it specifically

 7   states that the request is to determine a

 8   compliance with the Clean Air Act.   

 9             So this means that rules must be in

10   place first.   And it does not allow ODEQ to

11   randomly request data for planning purposes

12   without some kind of adequate justification

13   or cost impact analysis.

14             For example, emission inventory data

15   for small oil and gas operators could be as

16   costly or range from twenty-five hundred to

17   five thousand dollars per facility.   So

18   we're just requesting that there -- you

19   know, there is a concern here and that this

20   language be stricken from the rulemaking.

21             Item number three on my letter is

22   related to certifications.   This is under

23   Section 252:100-5-2.1(f).   I have provided

24   some comments on that, but I have talked

25   with some folks here this morning and
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 1   understand that that type of certification

 2   is basically for Title V sources and it

 3   basically applies to those companies that

 4   have a certain number of employees.   

 5             I think that this statement is very

 6   onerous for our operators that potentially

 7   could have minor source permits.   You know,

 8   we have -- they are very, very small, and

 9   so we feel like that, you know, that person

10   is the person and the company that, you

11   know, has direct knowledge or maybe has

12   done those emission inventories and is not

13   the responsible official of the company.

14                  MR. BRANECKY:   But that person

15   can be anybody in the company.

16                  MS. BURKHALTER:   Well, the way it

17   -- the way I -- the way it reads, it

18   doesn't really -- it doesn't really allow

19   any designation to appoint someone or -- I

20   mean, that's the way I read it.   It reads,

21   like, pretty strict, that it has to be that

22   responsible official.

23                  MR. BRANECKY:   But that

24   individual company can decide who that

25   responsible official is.
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 1                  MS. BURKHALTER:   Well, if that's

 2   -- if that's truly the way it is, then we'd

 3   like to see something in there that

 4   clarifies that, that that can be designated

 5   to someone.

 6                  DR. SHEEDY:   Angie.

 7                  MS. BURKHALTER:   Uh-huh.

 8                  DR. SHEEDY:   I think that the

 9   definition of responsible official that's

10   in Subchapter 1 does have provisions for

11   designation.

12                  MS. BURKHALTER:   Oh, does it? 

13   Okay.   Well, I just thought the way it's

14   listed in the new version and I didn't see

15   -- I didn't go back and see the -- so, if

16   that's the way it is then, you know, that's

17   acceptable.

18             Item number four of my comments,

19   which is related to the definitions of

20   permit exempted facility, that's in Section

21   252:100-7-1.1.   I just -- this is more of a

22   clarification that the definition states

23   that the facility has actual emissions in

24   every calendar year that are 40 tons per

25   year or less of each regulated pollutant. 
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 1             In our business, you know, the well

 2   -- certain wells come online and they may

 3   be very productive in the beginning, but as

 4   time goes by the production level drops.   

 5             And so, in this situation, we assume

 6   that maybe there might be some wells or

 7   facilities out there that over time, as

 8   they decline, they maybe meet the

 9   requirements of the permit exempt facility

10   and can be designated as such.   

11             Some of the facilities may

12   immediately meet those requirements, but we

13   are just assuming that that's what that

14   means, that every calendar year doesn't

15   exclude a facility if it can ultimately

16   become or meet the requirements of the

17   definition.

18             Item number six of my comments, this

19   is related to transfer of permit and this

20   is in 252:100-7-2(f).   We have talked with

21   Eddie about this.   This is the requirement

22   to notify DEQ within ten days of a transfer

23   of permit and Eddie has told us that this

24   is something that they're looking into and

25   that he thinks would require a statutory
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 1   change.   

 2             My comment on this is we would just

 3   like the Air Quality Division to pursue

 4   this statutory change and at least increase

 5   that to thirty days.   And this would be

 6   similar to what the Corporation Commission

 7   notice requirements allows, and it's worked

 8   very well over there.

 9             Item number seven on my comments,

10   this is related to emission calculation

11   Methods, this is in 252:100-7-2(g)(1) and

12   (2).   And this is really more of a

13   clarification in our assumptions by the

14   statement that companies can calculate

15   actual emissions to determine if they meet

16   the permit exempt facility requirements. 

17   If actual emissions do not exceed those 40

18   ton per year limit, companies can assume

19   they are permit exempt and do not have to

20   submit any data to ODEQ showing that the

21   actual emissions prove that they meet this

22   requirement.

23             Number nine on my comments, this is

24   related to the same section but it's

25   252:100-7-2(g)(2), but it's part (b)(i). 
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 1   And this is where it talks about other

 2   equipment.   In December, this was the first

 3   time that we had seen a VOC requirement

 4   that DEQ had proposed, so we were somewhat

 5   surprised about that requirement.   And then

 6   I know yesterday that DEQ had revised this

 7   language and we got a copy of it late

 8   yesterday.   

 9             I guess what we would like to

10   reserve or our assumptions on this are the

11   following items that basically we assume

12   that the oil and gas operators, if they

13   meet the existing requirements of (i), that

14   they are exempt, if they meet those

15   throughputs and equipment requirements.   If

16   those types of equipment are not on the

17   facility, we assume that the facility is

18   permit exempt.   

19             We also assume that if the

20   throughput or there is other sources on

21   site that are not listed there, we assume

22   that we are permit exempt if we go ahead

23   and do the calculations for those emission

24   sources and the actual emissions are less

25   than 40 tons per year.   
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 1             Also on this one, we assume that

 2   operators do not need to submit any type of

 3   data whatsoever.   One of our reservations

 4   on this is that since we only received it

 5   yesterday, I mean, we don't -- we have not

 6   had time to route this, you know, through a

 7   lot of our committee members and through

 8   other various members that might have some

 9   good input on this, but what we'd like to

10   do is request or reserve the right to

11   request the Air Quality Division or the Air

12   Quality Council to make any type of

13   immediate amendments to this rulemaking for

14   any unforeseen or unintended consequences

15   of this language.

16             Item number ten on my comments is

17   really an item that was not proposed but we

18   have talked with the Air Quality Division

19   about this.   And this really has to do with

20   oil and gas well testing procedures.   New

21   oil and gas wells are drilled and tested

22   before their potential to produce can be

23   determined.   This test period usually could

24   be as much as a hundred and twenty days or

25   longer in length and we would like ODEQ to
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 1   consider or to work on language to propose

 2   in the next Air Quality Council that allows

 3   oil and gas wells to be completed, the

 4   necessary testing conducted, before the

 5   company is required to determine if a

 6   permit is needed or if one is needed, what

 7   kind that is.   

 8             That concludes my comments.   I don't

 9   know if you all have any questions.   

10                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Thank you.

11                  MR. WILSON:   Dr. Sheedy, I have a

12   question on this.   

13                  DR. SHEEDY:   Yes.

14                  MR. WILSON:   Are these types of

15   letters, like from OIPA, is this the only

16   means by which the state is getting

17   feedback on development of this rule?

18                  DR. SHEEDY:   No.   We had -- we

19   had, as you know, a workgroup that met

20   about three or four times, at least, to

21   talk about this rule and to try and answer

22   these kinds of questions.   

23             Other than that, we get these

24   letters, we also sometimes will get phone

25   calls where they do not make an actual
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 1   official comment, they just want some

 2   clarification.   But the letters are

 3   certainly an important part of the feedback

 4   that we get.   Of course, they also --

 5   people come to these Council meetings and -

 6   -

 7                  MR. BRANECKY:   When was the last

 8   time that workgroup met?

 9                  DR. SHEEDY:   That workgroup met -

10   - I believe the last time was the end of

11   August.   

12                  MR. TERRILL:   Was your question

13   really getting at, do we get a lot of other

14   industry participating other than oil and

15   gas?

16                  MR. WILSON:   Well, I --

17                  MR. TERRILL:   Because we didn't. 

18   We tried to get a lot of other folks

19   interested, but we just didn't get a lot of

20   other interest other than the oil and gas

21   folk.   It was primarily driven by them and

22   we figured that, because they've got the

23   bulk of the sources.

24                  DR. SHEEDY:   That's right.

25                  MR. WILSON:   What I'm trying to
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 1   determine is whether or not the workgroup

 2   process is still an open and ongoing thing

 3   on this because the rule is appearing to us

 4   today for consideration.   I think the state

 5   is going to recommend that we stay this, at

 6   least.

 7                  DR. SHEEDY:   No, we're going to

 8   recommend that we pass it.   I think that

 9   the issues that Angie brought up, I think a

10   good number of those have been solved by

11   our -- by the recent changes we made and

12   that perhaps the problem is that we haven't

13   talked about them or we haven't clarified

14   them enough.   But --

15                  MS. MYERS:   It appears that the

16   comments submitted by OIPA could have been

17   handled in a more timely fashion instead of

18   waiting until the fourth time the rule

19   comes before the Council.   Some of those

20   changes appear to be fairly significant and

21   I'm not sure that we'll ever get this rule

22   exactly right for everybody.

23                  DR. SHEEDY:   Well, some of the

24   changes were made in response to concerns

25   that OIPA had.
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 1                  MR. TERRILL:   Let me talk here a

 2   little bit.   We met with both MOGA and OIPA

 3   last week.   And they have committees that

 4   work within their organization that look at

 5   these rules and they get back with their

 6   members, as most of you all know.   And they

 7   did point out some things that -- from the

 8   draft that was posted that we needed to

 9   make some changes or clarifications that we

10   had missed.   And we think we have taken

11   care of that.   

12             The real stickler here that this

13   deal left is this business of special

14   inventories.   And I would have to disagree

15   that -- I believe we do have the authority

16   under statute to ask for these inventories,

17   but I also feel like that we need to have

18   this in the rule simply because there may

19   become a time where we have to have

20   inventories from a lot of small sources.   

21             I don't know where EPA is going to

22   go with some of their MACT standards, I

23   don't know what they're going to require

24   toxics-wise, there is a lot of things that

25   could happen that we need to have this
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 1   ability to ask for these inventories.   And

 2   I think that by us giving to the industry

 3   the ability to be permit exempt on

 4   somewhere between seventy-five and a

 5   hundred thousand sources, that we need to

 6   have this right reserved to ask for this if

 7   we need it.   

 8             It costs us time and money to

 9   process these inventories and to just ask

10   for one is just -- we wouldn't do that, it

11   would be nonsensical.   And if there was a

12   need to do it, it would be something that

13   would be read at the Council meeting

14   because it would probably be in response to

15   some type of new state or federal

16   requirement that came through the Council

17   that everyone was aware of, there would be

18   plenty of notice that we're going to have

19   to ask for these inventories.   

20             But I just -- that's just a sticking

21   point with me and I just believe that has

22   to be in here as a trade-off and we'll just

23   have to be accountable to the Council and

24   to the DEQ Board, to the Legislature and to

25   the regulated community that we won't abuse
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 1   that.

 2                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Eddie, today,

 3   are all these sources that are qualified

 4   under this proposed rule, are they having

 5   to submit annual inventories today?

 6                  MR. TERRILL:   The vast majority

 7   of them don't have permits or anything. 

 8   And that's the reason that when we were

 9   looking at this whole issue in relation to

10   what we call SOP 20, which is permitting of

11   sources five tons and below that we

12   exempted when we shouldn't have in the oil

13   and gas sector, we just realized that if we

14   were going to enforce the rules the way

15   they were written, we were going to have

16   thousands of sources that we were going to

17   have to go out and find and get permitted

18   and all we were going to do is find them

19   and permit them and fee them, and it just

20   wasn't worth our time to do that.   

21             I mean, it just didn't make sense

22   for us to go out and do that.   But I also

23   felt like if we were going to make this

24   rule change, it shouldn't just be for one

25   sector, this is a burden.   If you're just
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 1   going to get a permit and pay a fee, it's

 2   all small business and why not make this a

 3   blanket -- a lot of states do this.   We

 4   really should have done this when we set

 5   our de minimis at five tons.   That was at

 6   the time we should have done this and we

 7   just didn't do it.   

 8             So it's correcting something we

 9   should have done several years ago, but

10   that's exactly the reason that we decided

11   to look real strongly at this 40 ton permit

12   exempt, is because we had these thousands

13   of small, you know, ten, fifteen, twenty

14   ton sources out there that, you know -- we

15   think we've got a way to get the majority

16   of them through the Tax Commission,

17   Corporation Commission and things like that

18   if we need it.          But there may just

19   come an instance at some point where we

20   really have to work with OIPA and the MOGA

21   folks, primarily OIPA, to figure out how to

22   get these inventories and we want us to

23   have that ability to do that.

24                  DR. SHEEDY:   Yes, I think we're

25   far more comfortable in exempting them from
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 1   the annual inventory, if we have a method

 2   of inventorying them if the need arises. 

 3   And I think EPA is more comfortable with us

 4   having that --

 5                  MR. TERRILL:   Yes.   And let me

 6   speak to these other changes that Angie

 7   brought out from OIPA.   You're always going

 8   to have some uncertainty when you make a

 9   rule revision like this.   And we've looked

10   at this and looked at this and invariably

11   we'll miss something.   And, you know, we'll

12   do this just like we done the excess

13   emission malfunction rule.   

14             When we changed that rule, we said

15   that once it had been in effect for a year

16   or two, industry could take a look and come

17   back to us with things that we could have

18   done better to improve that rule, same way

19   here.   If this has an unintended

20   consequence that we haven't thought about,

21   we'll come back to the Council and fix it.

22                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I have a

23   question about the comment number four of

24   the OIPA letter that involves every

25   calendar.   What does that line mean when it

                                                   Christy A. Myers            

                                                                                     Certified Shorthand Reporter

                                                                  45

 1   says actual emission in every calendar

 2   year?

 3                  DR. SHEEDY:   I can explain to you

 4   why we put that in, because we don't want

 5   certain facilities that will be under 40

 6   tons one year and then 45 the next year and

 7   20 the next year, that bounce up and down,

 8   coming in and out of permit exempt.   You

 9   meet the permit one year, don't meet it the

10   next year -- I mean, that's going to cause

11   us a lot more work.   And so that's why we

12   said every year.   

13             I think we hadn't thought about oil

14   and gas in particular where they may have a

15   well site that will be going down in

16   production over time steadily and not come

17   back up again.   But some -- a lot of

18   facilities are not uniform in their

19   emissions from one year to the next, it

20   varies depending on the market economy and

21   that sort of thing.

22                  MR. KILPATRICK:   So it sounds

23   like what you kind of need in there to do

24   what I think you're saying you wanted to

25   do, is something that says every year for
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 1   the last three years or, you know -- some

 2   trigger so you don't go on saying this well

 3   came on at 45 or twenty years ago but for

 4   the last nineteen years it's been under

 5   that.   But, yet, if you say every year

 6   means every year, you're still going to

 7   hold it at that original level.   We need

 8   some sort of window there to look at.   But

 9   what the right window is, I don't know.

10                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, in reality,

11   we're not going to be looking at any window

12   because we're going to rely on the

13   owner/operator to make that determination

14   for themselves if they're 40 tons and

15   below.   

16             I mean, if we had -- if we were

17   going to go out and verify this, that would

18   be worse than trying to get them permitted. 

19   I mean, I would rather permit everybody and

20   figure out how to do that than I would

21   spend the time trying to figure out if

22   they're 41 or 42.   

23             I mean, we get in this debate with

24   facilities that are around the borderline

25   of a major source.   And, so, how are we
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 1   going to find these sources?   Through a

 2   complaint or if it becomes a real problem,

 3   then we'll look at addressing it some other

 4   way.   But most of this is going to be

 5   pretty much on the honor system for these

 6   sources that are small to begin with.   

 7                  MR. KILPATRICK:   So you're

 8   leaving it up to the facilities to decide

 9   what the definition of every year is?

10                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, I'm not --

11                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I mean, that's

12   what you're saying.   In a well that

13   declined five years ago before 40 and has

14   been below ever since, it could go ahead

15   and say I'm under 40, therefore, I'm permit

16   exempt.

17                  DR. SHEEDY:   I don't think we

18   would disagree with them because that's not

19   -- I see your point.   

20                  MR. TERRILL:   Yes, I do, too.

21                  DR. SHEEDY:   That's not what we

22   intended to do here.

23                  MS. DIZIKES:   As a practical

24   matter, we're limited in any action against

25   any facility by statutes of limitations. 
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 1   And so I don't really think it's really

 2   necessary to add any further limiting

 3   language.

 4                  MR. KILPATRICK:   What's the limit

 5   -- the statute of limitations?   Seven years

 6   or something?

 7                  MS. DIZIKES:   No, I think it --

 8   is it five years?

 9                  DR. SHEEDY:   You mean that --

10                  MS. DIZIKES:   Go ahead.   Go

11   ahead, Mr. Peters.

12                  MR. PETERS:   Five years.

13                  MS. DIZIKES:   Five years.   

14                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Joyce, do

15   you have further response to those

16   comments?

17                  DR. SHEEDY:   Does anyone on the

18   Council have any particular comments that

19   they would like a response to?   Any -- is

20   there any comment that would cause you to

21   think that we need to delay this passage

22   another time?   Because if there is, I would

23   like to respond to it.   Yes, Angie.

24                  MS. BURKHALTER:   I just want to

25   make one comment that, you know, I just
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 1   outlined some issues.   We are generally

 2   not, you know, opposed.   We would like the

 3   -- we would just like to make sure, on the

 4   record, that, you know, the Division will

 5   work with this to try to refine some of

 6   these issues that we have, that we have

 7   identified.   And I think a lot of them are

 8   minor, you know, some word changes and

 9   things like that.   So I just want to

10   clarify that with you.

11                  DR. SHEEDY:   And I'm sure that we

12   will, as we do with all of our rules, if

13   when this is in actual practice there is a

14   problem, then we will work to resolve that

15   problem.   If there is language that is a

16   problem, we'll look at it again.

17                  MR. TERRILL:   That's our

18   commitment on all these rules.   And I

19   encouraged both OIPA and MOGA to make their

20   comments on the record so that if that

21   would make them more comfortable so that we

22   would have these things nailed down and we

23   continue to work on them.   So I'm probably

24   as much at fault as anybody.   

25             I believe that we do need to have
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 1   these things out there so that we can --

 2   you know, I could leave tomorrow and the

 3   whole tenor of what we do here may change

 4   and there needs to be some certainty or

 5   some consistency in what we're doing.   And

 6   so the commitment through the dialogue on

 7   the record is there for us to continue to

 8   work on this.   I'm sure we'll be fine-

 9   tuning this particular rule a year from now

10   or two years from now.   

11             It's just you can't do anything

12   that's this sweeping without missing

13   something and finding out you need to make

14   a few corrections as you actually implement

15   it, so -- and that's -- that's part of what

16   we're doing here, too.

17                  DR. SHEEDY:   That's right.   And

18   what we've tried to do here is -- right now

19   the way the rules are written, all these

20   sources should have permits and if they are

21   not grandfathered, they should have permits

22   and they should be on our inventory

23   regardless of whether they are

24   grandfathered from permits.   That's the way

25   the rules -- the regulations read.   And we
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 1   want to make -- we want to put in the rules

 2   what we actually are doing, which is, we

 3   are not requiring them to do an inventory

 4   and we are not requiring them to permit

 5   because we think the cost of doing that

 6   would be far more than it is worth.   

 7                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Okay.   We

 8   would like to continue with comments from

 9   the public.   Mr. Jay Eubanks from Mid-

10   Continent Oil and Gas Association.

11                  MR. EUBANKS:   Thank you.   My name

12   is Jay Eubanks and I'm here representing

13   the Mid-Continent Oil and Gas Association. 

14   I'm the Chairman of the Environmental

15   Safety Committee at the Association.   

16             On behalf of the Association, I

17   would like to thank the staff for allowing

18   us to have input into this rulemaking

19   process.   We believe the permit exempt

20   facility rule changes are a positive step

21   in clarifying the permitting process for

22   industry.

23             However, we would like to continue

24   to work with the staff on some

25   modifications to this rule that we did not
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 1   have time to get finalized, as read by Ms.

 2   Sheedy and Mr. Terrill alluded to.   But we

 3   do believe that the rule should be

 4   finalized today and authorized and

 5   submitted for final approval.   Thank you.

 6                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   I have a

 7   gentleman from Martin-Marietta.   I'm not

 8   sure I can pronounce the name.

 9                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   My name is Lalit

10   Bhatnagar.   I'm the Division Environmental

11   Manager for Martin Marietta Materials.   

12             We are the second largest rock

13   crushers in the country.   We have

14   operations pretty much in most of the

15   eastern and western part of the country,

16   including Oklahoma, and we also operate a

17   few asphalt plants and ready mix

18   operations.

19             And the comments that I have, they

20   pretty much relate to two items in these

21   proposed rules.   These -- just to kind of

22   give you a background, I'm a little bit new

23   in Oklahoma, I've been here about four

24   months, but I come with about twelve years

25   of environmental permitting background,
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 1   both Title V's and minors, in about a dozen

 2   states or so.   

 3             And these proposed rules, I think

 4   these are just extremely progressive way of

 5   looking at these things where these large

 6   number of minor sources are permit exempt

 7   facilities, the rule is trying to define

 8   their having such a minimal impact on the

 9   air quality.   From the Technical Support

10   Document, it offers potentially four

11   hundred twenty-plus facilities that would

12   potentially be covered under permit exempt

13   status.   They are contributing less than

14   six percent of the emissions.   

15             And I think the Technical Support

16   Document, it talks about if these rules

17   were to go into effect, there will be

18   minimal to no impact on the ambient air

19   quality standards.   And so I think I want

20   to congratulate the Director and the staff

21   for the outstanding job that they have

22   done.

23             And in regards to these rules, there

24   are a couple of comments that we have. 

25   Under Section 7-1-1, the definition for the
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 1   de minimis facilities and the permit exempt

 2   facilities, my comments pretty much relate

 3   to the definition at the very bottom where

 4   it talks about the facilities, even though

 5   through the actual emissions between, say,

 6   5 tons and less than 40 tons per year for

 7   permit exempt facilities.   Even though

 8   those emissions are smaller than that

 9   number, that would potentially include them

10   as part of permit exempt facility, but the

11   facilities which are subject to NSPS or

12   NESHAP, they are explicitly excluded from

13   seeking coverage under this new category.   

14             Our industry, we are pretty much

15   regulated by NSPS Subpart OOO and OOO has

16   been in effect since 1983.   And most of our

17   facilities, they are minor facilities with

18   minimal impact on the environment and just

19   because we are subject to NSPS with the

20   smaller emissions that we have from these

21   facilities, I think I was going to bring it

22   to the Council's attention that there are

23   other parts in Oklahoma regulations where

24   in Oklahoma it's a fully delegated state or

25   NSPS federal regulations that are adopted
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 1   by reference.   

 2             So I think by excluding facilities,

 3   which, even though they have so small

 4   emissions, just because they are subject to

 5   NSPS standard or NESHAP standard, I think

 6   we shouldn't be excluding those facilities

 7   from these permit exempt category.   And

 8   staff has, in the Technical Support

 9   Document, of the four hundred twenty-plus

10   facilities, I was just doing a brief count,

11   there are approximately ten to fifteen

12   percent of these four hundred twenty

13   facilities where NSPS Subpart OOO applies. 

14   And even though these emissions are just so

15   small, we won't be able to seek coverage

16   under the permit exempt facility.   

17             And the point that I was trying to

18   make was, this is an extremely progressive

19   approach that I've seen working in a dozen

20   states or so.   And I think we ought to do

21   this thing completely, not halfway where we

22   create these categories and still exclude a

23   lot of minor sources from seeking coverage. 

24   Those minor sources, even after this rule

25   goes into effect, will still have to comply
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 1   with all the permitting, recordkeeping

 2   requirements, even though our emissions are

 3   just so small.   

 4             And as ODEQ would agree that

 5   irrespective of whether the NSPS or NSPS

 6   language is part of this permit exempt

 7   facility definition or de minimis facility

 8   definition, ODEQ retains the right to

 9   enforce all other state/federal

10   requirements.   And the NSPS requirements

11   will continue to reply, irrespective of

12   whether we are included or excluded as part

13   of these permit exempt facilities.   And so

14   we would request Council to remove this

15   requirement where NSP -- just because a

16   small source is subject to NSPS or NESHAP,

17   they can seek coverage under the permit

18   exempt facility.

19             Those are pretty much all the

20   comments I have.   Any questions?

21                  MR. WILSON:   Do you know of any

22   states that have done a similar type or

23   taken a similar type of action that have

24   included the exemption of NSPS facilities?

25                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   There are a few. 

                                                   Christy A. Myers            

                                                                                     Certified Shorthand Reporter

                                                                  57

 1   I think the states are moving in this

 2   direction.   Primarily, in the past there

 3   was a hodgepodge of states where certain

 4   states had fully -- were fully delegated on

 5   NSPS, some were not, some were in between. 

 6   So permitting was pretty much the only way

 7   where they could bring not only the state

 8   permitting requirements but also NSPS

 9   requirements under one rule.   But that has

10   changed over the years.   

11             And like here in Oklahoma, we are a

12   fully delegated state, we have all the NSPS

13   standards.   Those are referenced by rule

14   directly to what the federal standards are. 

15   And as this Technical Support Document

16   says, even though these permit exempt

17   facilities don't have to do permitting,

18   recordkeeping and those kind of things, but

19   they are still applicable to all the other

20   requirements like NSPS or say fugitive dust

21   or open burning, those kind of regulations,

22   those still continue to apply.   

23             And we think that just by including

24   that one line in the definition, we are

25   excluding, just from our industry, about
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 1   fifteen percent of the four hundred

 2   facilities that the staff has included in

 3   the potentially permit exempt facility. 

 4   And I think what we are trying -- what the

 5   Director and staff is trying to do here, I

 6   think this was extremely progressive

 7   because we are contributing these four

 8   hundred some facilities, they are

 9   contributing less than six percent of the

10   emissions and we are spending a lot of

11   resources which could go towards major

12   source compliance.   

13             And I think the intent is good but I

14   think the unintended consequence of this

15   one line is -- that of this four hundred

16   when we come down to it, it may just end up

17   being a handful.   I just want to make sure

18   that these comments, we bring this thing to

19   Council's attention, that the good things

20   that we are trying to do, we just don't

21   want to defeat the purpose of what they are

22   trying to do here.

23                  MS. MYERS:   Have you submitted

24   written comments?

25                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   I just became
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 1   aware of this three days ago, but we will

 2   be submitting written comments in regards

 3   to this.

 4                  MS. MYERS:   Thank you.

 5                  MR. BRANECKY:   I guess I would

 6   like to maybe hear what DEQ's response to

 7   that would be.

 8                  MR. WILSON:   I agree.   I brought

 9   this issue up at the last two Council

10   meetings regarding NSPS and NESHAP and why

11   this rule can't benefit from those being

12   part of the permit exempt family.   Maybe we

13   ought to hear one more time from DEQ.

14                  DR. SHEEDY:   When we initially

15   started writing this rule, we looked into -

16   - we wrote it without exempting NSPS and

17   NESHAP and then when we took it to our

18   staff to review, they had reasons why they

19   felt that sources subject to these should

20   be exempt.   

21             Some of those reasons were that

22   while they're -- because we're not going to

23   charge an annual fee to these companies or

24   -- for these facilities and that we will

25   still be required to maybe inspect them, do
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 1   -- they may have reporting requirements to

 2   us and notification requirements to us, so

 3   we will still be dealing with them, whereas

 4   a lot of the sources, the other sources

 5   that aren't subject to NSPS or NESHAP, we

 6   won't have dealings with them unless --

 7   basically unless we have a complaint or a

 8   reason to think that they had erroneously

 9   taken permit exempt status.   

10             Another reason is we do have this

11   program delegated.   We have, of course, IBR

12   rules.   But part of that delegation

13   responsibility is that we know that these

14   facilities have indeed done the

15   notifications and kept the records and done

16   those testing or whatever the NSPS or

17   NESHAP may require in a timely manner.   Or

18   if not, we take enforcement proceedings. 

19             And if we have no permit and we have

20   no emission inventory, we may have some

21   problem in finding these facilities or

22   knowing who they are.   So I think those are

23   some of the reasons why we did decide to

24   exclude them in the end.

25                  MR. WILSON:   But, you know, this
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 1   rule is full of places where there are

 2   elements of trust involved.   In fact, I've

 3   never seen a regulation so full of that. 

 4   It depends upon trust between the regulator

 5   and the regulated community.   

 6             And really what you're talking about

 7   there is whether or not you want to extend

 8   trust to facilities that are regulated,

 9   that are employing controls, recordkeeping,

10   whatever prescriptive parts of the

11   regulation are involved and, you know, in

12   the spirit of what we're trying to achieve

13   here, which is trying to relieve the

14   burden, you know, I have to agree.   

15             I'm not sure we're going to get

16   there today, but I have to agree.   I see

17   that the element of trust can be extended

18   to these facilities and further be relieve

19   the burden of the regulated from the

20   regulators.

21                  MR. TERRILL:   But on the flip

22   side of that, we've got the responsibility,

23   as part of the delegated program, to

24   inspect and verify these sources, trust

25   only goes so far.   And if we're going to
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 1   have to continue to regulate these

 2   facilities, they need to be in the system. 

 3

 4             And another thing that we would have

 5   to look at here is this would be a

 6   substantial change, it would have to be

 7   approved by EPA.   You know, I'm not opposed

 8   to saying that we'll continue to look at

 9   this as we evaluate how the rule is

10   implemented.   But I'm not willing at all to

11   delete that today.   

12                  MS. MYERS:   Eddie, what's the

13   time frame on needing to pass this rule? 

14   Is there a time crunch on it or any?

15                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, I don't know

16   that there is any time crunch on it except

17   that we've got a -- you know, right now our

18   rule says 5 tons and above need to be

19   permitted.   And for the last three or four

20   years, five years, however long we've had

21   this rule, we've had a significant number

22   of sources that don't have permits.   And

23   we're trying to move away from that.   

24             We've got a situation now where

25   we're trying to align ourselves with what
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 1   our rules say and we're requiring these

 2   sources that have 40 tons and below to

 3   start coming in and getting permits.   The

 4   longer we put this off, the -- I just don't

 5   see the value of putting it off.

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   And -- help me

 7   here.   If we don't pass this today -- well,

 8   if we pass it today, we have the potential

 9   of it being implemented this June.

10                  DR. SHEEDY:   That's correct.

11                  MR. BRANECKY:   If we don't pass

12   it today, it will be delayed a year.

13                  MR. TERRILL:   We'll have to make

14   it --

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   So is it worth

16   that year to industry and DEQ to pass it

17   with known concerns and correct those at a

18   later date?   Or do we delay the whole thing

19   for another year?

20                  MR. TERRILL:   If -- we'll

21   continue to look at this and if it looks

22   like that we've truly made a mistake here,

23   we can ask the Board to send it back.   I

24   mean, the next step is it goes to the

25   Board.
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 1                  MR. BRANECKY:   Right.

 2                  MR. TERRILL:   And they can send

 3   the whole thing back.   And if we're not

 4   going to pass it now, whether or not we

 5   pass it six months from now or three months

 6   from now really won't make any difference. 

 7                  MR. WILSON:   Well, I think this

 8   is just another example of the need for

 9   ongoing discussion and input from the

10   regulated community to, you know, once we

11   pass this, to continue to look at ways to

12   make it better.

13                  MR. TERRILL:   I absolutely agree

14   with that.

15                  DR. SHEEDY:   And we have taken

16   one step in that direction by saying that

17   they had to be subject to a standard or a

18   work practice, that basically was our

19   knowledge from KB at that time.   I think

20   it's since changed, where there was a

21   requirement that if you were a certain

22   size, you were subject to KB, but all you

23   had to do was keep an onsite record of your

24   size.   So we have made a step in that

25   direction.
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 1                  MR. TERRILL:   But we'll commit to

 2   look at this if you all see fit to pass

 3   this today, we'll take a look and see what

 4   impact that might have.   And if it really

 5   is minimal and it won't create any problems

 6   for our folks in tracking this and if the

 7   industry wants to come to us and say, we've

 8   identified ways that we can do that, we'll

 9   look at that, too.   I mean, that's -- I'm

10   not opposed to that at all.

11                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Do we have

12   any other questions from the public?   

13             Please state your name.

14                  MS. CANTY:   I'm Cathy Canty and I

15   have an environmental consulting firm.   I

16   want to compliment you guys on the rule,

17   because we've been watching this for a long

18   time and we knew that permit exemption was

19   coming.

20             I did not find out until this

21   morning, so I've not been able to do any

22   research on this new NSPS requirement.   I

23   cannot think of a single client out of

24   about a hundred and fifty plants that we

25   did consulting for last year that would be
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 1   able to now be permit exempt.

 2             I think there's complications on

 3   both sides.   These companies spend

 4   thousands of dollars hiring people like us

 5   to do their inventories and their

 6   permitting.   From a consultant's

 7   perspective, you know, we want to spend

 8   that money doing training, being proactive,

 9   having them be proactive as opposed to

10   doing paperwork and filling out money.   

11             I think there is some fee issues

12   that, you know, certainly that would impact

13   you greatly.   I don't know if you've had

14   the opportunity to continue to require fees

15   in addition to being allowed for people to

16   be permit exempt.   I mean, that may be an

17   option.   I just want to reiterate that the

18   NSPS being put in there is going to exclude

19   the majority of industry that I know of

20   that probably would have been able to fall

21   under that.   And for me, personally, we did

22   about a hundred and fifty plants last year

23   and there won't be one of them -- all you

24   have to do is have one conveyor at a quarry

25   site or an asphalt plant that is older than
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 1   1983.   

 2             And, to me, this doesn't make sense

 3   because environmentally, if you're older,

 4   which means you're probably not as

 5   efficient, you get exempt.   If you are

 6   older than 1983, you're subject to NSPS and

 7   you've got to get permits and you've got --

 8   that doesn't necessarily make sense to me. 

 9   I don't have the answer, but I want to say

10   having just found out about this this

11   morning, I think this is something new

12   that's popped up at DEQ, they've thrown

13   this in here and maybe they've been looking

14   at it for a long time, I just have not

15   followed it.   I found out about it this

16   morning.   I don't know what other states

17   are doing, but if there is a way to look

18   around that, I certainly would encourage

19   that from our company's perspective and the

20   various industries we represent.   Thank

21   you.   If there is no questions, I'll sit

22   down.

23                  DR. SHEEDY:   I would just like to

24   state that the NSPS/NESHAP, that exclusion

25   has been in the rule since it first was
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 1   available to the public.   So it's not a new

 2   change.

 3                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Any further

 4   comments?   Bob.   

 5                  MR. KELLOGG:   Thank you, Beverly. 

 6   Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.   I'm

 7   Bob Kellogg with Shipley and Kellogg.   

 8             I applaud the DEQ for moving forward

 9   on simplifying the rules and the processes. 

10   Those of you that know me know that I've

11   always been of that vein and I have one

12   more suggestion.   I would like the rules to

13   go forward, because you're going to

14   implement something.   

15             And I would like you to change one

16   word, if you would, please, so that people

17   who aren't in the room today will know what

18   you have said today.   And that's the

19   definition of permit exempt facility in 7-

20   1.1.   Change the word "in every calendar

21   year" to "the last five calendar years" and

22   then that makes it clear to everyone that

23   needs to follow this to know precisely what

24   it means.   And being clear is always, I

25   think, a good thing to do.   Thank you.
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 1                  MR. WILSON:   Does the DEQ want to

 2   respond as to whether or not that

 3   suggestion makes it clear?   

 4                  MS. DIZIKES:   I don't have any

 5   objection to it.   I just want to note that

 6   we've had so many suggestions today, I'm

 7   not sure where we begin and where we end.

 8                  MR. WILSON:   Well, is that one

 9   worthy of correction today?

10                  MS. DIZIKES:   I would have no

11   objection to that.

12                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, the technical

13   folks are the ones that are going to have

14   to live with this and I don't have any

15   objection if it makes it clearer.   But I

16   want to -- and this is not unusual for us

17   to do this, we just haven't done it in the

18   last several Council meetings.   So in times

19   past, there would be a lot of changing on

20   the day of the Council before we pass it. 

21   Joyce.

22                  MS. DIZIKES:   Scott Thomas just

23   pointed out that we don't know when the

24   five years begin or end, and I guess we

25   would have to then take on trust that it is
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 1   measured from the time that (inaudible).

 2                  DR. SHEEDY:   This change may not

 3   be as simple as it sounded.   

 4                  MR. TERRILL:   It's up to the

 5   Council.   I propose to leave the rule like

 6   it is.   I mean, either that or we can carry

 7   it over and we'll permit them.   I don't

 8   know what the best solution here is.   We

 9   could mull this thing around for another

10   year.   I would propose to leave it like it

11   is.   If we need to fix it, we'll come back

12   and make adjustments.   I can't imagine that

13   it's going to create that much of a --

14   we'll be looking at the NSPS issue and I

15   can't imagine it will make that much

16   difference in a year's time.   That's -- I

17   think, don't we have to leave it closed for

18   a year?   We can't reopen it for a year, or

19   can we?

20                  MS. DIZIKES:   We would be able to

21   reopen it this fall.   It's just a matter of

22   publication.   But I think we want to give

23   it some time for some experience to see how

24   it's doing.

25                  MR. TERRILL:   Yeah, and I would
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 1   propose to do that.   I mean, we're not

 2   trying to do something that would be this

 3   unclear.   But I agree.   If we're not going

 4   to pass this rule today, then we probably -

 5   - I just don't believe that this one change

 6   is enough to warrant creating a bigger

 7   problem and I would prefer to leave it like

 8   it is and we'll see what happens.   If we

 9   need to change it, we will in the fall or

10   this time next year.

11                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I still don't

12   quite understand we don't know the time

13   period.   If you're looking at an actual

14   emissions in the last five calendar years,

15   that means that at whatever point in time

16   you're looking at it, you go back five

17   calendar years.   And if you meet the

18   requirement, then you are now permit

19   exempt.   If in the last five calendar

20   years, you don't meet it -- I'm not quite

21   understanding what we mean, we don't know

22   what the period is.

23                  MR. THOMAS:   My comment was maybe

24   the last five years could be from the

25   effective -- could be considered from the
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 1   effective date of the regulation.   There is

 2   an effective date of the regulation and it

 3   could be misinterpreted and then you would

 4   only have a specific five year period.

 5                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I tend to agree

 6   with Bob that I don't like the fact that it

 7   says in every year when we really don't

 8   mean every year.   It would be a whole lot

 9   better if we said what we meant.   And since

10   we set the statute of limitations at five

11   years, we pick five years and just say the

12   last five calendar years.   Even if you have

13   that misinterpretation about well, you

14   could start from the time -- I think you

15   would be a lot closer to saying what you

16   mean by changing it to every five years,

17   the last five calendar years then just

18   saying every calendar year.   Because you

19   could say every calendar year since the

20   regulation was passed, I mean, if you want

21   to take that sort of interpretation.   The

22   clock starts when we pass the regulation,

23   which I don't think is the right

24   interpretation, but --

25                  DR. SHEEDY:   I think that we can
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 1   make it work if we put "has actual

 2   emissions" in each of the last five

 3   calendar years that are 40 tons -- in each

 4   of the last five calendar years.

 5                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'm in favor of

 6   making that one change to the proposal.

 7                  MS. MYERS:   Joyce, read that back

 8   to me, please.

 9                  DR. SHEEDY:   Has actual emissions

10   in each of the last five calendar years

11   that are 40 tons per year or less in each

12   regulated air pollutant.

13                  MS. MYERS:   So what happens if

14   they have four out of five?

15                  DR. SHEEDY:   Then they'll have to

16   wait another year.

17                  MR. KILPATRICK:   It's trying to

18   get the ones that are on a decline, so if

19   they only meet four, they've got to wait

20   until they get five years to comply.

21                  MS. MYERS:   Five consecutive

22   years of less than 40 tons.

23                  MR. KILPATRICK:   That's right.

24                  DR. SHEEDY:   What we're trying to

25   --
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 1                  MR. KILPATRICK:   And it will

 2   block out the ones that are going up and

 3   down, because you have to have five years

 4   of data, five consecutive years.

 5                  DR. SHEEDY:   We thought it would

 6   be more work for industry and for us if you

 7   could hop in and out of permit exempt

 8   status.

 9                  MS. MYERS:   So the language that

10   you read said something about -- read that

11   one more time for me, please.

12                  DR. SHEEDY:   Has actual emissions

13   in each of the last five calendar years

14   that are 40 tons per year or less of each

15   regulated air pollutant.

16                  MS. MYERS:   Does it need to be --

17   do we need to rephrase that to five

18   consecutive calendar years?

19                  MR. KILPATRICK:   It says the last

20   five, but that means consecutive.

21                  DR. SHEEDY:   Five consecutive.

22                  MS. MYERS:   It says in each of

23   the last five.   Five consecutive years --

24   there is a little bit of difference I'm

25   hearing on five consecutive years of forty
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 1   tons or less.

 2                  MR. KILPATRICK:   The OIPA is

 3   probably going to say they just as soon we

 4   don't change it, because then it's up to

 5   them to interpret what every means.   They

 6   might interpret it to mean two consecutive

 7   years.

 8                  MS. BURKHALTER:   Well, just a

 9   quick comment.   You know, I had a comment

10   about this in just that we were making an

11   assumption, but I was listening to some

12   folks talk behind me and around me to the

13   side and I guess their presumption was that

14   once you claim it from that point forward,

15   it's every calendar year forward that that

16   would apply.   That's their assumption.   And

17   if you include a time frame, then from my

18   perspective you would exclude some people

19   unnecessarily that could really apply for

20   it if you put a five year or three year or

21   something like that.   As long as you are

22   compliant from that point forward, I mean,

23   that's the whole point is where you are

24   permit exempt, so, that's my comment.

25                  DR. SHEEDY:   Well, that point
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 1   forward would be the effective date of the

 2   rule; is that correct?

 3                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Well, maybe you

 4   better discuss the thing, because it could

 5   be -- if you're trying to block out the

 6   ones that are going up and down, you could

 7   say in the last year.   So if a facility

 8   last year went above, they now are out of

 9   permit exempt.   The next year if they go

10   below, they become permit exempt, they will

11   be flip-flopping and you may not want that

12   to happen.   You may want to consider how do

13   you write the language so that you

14   accomplish what you want to do.

15                  DR. SHEEDY:   We definitely don't

16   want the flip-flopping.

17                  MS. MYERS:   That's why I was

18   looking at five consecutive years 40 tons

19   or less.

20                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Well, the last

21   five years does the same thing. 

22   Consecutive, even less, seem to do the same

23   thing.   That's what the intention was,

24   anyway.

25                  DR. SHEEDY:   Sharon, did you want
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 1   it -- how did you want it to read?   In each

 2   of the last five consecutive years or --

 3                  MS. MYERS:   40 tons or less for

 4   five consecutive years.

 5                  DR. SHEEDY:   40 tons or less for

 6   five consecutive years.

 7                  MS. MYERS:   If you go 40 tons and

 8   40 tons and drop down below and then you go

 9   back up to 45, that's not five consecutive

10   years.   You would still need to maintain a

11   permit.

12                  MR. WILSON:   I think it ought to

13   say the previous reporting period. 

14   Companies are not going to want to go out

15   and get a permit because they're emitting

16   45 tons.   It's incentive.

17                  MR. TERRILL:   And we're not --

18   I'm not going to create a problem here

19   where we have got to go out and do massive

20   verification on this thing in order to have

21   a level playing field, and that's what --

22   we're getting into a situation here where

23   we've got a bigger problem then -- because

24   I've already got a PBR written.   

25             I mean, we can fee every -- we can
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 1   permit and fee every single one of them

 2   right now, if we wanted to expend that

 3   effort and we're just about to the point

 4   where I can do that easier than I can do

 5   this.   So, you know, I'll stick with what I

 6   said earlier.   I would propose we pass this

 7   rule as it is, we'll let it -- we'll

 8   implement it for a year, nine months to a

 9   year, we'll come back and fix things that

10   need to be fixed because you can imagine,

11   if we're struggling with this simple

12   concept, what else have we missed or, you

13   know, we've been looking at this for so

14   long and this has not come up.   

15             We just didn't think this was that

16   big a deal and obviously neither did the

17   group or we would have had this discussion

18   before now.   So I'll stick with what I said

19   before.   Let's pass this rule as it is,

20   let's let it work for nine months to a

21   year, we'll come back and do a report and

22   tell you how it's working, if nothing else,

23   and allow for comments from folks to say,

24   well, it's not working for me, look at

25   this.   
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 1                  MR. BRANECKY:   Well, I guess I

 2   hate to pass a rule that has confusion

 3   already built into it.   

 4                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, then, carry

 5   it over.

 6                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I've come around

 7   to thinking that we may create more

 8   confusion or create other problems by

 9   trying to change it on the floor.

10                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes, I've got that

11   concern, too.

12                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I think the best

13   thing to do is do exactly what Eddie

14   suggests, go ahead and pass it and people

15   can think about this section and come back

16   later.

17                  MR. BRANECKY:   But I think what

18   everybody needs to understand is, what is

19   the intent?   I mean, what is DEQ's intent

20   behind this Section A?

21                  MR. TERRILL:   They just need to

22   trust us.

23                  MR. BRANECKY:   I'm going to get

24   it on record, is what I'm going to do. 

25   What I think people need to understand is
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 1   what it is, what your intent is here.   And

 2   then we can fix the language later, but we

 3   need to understand.

 4                  DR. SHEEDY:   And our intent is

 5   that we don't have minor facilities that,

 6   because of market fluctuation, economy,

 7   that sort of thing, that one year they are

 8   25 and they say, oh, we're permit exempt. 

 9   And then maybe the next year or the year

10   after they are 41 because, hey, we have a

11   market and so they've come up.   

12             We don't want them going in and out

13   of permit exempt status, so that if they

14   need a permit one year then they won't need

15   it next year and then they'll need it

16   again, because that would cause a lot more

17   work than just to give them the permit in

18   the first place.

19                  MR. BRANECKY:   So from this point

20   in time, I go back five calendar years and

21   I'm below 40 tons, I'm permit exempt?

22                  DR. SHEEDY:   Well, the way it's

23   written now --   

24                  MR. BRANECKY:   No?

25                  DR. SHEEDY:   -- you don't have to
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 1   do that.   The way it's written now, if

 2   you're below 40, you could be permit

 3   exempt, but you better stay under permit

 4   exempt.   Yeah.   And if you go above it

 5   after --

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   As long as

 7   everybody understands that and we can fix

 8   the language later.

 9                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Any further

10   questions from the public or the Council?

11                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   Can I make one

12   comment?

13                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Please

14   identify yourself.

15                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   My name is Lalit

16   Bhatnagar, I'm with Martin Marietta

17   Materials.   I think with some of the gray

18   areas that are part of this rule, I think

19   this is -- this is an extremely good

20   progressive step.   I think what we are,

21   personally from the industry, the rock

22   crushing people, I think what we would

23   recommend that it is important to create,

24   time to move forward with the rule and

25   create the permit exempt facility.   
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 1             There are details to be worked out. 

 2   I think there are concerns about NSPS and

 3   some of the timing that is being brought

 4   forth by several other people, but I think

 5   we ought to take a forward step, but at the

 6   same time, I think what we've been hearing

 7   is a commitment to revisit this sometime

 8   down the road and I think what our

 9   recommendation would be, that I think it's

10   important to pass the -- create and pass

11   the permit exemption category and possibly

12   create a workgroup where we can look into

13   more details and come back to the Council

14   with appropriate rule changes within next

15   six months, nine months, something like

16   that.   Thank you.

17                  MS. MYERS:   If there is no

18   further questions or comments from the

19   Council or the public, I would like to

20   entertain a motion, please.

21                  MR. BRANECKY:   I will make the

22   motion that we approve Subchapters 5 and 7

23   as presented to us today with the

24   corrections that were made, the additions

25   that were made, with DEQ, with also the
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 1   understanding that DEQ will continue to

 2   review and fine-tune this rule and will

 3   bring it back to the Council as necessary.

 4                  MS. MYERS:   I have a motion.   Is

 5   there a second?

 6                  MR. TREEMAN: I'll second.

 7                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion and

 8   a second.   Myrna, would you call roll,

 9   please.

10                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Rose.

11                  MS. ROSE:   Yes.

12                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Martin.

13                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.

14                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

15                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

16                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

17                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

18                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

19                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

20                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

21                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

22                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Treeman.

23                  MR. TREEMAN:   Yes.

24                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

25                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.
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 1                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

 2                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.

 3             Could we call about a ten minute

 4   break, please?

 5                  MR. TERRILL:   You're the boss.

 6                  MS. MYERS:   We'll take a break

 7   for about ten minutes.   Be back on time, we

 8   will start without you.   Time out, time

 9   out.   

10                  MR. TERRILL:   We've got a parking

11   issue because we've got so many folks here. 

12   So the security guard has asked us that

13   anybody that's parked directly north of the

14   building to move across the street to the

15   church parking lot during the break.   That

16   will allow folks that are just here, coming

17   and going, to get their business done. 

18   We're totally out of parking out there.   So

19   if you can do that, that would be good.

20

21                    (END OF PROCEEDINGS)

22

23

24

25    
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 1                    C E R T I F I C A T E

 2   STATE OF OKLAHOMA     )
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 9   foregoing proceedings were tape recorded
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20   28th day of January, 2004.

21

                         ______________________

22                       CHRISTY A. MYERS, C.S.R.

                         Certificate No. 00310

23

24

25

                                                              1

 1

 2

 3         DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 4                     AIR QUALITY COUNCIL

 5                      STATE OF OKLAHOMA

 6

 7

 8

                              * * * * *

 9

                  TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

10

             OF PUBLIC HEARING ON ITEM NO. 5B

11

                          OAC 252:100-13

12

                            OPEN BURNING

13

         HELD ON JANUARY 14, 2003, AT 9:00 A.M.

14

                  IN OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA

15

                              * * * * *

16

17

18

19

     REPORTED BY: Christy A. Myers, CSR

20

21

22

23                  MYERS REPORTING SERVICE

                          (405) 721-2882 

24

25

                                                                   2

 1

                     MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

 2

     DAVID BRANECKY - MEMBER

 3

     BILL BREISCH - MEMBER

 4

     GARY KILPATRICK - MEMBER

 5

     BOB LYNCH - VICE-CHAIR

 6

     GARY MARTIN - MEMBER

 7

     SHARON MYERS - CHAIR

 8

     SANDRA ROSE - MEMBER

 9

     JOEL WILSON - MEMBER

10

11

                              STAFF MEMBERS

12

13   MYRNA BRUCE - SECRETARY

14   EDDIE TERRILL - DIVISION DIRECTOR

15   SCOTT THOMAS - AQD

16   JOYCE SHEEDY - AQD

17   PAM DIZIKES - LEGAL

18   KENDAL CODY - LEGAL

19   LISA DONOVAN - AQD 

20   MAX PRICE - AQD

21   BEVERLY BOTCHLET-SMITH - AQD

22   MICHELLE MARTINEZ - AQD

23   CHERYL BRADLEY - AQD

24   PAT SULLIVAN - AQD

25

                                                   Christy A. Myers            

                                                                                     Certified Shorthand Reporter

                                                                   3

 1

 2

                             PROCEEDINGS

 3

 4

                    MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   The next

 5

     item on the agenda is Item 5B, OAC 252:100-

 6

     13, Open Burning.   And Ms. Lisa Donovan

 7

     will give the staff position on the

 8

     proposed rule.

 9

                    MS. DONOVAN:   Members of the

10

     Council, ladies and gentlemen, the

11

     Department is proposing amendments to OAC

12

     252:100-13, Open Burning.

13

               The purpose of these changes is to

14

     clarify the scope of the conditions that

15

     allow for open burning.   While the rule is

16

     open, there are also a couple of

17

     housekeeping measures and corrections that

18

     will be made.

19

               During the 2003 spring legislative

20

     session, a new law was proposed regarding

21

     open burning for the purposes of fire

22

     training.   The law establishes requirements

23

     for municipal fire departments wishing to

24

     conduct fire training.   It includes

25
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 1   conditions for notification of a planned

 2   fire training activity and inspection and

 3   removal of asbestos, asphalt and lead

 4   containing materials prior to the training

 5   taking place.   It also addresses waste

 6   disposal following the burn.   The law was

 7   signed by Governor Henry on May 21, 2003,

 8   and became effective on November 1, 2003.

 9             For conformity, the Department

10   proposes to incorporate this statute by

11   reference into Subchapter 13.

12             The following changes and additions

13   to the Open Burning Rule are also proposed:

14             Definitions of "fire training",

15   "human-made structure" and "yard brush"

16   will be added to Section 13-2, to address

17   terms in use in the rest of the rule.

18             Section 13-7 has been amended to

19   clarify the acceptable conditions under

20   which open burning may occur.   13-7(a)

21   refers to State Statute Title 27A Section

22   2-5-106.1, the new fire training law.   13-

23   7(a) also exempts industrial and commercial

24   facilities and fire training schools that

25   conduct on-site fire training from the
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 1   requirements of the statute.

 2             New Section 13-7(h) allows for the

 3   burning of yard brush on the property where

 4   the waste is generated.   Yard brush

 5   includes "cut or broken branches, leaves,

 6   limbs, shrubbery, and tree trimmings".

 7             Revisions are also proposed for

 8   Section 13-9 to correct an error in

 9   numbering, to clarify the general

10   conditions and requirements for allowed

11   open burning, and to correct an omission of

12   the exemption for hydrocarbon flares from

13   the prohibition against burning between

14   sunset and sunrise.

15             Several changes to the proposed rule

16   were made as a result of comments received

17   at the last Council meeting.

18             In the definition of "yard brush",

19   leaves have been added to the list of

20   acceptable materials that may be burned and

21   the words "in-ground" have been added

22   before "tree stumps" in the list of

23   unacceptable materials.

24             The language limiting burning on

25   ozone alert days and burn ban days has been
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 1   removed from 13-9.

 2             Also, the fire training notification

 3   form required by the state statute has been

 4   prepared and is ready for use.   Copies of

 5   the form have been provided to the Council

 6   and are available on the table.   The form

 7   is also available on DEQ's website.

 8             Since the publication of the notice,

 9   two additional changes have been made to

10   the definition of "yard brush".   The phrase

11   "and tree trimmings" has been changed to

12   "or tree trimmings" and the word "other"

13   prior to non-vegetated material has been

14   removed.   

15             The definition now reads, "yard

16   brush means cut or broken branches, leaves,

17   limbs, shrubbery, or tree trimmings.   It

18   does not include refuse, grass clippings,

19   in-ground tree stumps or any non-vegetative

20   material".

21             Notice of the proposed rule change

22   was published in the Oklahoma Register on

23   December 15, 2003, and comments were

24   requested from members of the public.   The

25   EPA supported the proposed changes in

                                                   Christy A. Myers            
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 1   comments received October 1, 2003.   No

 2   additional comments have been received.

 3             This is the fourth time for the Air

 4   Quality Council to consider these

 5   amendments and staff requests that the

 6   Council recommend the proposed rules as

 7   amended to the Board for adoption.

 8                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Any

 9   questions from the Council of Ms. Donovan?

10                  MR. WILSON:   I have a question. 

11   I was trying to find in here where we use

12   the term "products of combustion".   Do we

13   only use it in the definition of "open

14   burning"?

15                  MS. DONOVAN:   I don't know the

16   answer to that, Joel.   It's not something

17   that I looked at in these revisions.   If

18   you can't find it somewhere else, I'm

19   guessing that's the only place it is.

20                  MR. WILSON:   It just seems odd to

21   me, but I'm okay with that.

22                  MR. TERRILL:   And there is no

23   telling where that came from, either. 

24   That's been in the rule for twenty-five

25   years.
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 1                  MS. MYERS:   So you're thinking

 2   that it needs to be products of incomplete

 3   combustion?

 4                  MR. WILSON:   It just seems

 5   excessive wording to me.

 6                  MS. MYERS:   Are there any other

 7   questions or comments from the public?

 8                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   I've got

 9   three that have indicated they want to

10   speak at this time.   Lester Branch from

11   Guthrie Fire Department.

12                  MR. BRANCH:   Morning, my name is

13   Lester Branch.   I'm the Fire Marshal at

14   Guthrie Fire Department.   In Guthrie, we

15   have, in the past, allowed burning, of tree

16   trimmings, brush trimmings, and some

17   leaves.   In the recent past, there has been

18   some confusion om whether that was legal or

19   not and so we stopped it for a period of

20   time.   

21             I encourage that you adopt this, I

22   think this rule will allow us to continue

23   to do what we did in the past, which was

24   burn yard waste and through your

25   definition.   So, thank you.
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 1                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Jerry

 2   Gammill from Guthrie Public Schools.

 3                  MR. GAMMILL:   I just want to

 4   concur with everything that he said.   We

 5   just want to be able to burn as we did

 6   before.   The provisions that have been

 7   added in here really do take care of

 8   everything that we were concerned about. 

 9   Thank you.

10                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   And Bob

11   Kellogg, from Shipley and Kellogg.

12                  MR. KELLOGG:   Thank you.   Members

13   of the Council, ladies and gentlemen, these

14   words are all clear and I'm not going to

15   suggest that you make any more clear.   The

16   -- I want to applaud the DEQ for the work

17   on these rules for open burning of brush. 

18   I've long been concerned that a brush

19   burning ban was too broad.   And because of

20   my age, I know how they began back in the

21   days of Jack Gallian and the Fire Marshal. 

22   I remember all of those things.   And I know

23   that the DEQ has a difficult task with

24   overcoming federal inertia.   But these

25   rules are good.   They'll have little, if

                                                   Christy A. Myers            
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 1   any, impact on air quality.   They'll have a

 2   great savings on waste disposal and the DEQ

 3   is doing a good job with these and they

 4   should go forward.   Thank you, very much.

 5                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Any other

 6   comments from the public?   Questions from

 7   the Council?

 8                  MS. MYERS:   If there is no

 9   further comments or questions, I would

10   entertain a motion, please.

11                  MR. MARTIN:   I move approval of

12   the new change in the policy.

13                  MR. BRANECKY:   With the changes

14   proposed today by DEQ?

15                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.

16                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion.   Do

17   we have a second?

18                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'll second.

19                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion and

20   a second.   Would you call roll, please,

21   Myrna.

22                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Rose.

23                  MS. ROSE:   Yes.

24                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Martin.

25                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.
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 1                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

 2                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

 3                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

 4                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

 5                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

 6                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

 7                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

 8                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

 9                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Treeman.

10                  MR. TREEMAN:   Yes.

11                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

12                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

13                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

14                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.

15

16                    (END OF PROCEEDINGS)

17

18

19

20    

21

22

23

24

25
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 1

 2

 3                    C E R T I F I C A T E

 4   STATE OF OKLAHOMA     )

                                   )         ss:

 5   COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA    )

 6             I, CHRISTY A. MYERS, Certified

 7   Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of

 8   Oklahoma, do hereby certify that the above

 9   proceedings is the truth, the whole truth,

10   and nothing but the truth; that the

11   foregoing proceedings were tape recorded

12   and taken in stenography by me and

13   thereafter transcribed under my direction;

14   that said proceedings were taken on the

15   14th day of January, 2004, at Oklahoma

16   City, Oklahoma; and that I am neither

17   attorney for nor relative of any of said

18   parties, nor otherwise interested in said

19   action.

20             IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

21   set my hand and official seal on this, the
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23

                         ______________________
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 1

 2

                             PROCEEDINGS

 3

 4

                    MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   The next

 5

     item is No. 5C, OAC 252:100-29, Control of

 6

     Fugitive Dust, and we call upon a

 7

     representative from the Petitioners

 8

     bringing this proposed rule.   Rick Abraham,

 9

     are you presenting today?

10

                    MR. INAUDIBLE:   Just a moment, he

11

     stepped out..

12

                    MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Rick, before

13

     you take the podium, we want to call on

14

     Madam Chairman, for just a short comment.

15

                    MS. MYERS:   I just want to make

16

     sure that everybody understands that this

17

     presentation is being done by a Petitioner

18

     who has asked for a rule change.   We all

19

     need to remember that the focus needs to

20

     remain on this rule with this change.   We

21

     are not getting into enforcement issues. 

22

     We can't.   There may be some comments

23

     pertaining to why this rule has been

24

     developed and petitioned, but if it starts

25
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 1   getting out of control in terms of trying

 2   to get too negative about any facilities or

 3   anything, then I will interrupt.

 4                  MR. ABRAHAM:   All right.   

 5                  MS. MYERS:   And you need to state

 6   your name, please, for the court reporter.

 7                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Hello.   My name is

 8   Rick Abraham and I'm speaking for the

 9   Petitioners, which is Pace International

10   Union, Ponca Tribe of Oklahoma, and

11   concerned neighbors of Continental Carbon.

12             And part of my presentation will be

13   -- include comments from the Ponca Tribe

14   and concerned neighbors.   And I'm an

15   environmental consultant working with all

16   of those groups.

17             We're here today at the suggestion

18   of DEQ because of continuing fugitive dust

19   emissions problems at Continental Carbon

20   Company up in Ponca City, Oklahoma.   In the

21   process of discussing those problems with

22   the Secretary of the Environment for

23   Oklahoma, DEQ legal staff, including the

24   Deputy General Counsel, it came to our

25   attention that the problems in Ponca City
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 1   are symbolic of problems -- fugitive dust

 2   problems in other parts of the state.   

 3             And the solution, we were told by

 4   DEQ staff, was to change the rules.   And we

 5   needed to do that, because the rules

 6   prevented the Agency from taking

 7   enforcement action and stopping those

 8   fugitive dust emissions that have been

 9   problems for many years and our problems

10   continuing to this day.

11             The rules that are written -- and

12   this is all very simple, it's not rocket

13   science, the rules require that fugitive

14   dust emissions be visibly seen crossing the

15   property line of the facility and onto

16   adjacent properties.

17             Now, the DEQ records are replete

18   with complaints of citizens waking up to

19   find black particulates in their houses, on

20   their property; and you have the company

21   admitting that their emissions have caused

22   many of these impacts; and you have

23   statements from the plant manager to DEQ

24   investigators; you have the company's own

25   internal report where they talk about these
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 1   emissions traveling in the wind, going in

 2   people's homes.   They even pay to wash

 3   people's homes occasionally.

 4                  MS. MYERS:   Excuse me, Rick. 

 5   This rule, these changes --

 6                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Okay.

 7                  MS. MYERS:   -- has to be

 8   presented.   You're getting into some areas

 9   now that go into the public comment portion

10   of it.

11                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Okay.

12                  MS. MYERS:   But it's got to be

13   this rule with your proposed changes that

14   you're explaining right now, please.

15                  MR. ABRAHAM:   I understand.   The

16   point is that this rule needs to be changed

17   because of very real situations that exist. 

18   Continental Carbon is an example of those

19   situations and the reason why the rule

20   needs to be changed.   

21             Now, how do we -- someone raised the

22   question last time, how do you know these

23   emissions are -- differentiate between

24   event or stack emissions versus fugitive

25   dust emissions.
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 1                  MS. MYERS:   Rick, I'm sorry, but

 2   it needs to be the focus on the language in

 3   the rule, the proposed changes that you're

 4   making, and then we'll get into the public

 5   discussion part of it after you do that. 

 6   You've got to present the rule first,

 7   please.

 8                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Okay.   Do I need to

 9   read it or do folks have that in front of

10   them?

11                  MS. MYERS:   I think you need to

12   present it like our staff normally presents

13   it, which means discussing this rule by

14   chapter, by subsection, and the language

15   that you propose to change.

16                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Okay.   We're not

17   the staff, we're members of the public.   We

18   were told to present this.   We're not

19   lawyers, we're not your legal staff.   We're

20   going to do the best we can.

21                  MS. MYERS:   I understand that.

22                  MR. ABRAHAM:   And talk about a

23   real situation and why this rule is needed.

24                  MS. MYERS:   I understand that.

25                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Okay.
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 1                  MS. MYERS:   You still have to

 2   focus on this rule, this change.

 3                  MR. ABRAHAM:   That's exactly what

 4   I'm doing.   The rule needs to be changed

 5   because it now requires people to see

 6   emissions crossing the property line. 

 7   Common sense will tell you that for a

 8   facility that's in operation twenty-four

 9   hours a day, that means half the time those

10   emissions can't be seen.   So that rule is

11   practically -- it's not enforceable.   

12             The DEQ investigators aren't there

13   on the weekends, they aren't there on

14   holidays, and so fugitive dust emissions

15   occur when they are not visible and so this

16   rule is non-enforceable.   

17             What we -- what the rule change

18   proposes to do is remove the word "visible"

19   from the rules and insert language which

20   allows the DEQ to consider "other credible

21   evidence".

22             For instance, if the DEQ

23   investigators go to a site, find dust

24   emissions on people's property, they can

25   consider evidence such as wind direction,
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 1   pattern of dispersal, whether or not there

 2   was some kind of event at the facility in

 3   question, and determine then if a violation

 4   notice needs to be issued.   So it's very

 5   simple.   

 6             And I'll just say, when you look at

 7   the rules for grain, feed or seed

 8   operations, they don't have to be visible. 

 9   The rules read that fugitive dust

10   emissions, they can't release fugitive dust

11   emissions which impact -- I'm generalizing

12   here -- nearby properties and interfere

13   with the use and enjoyment of people's

14   properties, but it does require those

15   emissions to be visible.   And we're talking

16   about grain and seed and feed operations

17   versus other facilities like Continental

18   Carbon whose emissions are known to be

19   dangerous to human health and the

20   environment.   

21             So -- and I understand -- there is a

22   letter from EPA, which I'm sure everyone's

23   going to talk about because they were asked

24   to comment on this proposed rule change. 

25   The EPA doesn't oppose the changes we are
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 1   asking for, but then they pretty much say

 2   they're not necessary because there is a

 3   rule which requires the Agency to consider

 4   credible evidence in investigating these

 5   kinds of complaints.   

 6             Then the question is: why do you

 7   have one rule that conflicts with another

 8   rule within the Agency?   I think what needs

 9   to happen is to take the "visible" out so

10   that the Agency can consider "other

11   credible evidence" and let's start to deal

12   with these problems, not only at Ponca City

13   but at other places around the state.   It's

14   common sense, it's not rocket science, it's

15   been studied enough.   

16             We've talked about this back in

17   October, we met with the Secretary of

18   Environment back in June and a year before

19   that, folks came up here and talked about

20   the need to deal with this problem.

21             Like I said, we're here at the

22   suggestion of the DEQ staff and this is the

23   rule change.

24             For the rest of my comments, I would

25   like to introduce the representatives from
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 1   the Ponca Tribe and one citizen.

 2                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Okay.   Rick,

 3   are they signed up here as people that are

 4   commenting from the public?

 5                  MR. ABRAHAM:   No, they're not.

 6                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Okay.

 7                  MR. ABRAHAM:   They're not. 

 8   They're petitioners as well as Pace.

 9                  MR. BRANECKY:   But the rule

10   change has been proposed to us.   At this

11   point, should we not allow them to speak

12   during the public comment period?   I mean,

13   you presented the rule change.   You want to

14   take "visible" out and you didn't address

15   the striking of "adjacent properties".

16                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Okay.

17                  MR. BRANECKY:   And then you also

18   talk about "credible evidence".

19                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Right, right.

20                  MR. BRANECKY:   Those are the

21   three changes you're proposing to us,

22   today?

23                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Yes.

24                  MR. BRANECKY:   Okay.   

25                  MR. ABRAHAM:   If you don't want
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 1   to hear from them, say so.

 2                  MR. BRANECKY:   Well, I'm not

 3   saying I don't, I'm saying we may hear from

 4   them at a later time.

 5                  MR. TERRILL:   Let me make this

 6   suggestion.   There is really no protocol

 7   for doing this and I don't think we object

 8   to doing it this way.   I mean, they're not

 9   signed up to talk.   I mean, this is

10   designed to let everybody -- I understand

11   what you're saying.

12                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.   I'm not

13   opposed to them talking, either.

14                  MR. TERRILL:   I know you're not.

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   I was trying to

16   keep some order so I can follow what's

17   going on here.

18                  MR. ABRAHAM:   This is what we

19   discussed how we said we would do it, and

20   their part of it would be brief and they

21   have not signed up for the public comment

22   which would cut that period shorter.

23                  MR. BRANECKY:   Okay.

24                  MR. ABRAHAM:   But whatever is

25   your pleasure.   If you want to stick them
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 1   in the back, we'll do that.

 2                  MS. MYERS:   We'll go ahead and

 3   let them speak at this point and then DEQ

 4   will have a presentation.

 5                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Okay.

 6                  MS. MYERS:   And then we'll open

 7   it up for the public comment period and if

 8   anybody is not signed up yet, please do.

 9                  MR. ABRAHAM:   Thank you.   In

10   terms of the "adjacent", we just want to

11   make sure that the only properties covered

12   by this rule are not people who are

13   adjacent, right next to the facility,

14   because there are properties impacted by

15   fugitive dust emissions that are, say, for

16   instance, you know, a block away instead of

17   right up against the fence.   That's why

18   that change was suggested.   Thank you.   

19             Julie, would you like to come up,

20   representative for the Ponca Tribe.

21                  MS. FAW FAW:   My name is Julie

22   Faw Faw and I work for the Ponca Tribe's

23   Office of Environmental Management and I'm

24   here at the behest of our Tribal Chairman

25   Dwight Buffalohead as a representative for
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 1   the Tribe and the people that are impacted

 2   by this rule.

 3             I am basically here to say the Tribe

 4   supports and thinks this is a very

 5   necessary change for DEQ to help protect

 6   the people that live in our area, our

 7   tribal members, and that Mr. Abraham

 8   addressed the language that we have

 9   requested be changed, not only about the

10   visibility -- and especially because, as he

11   stated, there is -- there is day and night. 

12   You can't say these things at night.   If

13   it's required to be visible, then there is

14   twelve hours a day that it is not a visible

15   or investigatable matter.   And "adjacent

16   to" is also -- we have tribal housing that

17   is directly adjacent to and they suffer the

18   impacts far worse.   But we have people

19   within miles that are still affected by

20   this because there is also wind that is

21   taking this thing out of the, "directly

22   adjacent to area," and the Tribe supports

23   this rule change and thinks that it is very

24   necessary for the DEQ to consider.   Is

25   there any questions?
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 1                  THE REPORTER:   Could you spell

 2   your last name?

 3                  MS. FAW FAW:   It's F-a-w space F-

 4   a-w.

 5                  THE REPORTER:   Thank you.

 6                  MS. MYERS:   Thank you.   

 7                  MR. VANCE:   I'm Bud Vance.   I'm a

 8   citizen that lives south of Ponca near the

 9   carbon black.   I'm just here to speak for

10   them, the neighbors there and everybody

11   living around there concerned with this. 

12   We have this problem continuously.   I

13   wanted to mention a few points, like, this

14   is some of the stuff that was taken off the

15   table there yesterday morning in a yard and

16   then Sunday we done it and yesterday --

17   Tuesday, it was the same thing.   And I have

18   some pictures here of animals that lives

19   with this, too.   I don't know whether we

20   can pass this around or you guys want to

21   look at them or do whatever you want to do. 

22   Take a look at them, they are supposed to

23   white faced cows.

24                  THE REPORTER:   They are supposed

25   to be what?
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 1                  MR. VANCE:   Where that's black,

 2   that's supposed to be white on the cows. 

 3   Anyway, we have this problem all the time

 4   and we need to -- like my daughter had

 5   babies and she would take them to the

 6   babysitter in the day and she would bring

 7   them up there in the evening to play and

 8   they was playing, and then they would clean

 9   them up and then she would take them to the

10   babysitter.   So one day the babysitter said

11   to Debbie, said, we're concerned, Debbie,

12   we have a question to ask you.   They said,

13   well, all right.   She said, we want to know

14   what's on them kids of yours on their

15   elbows and knees and stuff, that's on there

16   and it don't come off.   She said, that's

17   carbon black.   And they said, well, that

18   probably wouldn't be very healthy for them

19   to be playing in that vicinity.   

20             It's just aggravation all the time

21   of what we go through there with this all

22   the time.   Just like yesterday morning I

23   went out to -- when I was going outside I

24   kind of -- I've got that porch rail there

25   so I always get a little help out of it
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 1   when I lay my hand on it, and I lift it up

 2   and it's just black, it covers everything,

 3   it don't miss anything in the house and

 4   out.   We get it throughout the whole

 5   property and it's in the house, too.   So

 6   it's all over and I just wanted to mention

 7   -- and these are the black that showed on

 8   Sunday and Monday there.   In fact, it was

 9   Sunday we were going out there to that

10   barbecue and I told my wife, I said, I'll

11   go out there and clean that table off,

12   first.   I had come in and showed her that,

13   she said, I don't think so.   And then

14   Monday it was the same -- I mean Tuesday,

15   it was the same thing.   So it's continuous. 

16   It's always been, but it's certainly not

17   getting any better, because you can see by

18   this right here on these -- on this

19   evidence that we've got of it.   

20             And I just wanted to say about that

21   -- about coming over the fence, I don't

22   know about this coming over the fence and

23   seeing it and all that, you know, but I'll

24   tell you what they have done.   The people

25   up north, they've already bought some of
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 1   the properties and moved them out so that

 2   just shows you they are running people out

 3   of the community there.   That one woman

 4   sold out, her girl was sick, had asthma and

 5   stuff, and she said she had to do something

 6   -- but they bought them out and they bought

 7   out two or three others, whatever, and that

 8   just -- and them houses is there and --

 9                  MS. MYERS:   Excuse me, Mr. Vance. 

10   At this portion of our meeting, we need to

11   be addressing the rule and the changes.   If

12   you would like to speak in the public forum

13   after this part of it is over, then you may

14   do so.   At this time -- at this time, we

15   need to focus on this rule, the changes

16   that are proposed, and the potential

17   changes or impact on all industry in

18   Oklahoma.

19                  MR. VANCE:   Well, getting into

20   the houses and stuff, you mean?

21                  MS. MYERS:   Not right now.

22                  MR. VANCE:   Not now?

23                  MS. MYERS:   No.   You may have an

24   opportunity to speak later, if you would

25   like to.
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 1                  MR. VANCE:   You may give me an

 2   opportunity to speak later?

 3                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.

 4                  MR. VANCE:   Well, it don't matter

 5   if you don't want me to, I was just going

 6   to tell you --

 7                  MS. MYERS:   No.   I'm not trying

 8   to prevent you from speaking, but this

 9   portion of the process we need to focus on

10   the rule, the proposed changes and the

11   impact on the State of Oklahoma.

12                  MR. VANCE:   Well, I think you

13   need to know what's happening up there.

14                  MS. MYERS:   I will offer you that

15   opportunity to express that opinion.

16                  MR. VANCE:   I appreciate you

17   listening and thank you.

18                  MS. MYERS:   Okay.   You may speak

19   after this portion is over, sir.

20                  MR. VANCE:   This thing needs to

21   be taken care of.

22                  MS. MYERS:   I understand.   You

23   may speak after this portion is over.

24                  MR. VANCE:   Well, I better be

25   quiet.   I imagine my time is about up,
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 1   isn't it?

 2                  MS. MYERS:   Yes, sir, would you

 3   please sit down.   

 4                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   I call upon

 5   Pat Sullivan of DEQ staff for the staff

 6   response.

 7                  MR. TERRILL:   Before Pat starts,

 8   let me -- let me tee this up just a little

 9   bit.   At the last Council meeting, we did

10   not come prepared to discuss anything

11   relative to this proposed rule change.   And

12   there was quite a bit of discussion that

13   would lead one to believe that staff and

14   the division didn't really know what we

15   were doing relative to this particular

16   rule.   

17             And so we believe that what we need

18   to do is do a little bit of education as to

19   what's gone on previous to this time and

20   some things that we are doing better and

21   the way we're handling fugitive dust under

22   Subchapter 29.   

23             So this is a little bit -- a little

24   bit longer than we normally would make a

25   presentation, but it's not too long, but I
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 1   think it will give everyone an idea about

 2   how we're dealing with this particular rule

 3   as it's currently written and some of the

 4   things that we think we're doing better

 5   because of complaints we've gotten from

 6   citizens on various industry relative to

 7   fugitive dust.   

 8             So, with that, Pat, you're on.

 9                  MS. SULLIVAN:   Thank you.   Madam

10   Chair, let me get this -- can you hear me? 

11   Madam Chair, Members of the Council, I'm

12   Pat Sullivan and I am an Environmental

13   Specialist with the Air Quality Division.

14             Let's begin by defining "fugitive

15   dust".   It is solid, airborne particulate

16   matter emitted from any source other than a

17   stack or chimney.

18             The Air Quality Division rules to

19   control fugitive dust are at OAC 252:100-

20   29.   The petitioners have proposed changes

21   to Section 3, Subsection (c), Paragraphs 1

22   and 2.   But let's not take those changes

23   out of context.

24             The purpose of Subchapter 29 in toto

25   is to control the release of fugitive dust
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 1   into the air.   Section 2 prohibits the

 2   operation of any fugitive dust source that

 3   enables fugitives to become airborne

 4   without the responsible party taking

 5   reasonable precautions.   Reasonable

 6   precautions are listed at OAC 252:100-29-3,

 7   1 through 6.

 8             And they are:   

 9             One.   Using water or chemicals in

10   demolition and construction projects.   

11             Two.   Applying water or chemicals to

12   stockpiles.   

13             Three.   Using mechanical

14   suppressants, like water sprays, hoods,

15   fans and dust collectors.   

16             Four.   Covering or wetting trucks,

17   trailers, and railroad cars.   

18             Five.   Cleaning streets and parking

19   lots.   

20             And six.   Planting grass, trees and

21   shrubs.

22             In the agency, we refer to these six

23   precautions as "housekeeping".   Note, we

24   have yet to use the word "visible" in

25   addressing the suppression of fugitive
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 1   dust.

 2             Now, we're at the portion of the

 3   rule the petitioners propose to change. 

 4   The proposed changes would delete "visible"

 5   in two places, once here, and then here. 

 6   Then the petitioners also propose to change

 7   "adjacent", which means "next to or nearby"

 8   to "other".

 9             But instead of deleting the word

10   "visible" right now, let's change it to

11   "invisible", because that emphasizes what

12   we, the rulemakers, deliberately left out.

13             Adding "invisible", the rule would

14   read "no person shall cause or allow the

15   discharge of any "invisible" fugitive dust

16   emissions beyond the property line so as to

17   damage "other" properties", and so forth.

18             Dropping "visible" from this section

19   of the rule amounts to the same thing as

20   adding "invisible" to the rule.   But the

21   intent of this portion of the rule is to

22   deal with dust emissions at boundaries, at

23   the property line.   And what it's saying is

24   "if you can see where the dust is coming

25   from, we can do something about it".   "If
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 1   you can see it, we can fix it".

 2             The Council last examined the

 3   fugitive dust rule in 2000 at its August

 4   and October meetings during the re-

 5   wright/de-wrong process.   The version of

 6   Subchapter 29 proposed to the August

 7   Council deleted the word "visible".   The

 8   issue was fully debated and the word 

 9   "visible" was retained in the rule. 

10   Transcripts are in your packets.

11             Let's get -- let's get some more

12   background.   We looked at rules in thirty-

13   one states.   Fourteen states rely upon a

14   stated visible assessment, meaning they use

15   the word "visible" or "opacity" in the

16   rule.   Seventeen states do not use the word

17   "visible".   But twenty-one states, whether

18   they use the word "visible" or not, have

19   rules virtually the same as the Oklahoma

20   rule.   And all rely heavily on

21   housekeeping.

22             There are some anomalies.   Two

23   states list fugitive dust as nuisance. 

24   These would be Mississippi and Oregon.

25             And three states have rules specific
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 1   to an industry, company or geographic

 2   division.   Those would be Michigan and

 3   Ohio, heavy industrial states; and New

 4   Mexico, who has a specific fugitive dust

 5   rule for the town of Hurley.

 6             But let's go back to the proposed

 7   rulemaking.

 8             Another change proposed by the

 9   petitioner is the addition of the concept

10   of "credible evidence" to Subchapter 29.

11             "Credible evidence" was originally

12   established in Subchapter 45 at the behest

13   of EPA.   It was sent to the Board by this

14   Council in November of 1994 and was adopted

15   as an emergency rule in January 1995 by

16   Governor David Walters.   Later that month,

17   Governor Frank Keating approved it as a

18   permanent rule.

19             Then in April of 2002, the Division

20   asked the Council to merge the requirements

21   of Subchapter 45 into Subchapters 8 and 43. 

22   "Credible evidence" became OAC 252:43-6. 

23   After three hearings, the Council sent the

24   proposed rule to the Board for approval at

25   their November 2002 meeting.   It became a
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 1   permanent rule in its new location in June

 2   2003 -- just this past June.   So the

 3   concept of "credible evidence" is already

 4   in our rules and has been put into every

 5   Title V permit written or renewed since

 6   June 2003.

 7             But what do we do about fugitive

 8   dust?   Word of fugitive dust problems

 9   almost always comes from our Environmental

10   Complaints and Local Services Division.   So

11   with the Chair's permission, I'd like to

12   ask Lynne Moss of ECLS to tell you what we

13   do.

14                  MS. MOSS:   Good morning.   The DEQ

15   was mandated by the Environmental Quality

16   Act of 1993 to develop a program to

17   investigate and resolve citizens

18   environmental complaints.   DEQ initiated a

19   customer-oriented program that included a

20   uniform investigative process, central

21   repository for all complaints, and direct

22   citizen involvement.

23             When we came together from three

24   state agencies in 1994, DEQ made the

25   complaints program one of its highest
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 1   priorities.   We developed a program that

 2   focuses on three main goals: to provide

 3   rapid response to each environmental

 4   complaint, to bring about regulatory

 5   compliance through a consistent and

 6   structured process, and to keep

 7   complainants informed throughout the

 8   process.

 9             The Complaints Office is within the

10   Environmental Complaints and Local Services

11   Division, because the seventy environmental

12   specialists in the thirty local field

13   offices across the state are the front line

14   in complaint investigation.

15             There are twelve specific elements

16   of the Environmental Complaints Program

17   that we believe make it unique in handling

18   environmental complaints.   

19             Number one is the hotline.   The

20   hotline was established so that citizens

21   could call free of charge, twenty-four

22   hours a day, seven days a week, three

23   hundred and sixty-five days a year.   The

24   hotline is manned by DEQ personnel who have

25   been school in environmental jurisdictional
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 1   issues.

 2             That eight hundred (800) number

 3   receives about ten thousand calls each and

 4   every year.   Within that ten thousand

 5   calls, we have logged for DEQ investigation

 6   an average of fifty-five hundred complaints

 7   in each of the last four years.

 8             DEQ's complaints program is unlike

 9   any other in that it is implemented in our

10   regulations.   We are required by regulation

11   to call a citizen within two working days. 

12   It is DEQ's policy to be on site within

13   three working days.   It is our regulation

14   to send the citizen a letter about the

15   investigation within seven working days of

16   receiving a complaint and then tell them

17   how we corrected the situation within seven

18   days after it's corrected.

19             When the local environmental

20   specialist makes his initial investigation,

21   if a violation can be verified, the

22   responsible party receives a warning letter

23   at that time.   The letter notifies the

24   responsible party what violation was found

25   and sets a time for compliance.   If the
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 1   resolution of the complaint is long term,

 2   the complainant is kept informed throughout

 3   the process.

 4             We have averaged working about

 5   fifty-five hundred complaints each year for

 6   the last four years.   The largest volume of

 7   complaints we received relate to failing

 8   on-site sewage systems.   Early on, we

 9   reviewed our statutory authority and

10   regulations and found that we didn't have a

11   good mechanism to bring them into

12   compliance.   We went to the Legislature, we

13   got statutory authority strengthened, and

14   we strengthened our regulations which

15   dramatically increased our success rate. 

16   In 1994 and 1995, on-site system failures

17   were about thirty to thirty-five percent of

18   the total number of complaints we received. 

19   The last four years average is about twenty

20   percent.   Because on-site failures continue

21   to be our largest number of complaints, we

22   continue to look for ways to improve this

23   program.   Traditional percolation tests

24   fail to identify limiting conditions,

25   consequently we are moving forward toward
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 1   requiring soil profiles in place of perc

 2   tests.

 3             Also, through this review, we found

 4   citizens who could not afford to install or

 5   replace their failing on-site systems.   We

 6   went to the Legislature for statutory

 7   language to allow us to use monies other

 8   than fees or appropriated funds for

 9   installation or correction of these

10   systems.   A grant program was developed and

11   for those that qualify, DEQ pays for system

12   installations.   We average about twenty

13   grant -- installations of about twenty

14   grant systems a year.

15             I included air emissions and

16   fugitive dust because of your specific

17   interest.   Fugitive dust remains less than

18   five percent of the total number of

19   complaints we work in any given year.

20             And even though the numbers are not

21   large, we noted similarities in the types

22   of facilities and situations that were

23   being reported.   Once again, we began

24   evaluating the process to see if there was

25   another way to look at things, to see if we
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 1   were doing all we could do.   During this

 2   last year, we clarified the way we defined

 3   fugitive dust and we changed the way we

 4   investigate fugitive dust complaints. 

 5   Investigation is handled now by the local

 6   environmental specialists and includes: the

 7   determination of potential dust source;

 8   wind direction; determining that the

 9   particulate matter is not coming from a

10   chimney or stack, which is still

11   investigated by the Air Quality Division,

12   if the dust is crossing the property line;

13   and whether the dust is causing damage or

14   interfering with the use of adjacent

15   property.

16             If a potential violation exists,

17   then the environmental specialist will also

18   make a walk through inspection of the

19   facility to determine if there are

20   potential sources of dust such as

21   unprotected or uncovered piles, roads with

22   fine dust, accumulation of dust on

23   equipment or buildings, and whether the

24   facility is utilizing dust suppression

25   measures such as watering roads or piles
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 1   where dust could originate, or cleaning up

 2   spillage of fine dust that could become

 3   airborne.

 4             As I mentioned before, if we

 5   determine that there is a violation, the

 6   responsible party is given a warning letter

 7   at that time, that sets a timeline for

 8   compliance.

 9             This is a fairly recent change in

10   this process, but we believe this change

11   has given us better tools to work fugitive

12   dust complaints.

13             Complaints, vigorously pursued, can

14   be corrected or resolved within ninety

15   days.   Once that was determined, DEQ set a

16   goal of working all complaints within

17   ninety days.   From December 15, 1995 until

18   August 10, 2003, no complaint busted the

19   ninety-day goal.

20             Monthly, I put together a report for

21   the Executive Director and Division

22   Directors that identifies facilities or

23   individuals where we have received multiple

24   complaints within a given time period.   The

25   purpose of this report is to keep upper
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 1   management aware of potential hotspots and

 2   provide a mechanism to handle these issues

 3   before they become chronic.

 4             Throughout my presentation, I have

 5   talked about changes we have made based on

 6   the review of our process, the sources of

 7   the complaints and the volume of complaints

 8   we receive.   I've only talked about a very

 9   few, this is truly an ongoing process.   We

10   continue to redefine and redirect our

11   efforts to improve the process.

12             We refer about seven hundred and

13   fifty complaints a year to other agencies

14   on behalf of the complainant.   We send the

15   complainant a letter telling them of the

16   referral and a contact person within that

17   receiving agency.

18             Each complainant and responsible

19   party receive a customer survey shortly

20   after the final correspondence.   The survey

21   asks how we did and allows for comments. 

22   All comments are reviewed and responded to

23   appropriately.   Last year, we received

24   responses from twenty-one percent of the

25   surveys we sent to complainants and
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 1   responsible parties.   Of those returned,

 2   less than seven percent were dissatisfied

 3   with the way DEQ handled their complaints.

 4             Citizens are provided access to an

 5   alternative dispute resolution system that

 6   is voluntary and confidential.   The

 7   mediation service is provided by an outside

 8   source to alleviate anyone's concerns about

 9   DEQ mediating issues within our authority.

10             Pennsylvania contacted me a little

11   over a year ago.   Their environmental

12   agency was looking into setting up a

13   citizens' complaints program of their own. 

14   They had spoken to several states and a few

15   states that had some type of program told

16   them that Oklahoma was the state to talk

17   to.   They called several times and I

18   provided information and answered

19   questions.   During our final conversation,

20   they told me that they had contacted all

21   fifty states.   No other state had a program

22   that could compare to ours.   They also said

23   that most of the states that had some type

24   of program developed their program after

25   talking to us.

                                                                  35

 1             Obviously, I believe we have an

 2   extremely successful program.   This is

 3   evidenced by the number of complaints we

 4   work each year and the response we receive

 5   from the Oklahomans we work for.   I would

 6   say that there are two things I think that

 7   have the greatest impact on the success of

 8   this program.   

 9             The first is the dedication of the

10   agency to this program, from top to bottom.

11             The second is that we never stop

12   looking at our process.   We look for ways

13   to improve, to do better.

14                  MS. MYERS:   Thank you, Lynne.

15                  MS. SULLIVAN:   Thank you, Lynne. 

16   Just to reiterate, ECLS is on the front

17   line of complaints for this agency.   In

18   regard to fugitive dust, they have recently

19   clarified their procedures in the field and

20   they are working toward diligence in regard

21   to housekeeping.   It isn't easy.

22             But what if the dusting wasn't

23   caused by fugitive dust?

24             Each time there's a dusting

25   complaint and we cannot identify a source
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 1   of the dust as fugitive, the first place we

 2   go is to excess emissions.

 3             Excess emissions must be reported

 4   under Subchapter 9 so we have records to

 5   see whether or not this is possibly the

 6   source of the dusting.

 7             Excess emissions must be reported as

 8   soon as possible, no later than 4:30 the

 9   next working day.

10             We must receive a written action

11   report from the company within ten working

12   days of the incident or upset.

13             This information is entered into

14   TEAM, the Air Quality Database, which means

15   all of these events are held in the same

16   electronic filing cabinet.

17             The data is digested quarterly and

18   an alert is triggered if the source has

19   reported excess emissions for more than one

20   point five percent of their operating time.

21             So if the dusting is due to an

22   excess emission event, it should correlate

23   with the reported excursion.   Sometimes it

24   does, but not all of the time, which means

25   excess emissions are not the issue here.
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 1             So, let's look at toxics. 

 2   Oklahoma's Air Toxic Rule is Subchapter 41

 3   and most consider it conservative.

 4             Compliance with Subchapter 41 is

 5   determined prior to permitting.   If the

 6   facility does not meet the Maximum

 7   Acceptable Ambient Concentration (MAAC) in

 8   regard to the toxic substances it produces,

 9   it is not permitted.   But there are other

10   protections built into this rule.

11             First, Oklahoma's standard is based

12   on employee exposure levels, those who are

13   consistently exposed to the toxic for hours

14   at a time, repeatedly.

15             Second, the standard is based upon

16   the toxicity evidence used by both NIOSH

17   and the ACGIH.   These are internationally

18   respected standards.

19             And third, suspected and confirmed

20   human carcinogens are both treated as

21   though confirmed in Oklahoma's rule.   So

22   the more cautious approach is taken toward

23   any risk to human health.

24             So what is the issue here?   We've

25   looked at Subchapter 29, Fugitive Dust. 
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 1   We've looked at Subchapter 9, Excess

 2   Emissions, and Subchapter 41, Toxics.

 3             But still, we haven't found a clear

 4   solution to the issues raised by the

 5   petitioners.   So what is it?

 6             Are you familiar with the phrase,

 7   there's an elephant in the room?   It refers

 8   to those issues, maybe obvious issues, that

 9   we don't like to talk about.   Things like

10   permitted emissions.   There are no zero

11   emission facilities in the state of

12   Oklahoma.   That is to say, we regulate no

13   facilities to zero emissions, which tells

14   us that there are acceptable levels of

15   pollution.   Those levels are determined by

16   the age of the equipment at the facility,

17   manufacturer's standards for the equipment,

18   industry standards, maximum achievable

19   control technology, best available control

20   technology, reasonably available control

21   technology, the MAAC and the NAAQS.

22             Facilities are permitted to emit in

23   pounds per hour, which translates to tons

24   per year, which may actually amount to

25   hundreds of tons per year.   Most facilities
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 1   are permitted at their potential to emit

 2   yet they emit far below those permitted

 3   levels.

 4             And most days, with our famous winds

 5   and excellent weather, these emissions are

 6   not an issue, but maybe some days they are.

 7             By this point, I'll bet you're

 8   thinking, well, if nothing else, this is a

 9   nuisance.

10             But Title 50 of the Oklahoma Statute

11   1-4 states that "nothing which is done or

12   maintained under the express authority of a

13   statute can be deemed a nuisance".

14             So if the issue is permitted

15   emissions, the issue is not a nuisance.

16             And if the issue is permitted

17   emissions rather than fugitive dust, then

18   changing Subchapter 29, the fugitive dust

19   rule, will not resolve the issue.

20             Staff has received six letters of

21   comment from industry since the last

22   Council.   Three were in your packet and

23   three were in the folders that you received

24   this morning.   We also received comments

25   from EPA via fax, yesterday.   These are
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 1   their comments.

 2             The revisions suggested by the third

 3   party petition removes the reference on

 4   which a discharge of fugitive emissions

 5   would be considered a violation.   The

 6   reference being suggested for removal is

 7   visible emissions.   The revision suggested

 8   also includes the use of credible evidence

 9   for purposes of determining whether or not

10   there is a violation of the rule.   If the

11   state wishes to include this language on

12   use of any credible evidence in Subchapter

13   29, we do not have an objection.   However,

14   the provision for use of any credible

15   evidence for purposes of substantiating a

16   violation is already included in Oklahoma's

17   Regulation 252:100-43-6.   The removal of

18   the term "visible" in establishing a

19   violation of the fugitive dust rule appears

20   to eliminate a metric by which to judge the

21   level of fugitive dust emissions that are a

22   concern and a threat to public health and

23   welfare.   While the state can certainly

24   make its rules more stringent than the

25   federal requirements, the Environmental
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 1   Protection Agency is not opposed to the

 2   current use of visible fugitive emissions

 3   by which to judge a violation.   

 4             Staff appreciates the petitioner's

 5   time and input.   It is the citizens' voice

 6   that has brought dust complaints to the

 7   forefront.   We have studied the complaints. 

 8   We have identified problems, we have

 9   examined the rule and we have upped our

10   standard for housekeeping.   And we believe

11   these actions on our part will make a

12   difference at the facilities we regulate.

13             Staff respectfully recommends that

14   the Council leave Subchapter 29 as written. 

15   Thank you.

16                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   We'd like

17   for the Council to have an opportunity to

18   ask the petitioners or staff questions at

19   this time.

20                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I have a

21   question about the definition of visible. 

22   Is "visible" defined in any of the

23   regulations?

24                  MR. TERRILL:   I don't think it

25   is.   I think they use -- in that case, we
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 1   use the Webster's definition of "visible".

 2                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Because in the

 3   discussion in 2000, and even more directly

 4   today, it was said that visible implied

 5   visible means, being able to see it in the

 6   air as it crosses the boundary lines.   I

 7   don't find that in the rule.   It says

 8   "visible fugitive dust emissions beyond the

 9   property line".   

10             The definition that you have given

11   me here is "visible emission means any air

12   contaminant, vapor or gas stream which

13   contains or may contain an air contaminant

14   which is passed into the atmosphere, which

15   is perceptible to the human eye", which is

16   what I would have said is the common usage. 

17             And to me, what I have never

18   understood about this discussion -- I'm

19   presuming, you know, we're talking about

20   fugitive dust.   We don't know that the

21   problem that's been alluded to is fugitive

22   dust as the -- it may not be a fugitive

23   problem at all.   But when it says "the

24   discharge of any visible fugitive dust", to

25   me there is two ways you would determine
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 1   that.   

 2             One, you could see it in the air and

 3   then you would use method twenty-two or

 4   nine or whatever they are to do that.   Or

 5   two, visible to the human eye is deposited

 6   beyond the line on something.   

 7             And if it is visible, at deposition,

 8   then you could prove credible evidence,

 9   which you already have a law for or have a

10   rule for, you could show that that

11   particular contaminant came from that

12   source.   

13             Then I think, you know, you don't

14   have a -- you've got the problem licked. 

15   And I've never quite understood why we're

16   having all this discussion.   A lot of the

17   discussion keeps going back about the rule

18   says it's got to be visible as it crosses

19   the line.   And I don't see that in the rule

20   at all.   It doesn't say that.   And that's

21   the reason I'm asking this question. 

22   Because to me, when it says visible, there

23   are two possible determinations of visible. 

24   One is in the air, using some test method

25   where you have a calibrated eye and the
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 1   other is anybody can look at is as a

 2   deposition product.

 3            And then is when you have to use the

 4   credible evidence part of the rule because

 5   then you have to be able to tie that

 6   deposition back to the source.   That should

 7   only occur in very few cases and in most

 8   cases I think you could probably very

 9   easily tie it back to the source because

10   it's probably very unique.   

11             But it also solves the problem of

12   the rock crushers and everybody else that

13   may say that the dust looks just like road

14   dust.   Well, if it does, then you can't tie

15   it back through credible evidence possibly

16   to the source, if it's just nothing but

17   road dust.   

18             And I guess I have a problem with --

19   I don't see why you want to take visible

20   out, because visible is the criteria.   But

21   I certainly don't agree with all this

22   discussion about visible means seeing it in

23   the air.   I don't think that's -- it

24   doesn't say that in the rule.

25                  MR. TERRILL:   Can I address that
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 1   -- or I'll try to.   I think that was -- I

 2   think you're exactly right except that I

 3   think when this rule was originally

 4   written, it was designed to address what

 5   you could see crossing the property line. 

 6             This rule is twenty-five or thirty -

 7   - I don't know how old it is, but it's a

 8   very old rule and I think that's what it

 9   was designed to do, originally.

10             Your point is well taken, though,

11   and I think that goes to -- and why I

12   wanted the presentation made on how we run

13   our complaints because we -- I have to be

14   honest, we were not handling these

15   complaints very well, at all.   We were

16   struggling with how to implement this rule

17   and that's why we came back in 2000 to try

18   to get some feedback from the public and

19   from the Council on how we could do this

20   better and how we ended up putting those

21   housekeeping measures, making them

22   applicable statewide as opposed to just in

23   the nonattainment area, and we still had

24   problems with it, because we really -- we

25   had this mindset of how this thing ought to
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 1   be done and it was probably too narrow. 

 2             And the changes we made where ECLS

 3   can do it as opposed to an Air Quality

 4   person, that gets a person -- someone there

 5   a lot quicker.   The need for us to see it

 6   allows us to establish, if it is a fugitive

 7   problem, where it comes from.   But I don't

 8   know that at some point we couldn't trace

 9   it back even if we didn't see it, to a

10   problem that we could address as

11   housekeeping.   

12             But it's easier for us to see it,

13   but I can see the leap that you've made

14   that you wouldn't necessarily have to, if

15   you knew -- if you knew what it was that

16   was being deposited and you could, without

17   a shadow of a doubt, trace it back to where

18   it came from, then you could make that

19   assumption that you could change it through

20   housekeeping and treat it as fugitive dust. 

21             But initially, we look for a

22   fugitive problem as being, crossing the

23   property line because we can trace that

24   back and then we can incorporate into

25   orders or permits, however we need to, to
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 1   make the facilities aware that they do have

 2   a duty to follow these housekeeping

 3   requirements.   

 4             It may be even broader than or more

 5   specific than what's outlined in our rule. 

 6   We have the ability, if there is something

 7   specific to an industry, that we can call

 8   that a housekeeping problem and work with

 9   them to come up with a solution and then

10   incorporate that as part of an order or a

11   permit.   So it's just a continual evolution

12   as we try to do a better job of addressing

13   these type of complaints.

14                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Well, I think,

15   to me, the issue kind of (inaudible) how do

16   you tell whether you have a fugitive

17   problem or a stack problem and that the

18   issue of visibility as it crosses the

19   property line is probably being used as a

20   tool.   Hopefully, you can see the stack and

21   if you see nothing coming out of the stack,

22   but you can see at the property line a

23   visible dust going across, then you make

24   the leap that this must be a fugitive

25   problem.   
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 1             So I think the visibility thing

 2   really gets back to trying to be able to

 3   determine is this a stack problem or is

 4   this a fugitive problem.   And that's why

 5   you want to go out there and try to see it. 

 6   Because if it's deposited, you know you've

 7   got a problem, but the trouble is you don't

 8   know whether it's a stack or a fugitive

 9   issue.   All you know is where it -- you can

10   prove probably where it came from but you

11   can't tell whether it came out of the stack

12   or not.

13                  MS. MYERS:   And this rule is to

14   address fugitive.

15                  MR. KILPATRICK:   That's right. 

16   And this rule is to address fugitives.   But

17   after looking at everything we've heard, I

18   don't see where you solve a problem by

19   taking the word "visible" out.   I think

20   that what you've got to do is you've got to

21   go solve the problem of determining whether

22   it's fugitive or not, if you want to solve

23   a fugitive problem.

24                  MR. WILSON:   I have a question

25   for Pat.   You talked about the elephant in
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 1   the room, but you didn't mention the snake. 

 2   And that is emissions that are neither

 3   permitted nor reported.   And my question to

 4   you is, specifically, why did you leave

 5   that out of your presentation?

 6                  MS. SULLIVAN:   To me, that goes

 7   back to the trust issue you guys were

 8   talking about earlier.

 9                  MR. TERRILL:   Let me -- let me --

10   wait a minute, let me get at this.   I think

11   Joel is really hitting on something that we

12   have talked about internally.   And, you

13   know, that's if -- and you bring up a very

14   good point.   How are you going to get at

15   the situation where facilities aren't

16   following the rules like they're supposed

17   to, they aren't reporting excess emissions

18   when they're supposed to, they're not

19   permitting their facilities like they're

20   supposed to, and they have emissions that

21   are neither permitted or reported as excess

22   emissions.   That's what you're asking

23   about, isn't it?

24                  MR. WILSON:   That's right.

25                  MR. TERRILL:   Yes.   And there is

                                                                  50

 1   really only -- you know, you're really

 2   getting into an area of looking at how we

 3   run our compliance and enforcement program. 

 4   And go back to, well, how are we going to

 5   make those verifications at those

 6   facilities.   

 7             And really, there is only two ways

 8   that I know of to do that.   Require

 9   continuous emission monitors on all points

10   that can be -- where they can be added.   Or

11   you're going to have to beef up, add a lot

12   of compliance folks to be in those

13   facilities at all hours of the day and

14   night.   

15             But I think we also can look and do

16   a better job of our excess emission

17   malfunction rule, too.   And that was one of

18   the things, when we changed that rule a

19   couple of years ago, I told you all that

20   you needed to be looking at this rule and

21   make sure that you could live with it and

22   that you understood it because we were

23   going to take data that we started to

24   gather and relate that back to whether or

25   not facilities were compliant with that
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 1   rule or not.   In other words, we would be

 2   looking for facilities in common-type

 3   activities to see if one particular

 4   facility is reporting more excess emissions

 5   than another and, if so, why is that?   Are

 6   they running their facility better or worse

 7   than somebody else and so it's an

 8   investigative process.   

 9             But it is a conundrum that you have

10   brought up.   I mean, how do we verify

11   compliance when we only do one inspection a

12   year?   And we've got grandfathered sources

13   and we've got sources that don't have

14   continuous monitors to verify what the

15   emissions are.   And I think that's where

16   Pat's coming with the trust.   There is some

17   trust that we have -- have to have, given

18   the constraints that we operate under, that

19   folks will try to do the right thing.   

20             And that's where the industry needs

21   to understand, is when we find folks that

22   aren't doing the right thing, our only way

23   to send a message that we are very serious

24   about these rules, is through a strong

25   enforcement action.   And we will continue
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 1   to -- I continue to believe that is the

 2   only way to make this work, because we're

 3   not out there twenty-four hours a day and

 4   we don't require continuous emission

 5   monitoring at all feasible points, so, you

 6   know, it's an issue.   There is no doubt

 7   about that.

 8                  MR. WILSON:   Another question

 9   that I have is, as this rule is currently

10   written, it really only implies to an

11   operation that occurs during the daylight

12   hours.   Would you all agree with that, the

13   state?   Would the state agree with that?

14                  MR. TERRILL:   I don't know that I

15   necessarily agree with that, Joel, and

16   here's why.   I would agree that the way we

17   had been interpreting that rule, your

18   probably exactly right.   

19             But I think that now, if the

20   facility was only operating at night and

21   there was no way for us to visually see

22   anything crossing the property line, you're

23   statement is probably right.   

24             But the way we're interpreting this

25   now or the way we're applying this rule now
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 1   and I hope the compliance folks will

 2   correct me if I'm misspeaking here, but we

 3   use the visible part to help us establish

 4   that it's coming from a fugitive source. 

 5   But once we have done that -- and then I

 6   would hope that we've identified things

 7   that that company can do as part of

 8   housekeeping to cut down on the fugitives -

 9   - if we would have an incident where

10   someone wakes up the next morning and there

11   is something on their property, they call

12   the complaint in, we come back out, if it's

13   near or related to or if it can be

14   identified that it probably came from a

15   source that we have investigated and

16   identified a problem, we'll go into that

17   facility now and look for potential

18   housekeeping issues that might have created

19   that problem.   

20             So it's -- we're doing a little bit

21   better job, I think, in using the tools

22   that we probably had all the time available

23   to us, but if it was something that always

24   occurred at night, we never did see it, it

25   would probably be very difficult for us to
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 1   relate that back to a source of fugitive

 2   emissions and it may be difficult for us to

 3   establish that.

 4                  MR. WILSON:   But doesn't this

 5   rule, as it's currently written, encourage

 6   facilities that have fugitive articulate

 7   emissions that come from certain

 8   noncontinuous activities, to perform those

 9   activities in the nighttime?   And if it is,

10   is it your intention to have this rule that

11   promotes that?

12                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, no, Joel, I

13   wouldn't make that statement at all.   The

14   rule is originally intended to address

15   blowing dust, blowing-type issues, that you

16   could see.   It never was intended to create

17   an incentive or provide a mechanism for

18   someone to avoid it.   

19             But again, the rule is twenty-five

20   or thirty years old, maybe it's time -- if

21   you all want to look and ask us to look at

22   ways to tighten this down, we'll be glad to

23   do that.   But I understand what you're

24   saying.   If you took that to the extreme or

25   if you took it to a logical conclusion,
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 1   that you would be encouraging folks to do

 2   something when we couldn't see it so that

 3   they wouldn't have to comply with this

 4   rule. 

 5                  MR. WILSON:   Well, somebody might

 6   take the rule as being a rule that was

 7   intended to control or to enhance

 8   visibility and so that, you know, if they

 9   have something that they do periodically

10   that's part of their operation, hopefully

11   it's permitted, that they would see this

12   rule as a rule that says, I'm going -- I'll

13   have to perform those activities at night.

14                  MR. TERRILL:   And we get those

15   allegations from -- you know, I can't count

16   the number of allegations we get of things

17   that are happening at night.   

18             And, you know, you're probably

19   right.   There probably are some of those

20   things that do happen at night.   And if the

21   Council and the citizens want us to really

22   address that, then either have us beef it

23   up and we make the commitment and make the

24   change in what we're doing, and have folks

25   in these facilities any time of day, day or
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 1   night, and give me the resources to do it,

 2   or if we can, we'll put continuous -- we'll

 3   require continuous emission monitors on all

 4   feasibly measured points.   I just don't

 5   know how else to look at this.

 6                  MS. MYERS:   I'm having difficulty

 7   believing that anybody that is a Title V

 8   source that has some kind of environmental

 9   compliance issue currently or historically

10   would resort to some of those kind of

11   activities, Joel.   I just -- it's beyond

12   me.

13                  MR. WILSON:   It's how you comply

14   with the regulations, Sharon.

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   But explain to me,

16   if I'm near a facility and I wake up in the

17   morning and I find dust on my property that

18   occurred sometime during the night and I

19   call DEQ and they come out, that is a

20   visible emission?

21                  MR. TERRILL:   No.

22                  MS. MYERS:   No.

23                  MR. BRANECKY:   No?

24                  MR. TERRILL:   No, it's not a

25   visible emission.
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 1

 2             MR.k:   Why is that not a visible

 3   emission?

 4                  MS. MYERS:   That is a deposition,

 5   it's not a visible emission.   An emission

 6   is in the act of happening.

 7                  MR.k:   Where does it say that? 

 8   In the definition of visible emission it

 9   doesn't say that you have to --

10                  MR. BRANECKY:   Will DEQ do

11   anything?

12                  MR. TERRILL:   Yes, and --

13                  MR. BRANECKY:   That's my

14   question.   That's what I'm asking.

15                  MR. TERRILL:   -- that gets back

16   to how we're trying to do a better job of

17   handling the fugitive dust rule.   We -- and

18   this is a hypothetical, so I'm just going

19   to kind of give you how I would do it and

20   I'm assuming, Lynne, you may know -- jump

21   in if I say something wrong here.   

22             But if we go out and we get a

23   complaint and we go out and look and we

24   determine there is something there, if we

25   don't have a historical knowledge that
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 1   there is a chance that that could be coming

 2   from a facility nearby -- in other words,

 3   we haven't worked a complaint in the past

 4   where we did see fugitive crossing the

 5   property line, we probably in the past

 6   would have closed that complaint because we

 7   wouldn't have any way of knowing where it

 8   came from.   

 9             How we would handle that from here

10   out, I would think that we would try to

11   make an attempt, if there is some way to --

12   dust is dust, there is no way to determine,

13   especially if you've got multiple forces of

14   where that's coming from to make that kind

15   of determination, if there is no way to do

16   that, it probably would get closed.   

17             But the way I understand what we're

18   doing, if there is a way for us to maybe

19   look and see if this might be coming from

20   another facility that's operating nearby,

21   they would either make the investigation

22   themselves or refer it to us for us to do

23   an investigation to see if there might be

24   things that were causing that deposition on

25   that piece of property.   
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 1             Now, are we going to find them in

 2   violation of this particular rule if we

 3   don't see it crossing the property line? 

 4   No, we're not, because that's what this

 5   rule says, we have to see it crossing the

 6   property line.   

 7             But generally, if we're -- it's

 8   usually not just one complaint, it's a

 9   multiple complaint by the same person or

10   persons in the neighborhood that alert --

11   clue us in that there's something going on

12   that's creating this problem.   And it's

13   very seldom that we don't see fugitive dust

14   crossing the property line.   I don't know

15   of any case that eventually -- even if it

16   may take a month or two -- but eventually

17   we will see it and we can tie it back to

18   that.   

19             But you are very right.   In the past

20   we probably would have looked at that,

21   closed it, been done with it.   But I think

22   because of -- we realized we could do this

23   better, we're taking a further look at this

24   to see, is there something that could be

25   creating this that we need to be looking
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 1   so we can be there to see it or we can make

 2   attempts to go in the facility and

 3   determine whether they've got these issues

 4   and try to head that off before we have to

 5   go to an action.   Because there may be

 6   certain things that the facility is doing

 7   differently that we can ask them to do

 8   voluntarily before we have to take some

 9   type of an action.

10                  MS. MYERS:   When this rule came

11   up in 2000, there was another facility that

12   had a different product that triggered the

13   discussions.   

14                  MR. TERRILL:   Yes.

15                  MS. MYERS:   Did the complaints

16   from that facility -- are they reduced or

17   what happened there or can you answer that?

18                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, that's a

19   little bit -- you never know for sure

20   whether or not your measures work or they

21   don't.   

22             I mean, if we quit getting

23   complaints, we make the assumption that if

24   we've identified a problem and they're

25   under an order, that they've done the
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 1   things they are supposed to do, if we don't

 2   get any more complaints.   But there could

 3   be a lot of reasons for that.   The wind

 4   didn't blow in the right direction or

 5   people move or other things can happen. 

 6             But in this particular instance, we

 7   did identify some housekeeping things that

 8   we did require that facility to do and we

 9   didn't get any more complaints.   I mean,

10   occasionally we will get one that we'll go

11   back and look at, but that number did drop

12   on that particular facility.   But again,

13   there is a lot of variation -- a lot of

14   factors that go into that, so I wouldn't

15   just want to carte blanche say that -- the

16   only reason that changed is because of this

17   rule.

18                  MS. MYERS:   I'm not just saying

19   because of the rule, though, Eddie, you all

20   have changed your procedure.

21                  MR. TERRILL:   We've tried to,

22   because we just -- we weren't doing a very

23   good job of handling these type of

24   complaints.   That's just the evolution of

25   our complaint system, as Lynne pointed out
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 1   in this particular area.

 2                  MS. MYERS:   Beverly.

 3                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Other

 4   questions from the Council?   Okay.   We have

 5   a large number of people from the public

 6   that wish to comment on this.   And I think,

 7   in the interest of time, if we could --

 8   everyone could hold their comments to five

 9   minutes.

10                  MR. ABRAHAM:   I have a question

11   of the Council.   Are the petitioners going

12   to have an opportunity to respond to some

13   of what was presented by the DEQ?

14                  MS. MYERS:   We're opening it up

15   now for public comment.

16                  MR. ABRAHAM:   I understand.   I

17   didn't sign up for public comment.

18                  MS. MYERS:   We can put you on the

19   list.

20                  MR. ABRAHAM:   All right.   You got

21   it.

22                  MS. MYERS:   But we would like to

23   reiterate to try to limit your comments to

24   five minutes per person, please, so that

25   we're not here until midnight.   And be
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 1   specific to the rule change, please.

 2                  MR. ABRAHAM:   It will be specific

 3   to what DEQ told this Council.

 4                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Okay.   While

 5   you are filling that out, I'm going to take

 6   the first person on the list.   Todd Carlson

 7   from Pace.

 8                  MR. CARLSON:   Yes, my name is

 9   Todd Carlson, I'm with Pace International

10   Union.   And after that presentation, I'm

11   kind of curious as to why we're even here

12   because they're doing such an excellent job

13   up there.   And I guess everybody that calls

14   us all the time and tells us they're

15   getting polluted, maybe it's not really

16   going on, maybe it's all made up.   

17             But anyway, I have a letter from

18   retired Senator Paul Muegge that I was

19   going to read, but unfortunately if we're

20   going to be limited to five minutes, I'll

21   just pass it around.   I picked it up on the

22   way up here this morning and I haven't had

23   a chance to copy it for you, I apologize

24   for that.   

25             The reason we made this
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 1   presentation, the reason that we were asked

 2   to do it, was because for the last two

 3   years DEQ has told us that they cannot use

 4   credible evidence.   We were told that they

 5   had to witness it crossing the fence line. 

 6   Now, I'm not a scientist or anything, I'm

 7   just -- I'm here as a citizen.   

 8             But in response to your question

 9   about how do you determine if it's

10   fugitive, I'm under the assumption that the

11   facility in question in Ponca City has

12   opacity meters on their stacks.   The -- if

13   you want to take the time, if the agency

14   wanted to take the time to review the

15   opacity readings over a twenty-four hour

16   period, after they received complaints from

17   citizens, if the opacity was in compliance,

18   surely it had to be a fugitive emission, I

19   would think.   I would think that would be

20   part of the credible evidence that we're

21   asking you to use.   

22             And, also, the -- Ms. Myers' comment

23   that she can't imagine that a corporation

24   with Title V permits doing this type of

25   action, well, there is representatives of
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 1   Continental Carbon here today and as an

 2   employee of that company -- and I'm being

 3   recorded right now by their attorneys, but

 4   I'll go on record in front of everybody and

 5   tell you that there was a double standard

 6   in that facility with operational

 7   procedures and cleanup procedures during

 8   daylight versus nighttime.   

 9             Now, that's why we're here, that

10   we've told the agency this for two years

11   now.   We have told you the problems and

12   you've told us repeatedly that there is

13   nothing you can do.   We made this

14   presentation today to try to help the

15   citizens, not just from Ponca City, but

16   statewide.   This is a problem not just in

17   Ponca City, it's a problem statewide. 

18             We've been asked not to mention

19   Continental Carbon Company, but hopefully

20   they're not representative of the way other

21   corporations treat their employees, their

22   communities, statewide.   Hopefully they're

23   an exception and not the rule.   But, I

24   don't know.   

25             The only -- you know, the only thing
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 1   I really have left to say, I've got two

 2   things.   We've done a petition drive, we

 3   really haven't worked hard at the petition

 4   drive, but we plan on delivering these to

 5   the Governor and letting him know that

 6   something needs to be done.   

 7             These petitions are not from --

 8   limited to the Ponca City area, these have

 9   came from all over the state.   In fact, I

10   receive them on a daily basis anywhere from

11   fifty to a hundred of them from labor

12   organizations, from environmental

13   organizations across the state that realize

14   that there is a problem with enforcement. 

15   I know we're not to be talking about the

16   enforcement, but I believe that's where the

17   problem lies.   

18             Our whole purpose here is to try to

19   simplify your job, not complicate it. 

20   There is a problem out there -- I think

21   everybody in the room knows there is a

22   serious problem here and we're just trying

23   to assist you and make it easier for you to

24   enforce or easier to protect the public. 

25             And, you know, the only thing I'll
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 1   leave you with is the only reason I could

 2   see that you won't take additional steps on

 3   enforcement is, you know, is if the

 4   possibility is there that maybe my tax

 5   money goes to protect corporations like

 6   Continental Carbon and doesn't go to

 7   protect citizens like these people sitting

 8   over here that have been up here numerous

 9   times.   Thank you.

10                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Rick Abraham

11   from Pace.

12                  MR. ABRAHAM:   This will be brief. 

13   I know you're as tired of hearing me as I

14   am talking to you, so -- but I did want to

15   respond to some of what DEQ presented, and

16   it's important.   

17             When they talked about their

18   complaint program, they talked about how

19   things are supposed to work on paper.   And

20   all this stuff looks good on paper.   It's

21   how it's implemented in terms of -- in

22   reality that counts.   

23             They say they have a great complaint

24   program.   In the first part of 2002, they

25   stopped even sending investigators out to
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 1   the plant.   There was no complaint program

 2   in effect with regard to Continental

 3   Carbon.   I don't know how many other

 4   facilities that kind of thing has happened

 5   with.

 6             With regard to viewing this problem

 7   by substituting the term "invisible" for

 8   "visible", if you look at the regulations

 9   governing fugitive dust emissions from

10   grain, feed and seed operations, it doesn't

11   have "invisible" in there and it doesn't

12   have "visible".   I don't think that it's

13   fair to -- you know, if it doesn't need to

14   be in there, take it out.   

15             With regard to credible evidence,

16   very interesting.   I mean, DEQ's position

17   is they have rules which allow them to use

18   credible evidence.   But, on the other hand,

19   they're not using those rules.   

20             For instance, the fugitive dust

21   emissions deposited on people's property. 

22   If you want to interpret visible fugitive

23   dust emissions to include that which is

24   visible on people's property, we'll accept

25   that and we will leave that visible in
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 1   there and we will withdraw this whole

 2   petition.   

 3             But DEQ's position is, it doesn't

 4   matter what you see on people's property. 

 5   And, in fact, it doesn't even matter what

 6   it tests out to be in terms of credible

 7   evidence, because they're not using that

 8   rule.   Over and over again we have been

 9   told and you have been told here it has to

10   be seen crossing the property line.   It

11   can't be seen at night.   It can't be seen

12   hardly ever.   So we're confused about this. 

13             I think we've heard the DEQ folks

14   say here that this rule change is

15   necessary, quote, "the rule may probably be

16   too narrow".   You know, we can be doing a

17   better job.   They've had plenty of time to

18   enforce these rules -- I mean, this problem

19   at this facility which may indicate other

20   facilities has been a drain of resources on

21   this agency, certainly on the public, for

22   years.   

23             And now they're telling us, maybe we

24   can do a better job.   The problem is in the

25   wording of the rule, that's what they told
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 1   us, and I don't think it's fair to come

 2   here and now say something different. 

 3   Thank you.

 4                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Ralph

 5   Mangrum from Pace.

 6                  MR. MANGRUM:   Yes, my name is

 7   Ralph Mangrum and I'm with Pace and I'm

 8   also --

 9                  THE REPORTER:   Can you spell your

10   last name?

11                  MR. MANGRUM:   M-a-n-g-r-u-m. 

12                  THE REPORTER:   Thank you.

13                  MR. MANGRUM:   And I'm also an

14   employee of Continental Carbon.   I really

15   don't want to address just this, over this

16   particular company, I want to address my

17   state.   I'm also a veteran and I'm an

18   American citizen.   

19             And I just want to say that since 9-

20   -11, you know, our government has asked us

21   to keep our eyes open, be cautious, and

22   report anything, any kind of violation, and

23   anywhere it is, close to us, a mile away,

24   it doesn't matter.   Under that regard, I

25   think that visible deposition is very

                                                                  71

 1   important.

 2            Because that is just like Mr.

 3   Terrill said, you must, because of employee

 4   manpower, budget, you must trust companies

 5   to obey the laws and follow the rules. 

 6   Sometimes when they don't, you must trust

 7   us to report them, just as much as we trust

 8   you to enforce them.   Thank you, very much.

 9                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   David

10   Westerman from Pace.

11                  MR. WESTERMAN:   Hello, my name is

12   Dave Westerman, W-e-s-t-e-r-m-a-n.   I look

13   around this room with the carbon black

14   people, Continental Carbon stuff, although

15   I'm young, I realize I'm the oldest

16   employee there.   I've been there the

17   longest.   I worked there for twenty-two and

18   a-half years; twenty-five total before we

19   got locked out.   

20             What I want to talk about, we was

21   talking about the investigations and stuff,

22   I received a DEQ letter dated October the

23   8th.   It's Complaint Number 300000035219. 

24   I would like to read just a little bit of

25   it for you, if I could.
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 1             This letter is coming from Gary Lee

 2   Walz and it's also backed by Lynne Moss. 

 3   And to be honest with you, I don't know who

 4   any of these people are.   I'm going to read

 5   this letter.

 6             Dear Mr. Westerman, I am writing to

 7   you in response to the complaints received

 8   by the Department of Environmental Quality,

 9   ODEQ, on August 18, 2003, concerning the

10   dust coming from Continental Carbon.   

11             The Department of Environmental

12   Quality representatives conducted an

13   inspection of the south facility -- I'm

14   sorry -- on August 29, 2003, and was told -

15   - I'm going to repeat those three words --

16   and was told that this release was due to a

17   washdown incident of the faculty.   No

18   violation of the Air Quality Rules were

19   observed during the investigation. 

20   Therefore, we consider this complaint

21   resolved.

22             That morning I was there.   I had a

23   camcorder.   I started filming from 6:05,

24   forty-five minutes of our unit four unit,

25   our stack and our bag filter was blowing
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 1   out black.   Now, I'm not telling you

 2   invisible black, I'm saying get a vacuum

 3   cleaner, get some dirt laying right there,

 4   start running that vacuum cleaner and get

 5   that vacuum cleaner half full, get a knife,

 6   cut the bag and see what it looks like,

 7   because that looks pretty good compared to

 8   what I had filmed.   Okay.   This ain't

 9   invisible.   This is a cloud.   I filmed it

10   for forty-five minutes.   

11             While I was filming, I also got my

12   cell phone and called the DEQ investigator

13   in Ponca City, told him what was going on,

14   told him who I was, told him I was filming

15   it, told him if he could come out, I would

16   wait for him.   They finally solved the

17   issue with the unit four leak.   It ain't

18   two minutes later, I'm almost ready to put

19   up the camcorder, and unit one starts and

20   it's the reactor area.   I end up filming

21   that for over forty-five minutes.   And we

22   still have the film.   

23             Once again, I called the guy, his

24   name was Mike -- sorry, I'm not a speaker. 

25   He never came out.   I told him I had the
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 1   film and gave him all the information. 

 2   Nothing.   You count the days.   I received

 3   this letter and I read this, I'm reading

 4   this, "and was told, a washdown incident." 

 5             Now, somebody that's worked at that

 6   plant and been in production for over

 7   fifteen years, I guarantee you I'm not

 8   stupid enough on a cold October morning to

 9   stand there with a camcorder filming

10   something like that if I didn't know

11   exactly what it was.   

12             Now, bag filters leak for four basic

13   reasons.   And I'm not going to give you any

14   particular order why they're having the

15   biggest problem now, I'm just giving you

16   the four.   

17             One, the age of the bag filters. 

18   They let them go too long, they just get

19   old, they cripple up, bust, you've got your

20   leak.   

21             Heat, get too much heat in the

22   drums, in the wet process building, it

23   don't even have to be a fire, just

24   excessive heat, because these bags have to

25   work so much and that's basically what they
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 1   are, they're vacuum bags almost, a little

 2   heavier material, they get crumpled and

 3   stuff like that, brittle, boy they expand,

 4   bust, there's your leak.   

 5             Pressure, they go down there and

 6   clean the systems out because it packs up,

 7   they've got to pop these dampers -- other

 8   things with pressure and they just blow

 9   them out.   

10             The other thing is load.   I don't

11   mean to be crude, but the best way I can

12   explain load, and this is what this company

13   is famous for, is trying to put ten pounds

14   of crap in a five pound crap bag.   It ain't

15   going to work.   Okay.   

16             We're talking nighttime emissions. 

17   I wish I brought this with me, but I've

18   actually got a letter of discipline for

19   blowing down during daylight hours.   That's

20   getting the airhose and blowing black off

21   the building and stuff.   And I got a letter

22   because I blew it down during daylight

23   hours.   Now, this is back in 1984, I will

24   say that, but that tells you where this

25   company is coming from.   And if you want me
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 1   to produce this letter, I've got it on hand

 2   -- well, I don't have it with me, but I can

 3   get it to you.   

 4             So this company wants you to blow

 5   down only when it's dark so the neighbors

 6   cannot see it.   It's a taiwanese-owned

 7   company.   Ma'am, I heard what you said, you

 8   can't believe -- trust me, I can't believe

 9   myself and I'm living right there.   Thank

10   you, very much.

11                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Mr. Vance, I

12   still have your sheet in here.   Did you

13   wish to comment again?   

14             Mr. Vance.

15                  MR. VANCE:   Bud Vance, resident,

16   south of Ponca City.   I was talking about

17   the -- I think I said something about

18   houses, didn't I?   The houses they

19   purchased down the road.   Nobody living in

20   them, they keep talking about wanting to

21   see where this comes from, they've got some

22   nice properties there, you know.   They

23   could live in those houses and put some

24   more there, and they'll know where it's

25   coming, I guarantee, because I live there. 
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 1   You'll think visible if you live there,

 2   because it's pretty plain.   But, you know,

 3   I just mention that, that they might -- I

 4   don't know what they can do about it, I

 5   just hope that, you know, that you folks

 6   will help us.   I appreciate you guys

 7   listening.   And, you know, that you'll help

 8   try to resolve this, because it is serious

 9   for all over.   And I want to thank you

10   again for listening and I'll be quiet for

11   now.

12                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Wally Shops.

13                  MR. SHOPS:   I'm Wally Shops, I

14   live approximately a half a mile due west

15   of the carbon black plant.   

16             Everybody talks about dust.   I don't

17   call it dust, I call it a particle, like a

18   pinhead.   You can touch it and it just

19   explodes.   I mean, just runs.   But it is

20   dust, I guess.   But anyway, it hit us here

21   the day before yesterday.   In fact, ever

22   since the plant has been there -- I got

23   some pictures that I took here the day

24   before yesterday, you can see that's a

25   picnic -- that's a picnic table that we use
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 1   and you can't go outside.   My dogs -- I've

 2   got two horses that I feed and take care of

 3   for my grandsons and they -- one of them

 4   yawned the other day and nothing but -- his

 5   tongue was just solid black.   

 6             And I got to looking around and I

 7   have quite a bit of farm machinery, trucks

 8   and combines and stuff, it's hard to keep

 9   that stuff clean.   I mean, you just -- you

10   just -- it looks bad.   You can write your

11   name on anything I've got at home.   I think

12   that I'm just in the right angle.   

13             They say you cannot -- you've got to

14   see that stuff come out.   Well, it happens

15   mostly at night and when it does come out

16   and you see it, by the time you get a hold

17   of somebody, it's all over with.   But it's

18   got to be -- they say, well, it's not

19   carbon black.   There is no other place when

20   the wind is in the east that that's where

21   it comes from.   I won't take any more of

22   your time.   Thank you, very much.

23                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Michael

24   Bigheart.

25                  MR. BIGHEART:   Thank you. 
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 1   Commissioners, my name is Michael Bigheart,

 2   I'm an attorney from Enid and I represent a

 3   number of residents that live close to the

 4   carbon black facility there in Ponca City

 5   and a number of them are tribal members and

 6   a number who aren't.   And I'm going to be

 7   brief and I'll try not to be repetitive.   

 8   You know, I've lived fifty years and I've

 9   practiced law for better than twenty years

10   and I'm still extremely naive.   I believe

11   people and especially our state agencies

12   try to do the right thing.   But when the

13   DEQ staff gets up here and tells this

14   Commission that this is not a nuisance,

15   that's just incredulous.   Tell Bud Vance,

16   tell Wally Shops, tell those tribal members

17   that live next to this facility that it's

18   not a nuisance.   

19             Now, I would invite this Commission

20   to hold one of your meetings on tribal

21   grounds there in Ponca City, outside.   Come

22   up and hold one of your meetings there. 

23   And then when you have to get rid of your

24   shoes, when you have to destroy your

25   clothes, tell us that's not a nuisance. 
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 1             The staff did a good job of telling

 2   about their reporting and their accounting

 3   in connection with these complaints and

 4   they tell you that the rule is fine, that

 5   they can operate within the rule.   

 6             Well, if the rule is fine, why is

 7   DEQ staff telling these complainants there

 8   is nothing they can do because they don't

 9   see the emission come across the property

10   line?   Well, the rule is clearly not fine. 

11   Why is DEQ not telling this Commission what

12   they're doing to these polluters?   What

13   they're doing in the way of enforcement? 

14   Instead they're telling you how many

15   complaints are filed and how they're

16   accounting for these complaints.   Reporting

17   and accounting for complaints is not the

18   same as doing something about it.   

19             You know, again, they tell us that

20   we don't need to change the rule, we'll

21   interpret different, we'll try to do

22   better.   Unfortunately, that doesn't give

23   us much encouragement.   Take the word

24   "visible" out of the rule.   Add the

25   verbiage about "credible evidence", that's
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 1   not too much to ask.   It may require some

 2   additional effort on some people's part,

 3   but that's not too much to ask.   

 4             And I'm going to encourage this

 5   Commission to adopt this particular rule,

 6   because it adds an element of common sense. 

 7   The way it is right now, at least the way

 8   it's interpreted right now, defies logic

 9   and defies common sense.   So, again, I

10   would urge you to adopt the rule and,

11   again, appreciate what the DEQ says about

12   trying to improve enforcement, but we need

13   some help in that regard.   Thank you.

14                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Mr.

15   Bhatnagar from Martin Marietta.

16                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   My name is Lalit

17   Bhatnagar, I'm the Environmental Manager

18   for Martin Marietta Materials.   

19             With what the previous commentors

20   have talked about, we have no idea about

21   the details but I'm going to address my

22   comments directly to the proposed revisions

23   that they are asking in this -- in this

24   rule.

25             As far as this rule goes, I think we
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 1   completely support DEQ's position here that

 2   this rule should be left the way it is. 

 3   Because the way the rule is written now, it

 4   makes common sense and it provides for a

 5   way for ODEQ enforcement to be able to

 6   regulate sources on a common sense level,

 7   where when you guys come out for

 8   inspection, they can see if there are

 9   problems.   

10             Because coming from Martin Marietta

11   where we have an extremely proactive

12   environmental management and control

13   program, these kind of things, if I can't

14   see it, how am I going to tell my plant

15   manager that there is a problem?   And so --

16   and, also, all of our operations, which are

17   permitted operations, the National Ambient

18   Air Quality Standards apply at our property

19   boundaries.   And visible emissions, they

20   are -- we get regulated on pretty much

21   PM10, NAAQ Standards, which are just subset

22   of what the visible emissions are.   

23             And if you can see something

24   crossing the property boundary the way the

25   rule is written now, then you are violating
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 1   those National Ambient Air Quality

 2   Standards.   And I think the rule -- the way

 3   the rule is written, I think it is common

 4   sensical (sic), I think ODEQ enforcement

 5   people, we have nothing but great things to

 6   say about them.   

 7             And we think that the second -- that

 8   the second change that's requested in this

 9   rule change, changing from adjacent to the

10   other, since the Ambient Air Quality

11   Standards apply at the property boundaries

12   for the sources, the adjacent property is a

13   proper term to use and the proper mechanism

14   to be able to enforce this.   

15             And regarding the third comment, the

16   credible evidence, I think that credible

17   evidence, numerous people have mentioned

18   before, is being addressed elsewhere in the

19   DEQ regulations.   And the way it is phrased

20   here, in our opinion, it provides an avenue

21   to go make a runaround DEQ to have -- where

22   I think that is already included, where the

23   DEQ determines the control subject to

24   economic and technological feasibility are

25   there to prevent future violations.   
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 1

 2             Because I think this is DEQ's role

 3   to enforce these and I think they have done

 4   a tremendous job, but we think that the

 5   rules should be left the way they are.   We

 6   support DEQ's position here.   

 7             And coming from a rock quarry

 8   background, I live right next to the rock

 9   quarry and where fugitive dust and with the

10   stockpiles that we have and given the

11   weather in Oklahoma, with the reasonable

12   controls when they are applied in most of

13   the proactive companies, they take care of

14   each -- address each one of those

15   reasonable controls and that situation has

16   worked well throughout, not only in

17   Oklahoma, but throughout the country where

18   we have operations.   

19             And, so, we would recommend to the

20   Council that this rule be left the way it

21   is.   It is common sensical, it makes sense,

22   and it's working.   If the rule is changed

23   based on what the recommendations are here,

24   it has got too many unintended consequences

25   which would end up punishing good companies
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 1   and good operators that are in vast

 2   majority throughout the state of Oklahoma

 3   and elsewhere.   Thank you.

 4                  MR. WILSON:   I have a question

 5   for you, L.B., if you don't mind?

 6                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   Yes, L.B. would

 7   work.

 8                  MR. WILSON:   And you may have

 9   answered this in your very last sentence,

10   but if you represent a proactive,

11   upstanding company in this state, that

12   takes seriously these regulations and the

13   notion of control of fugitive dust, then

14   why would this change give you so much

15   heartburn to warrant that you come to the

16   podium and express concern?

17                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   A couple of

18   reasons.   Rock quarry industry, where we

19   have miles and miles of unpaved road that

20   we apply reasonable controls, watering,

21   chemical, or paving to control fugitive

22   dust emissions from those sources, we think

23   that when we are doing the best that we

24   can, applying all reasonable controls to

25   address any fugitive dust emissions
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 1   crossing our property boundary, we think

 2   that the visible emissions are as good an

 3   indicator as anything.   

 4             Because the -- coming from rock

 5   quarry industry where the regulated primary

 6   pollutant for us is PM10, which is a subset

 7   of visible emissions, if visible emissions

 8   are crossing the property boundary, you

 9   know that there is a problem.   You don't

10   need a continuous monitor or none of those

11   things.   These are housekeeping --

12   primarily housekeeping issues.   

13             And we want to make sure when I'm

14   talking to our (inaudible) people or our

15   plant managers who are responsible for

16   daily housekeeping of our operations, that

17   we don't make this thing into a

18   hypertechnical affair.   I want to make sure

19   -- the way the rule is written, it's common

20   sensical.   If the dust is crossing the

21   property boundary, yes, you are in

22   violation.   And I want to make sure that --

23   the reason I'm here is, some of the common

24   sense that's already built into this rule,

25   it stays that way.
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 1

 2             MR. WILSON:   So if I could just

 3   paraphrase, your company will be using the

 4   word "visible" as a -- I guess a measure of

 5   the amount of control that you're going to

 6   apply to meet this regulation.   It's the

 7   standard by which you measure?

 8                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   That's one way to

 9   tell.   Coming from rock quarries, we have

10   large tracts of ground where we -- we've

11   got buffers and we stay away from our

12   property boundaries, so this is not

13   something that we come across on a daily

14   basis.   

15             But again, at any facility in the

16   state, you've got a road to get in and a

17   road to get out.   And that road, if it's

18   paved, unpaved, we apply all reasonable

19   controls, go above and beyond to make sure

20   we are not only responsive in complying

21   with the rules, but also we -- we take

22   extreme amount of pride in being a good

23   corporate citizen and making sure we are a

24   good neighbor.   

25             But I think the way the fugitive
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 1   dust rule is, it does -- we want to make

 2   sure our neighbors, they are happy with our

 3   operations and we want to make sure it's

 4   written on a common sense level and stays

 5   that way.

 6                  MR. WILSON:   All right.   Thank

 7   you.

 8                  MR. BHATNAGAR:   Thank you.

 9                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Cathy Canty.

10                  MS. CANTY:   I'm Cathy Canty with

11   CC Environmental.   I want to state before I

12   start that before I went into being a

13   consultant, I worked for a private sector

14   company that had over fifty facilities.   I

15   was in their engineering department for a

16   number of years and have dealt with the DEQ

17   Air Quality enforcement staff for a number

18   of years.   

19             So I think that from my perspective,

20   they are either on the middle of the road

21   on the reg or very tight with the

22   regulation.   

23             I can't speak to the carbon black

24   folks.   In hearing some of the things, I

25   thought to myself, I feel bad for them.   I
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 1   don't know what their issue is and can't

 2   address that.   

 3             But from the fugitive dust

 4   regulation and from enforcement, having

 5   worked with them for years, I can tell you

 6   that they -- my experience is that if they

 7   know there is a problem, they jump on it,

 8   they talk to the company.   Were you using

 9   your water?   Do you use chemical

10   stabilization?   They go through the

11   different methods with you and help you. 

12   If for some reason it's a mom and pop and

13   they don't know what's going on, they have

14   always jumped in and tried to fix the

15   problem from enforcement's perspective, at

16   least that is my experience for the last

17   ten years with enforcement.   

18             And I find them to be -- I can give

19   an example of a guy that sells landscaping

20   off of Council Road.   He had to install a

21   water system because of the neighbors,

22   because his dust was crossing the property

23   boundary.   So I don't know what's going on

24   at the carbon black plant.   

25             I can also tell you that a lot of
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 1   these facilities -- he sounded like he was

 2   describing bag house records, I'm not sure

 3   if that was what the blowouts were.   But

 4   you're required to keep records, and this

 5   is a permitting requirement, for your

 6   pressure drop, for your heat, for the age -

 7   - not the age of the bag house but that's

 8   something that DEQ commonly asked me for

 9   when I'm at an asphalt plant -- "hey, how

10   long before you changed out your plants."   

11             I mean, they are very detailed on

12   asking you technical questions about

13   whether or not you're in compliance.   So

14   I'm not sure what's going on with those

15   folks, but my experience in the last ten

16   years with them has been very detailed and

17   they are very particular but good to work

18   with.   

19             And they try to work with industry,

20   not just hit them and shut them down, but I

21   -- we have had people shut down.   If they

22   are over the opacity limit of twenty, they

23   will not operate, it will not happen.   So

24   from my perspective, enforcement is good to

25   work with, they are detailed, and you have
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 1   to keep your records and you have to do

 2   what you say you do.   

 3             Having worked for a company that had

 4   over fifty facilities, we never operated at

 5   night.   There were some times in the

 6   summertime when we had long days and we

 7   might run into -- I think there was one

 8   facility that would have a twenty-four hour

 9   shift and you would occasionally run into

10   that, but it was never management's policy 

11   nor any of my clients have ever talked

12   about operating at night to avoid these

13   regulations.   They simply know what the

14   regulations are and they address them.   

15             I have never heard of that either,

16   it may be going on at that plant.   My

17   experience with, you know, probably two to

18   two hundred and fifty plants is that they

19   just don't operate that way.   But there may

20   be plants that operate that way.   

21             So we certainly, based on past

22   experience, would recommend that the

23   fugitive dust rule be left as the DEQ had

24   it in place prior to this modification. 

25   Thank you.
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 1                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Bruce Evans.

 2                  MR. EVANS:   My name is Bruce

 3   Evans.   I am representing the Oklahoma

 4   Ready Mix Concrete Association as a Member

 5   and Chairman of the Environmental and

 6   Safety Committee.   

 7             Oklahoma Ready Mix Association

 8   represents a hundred and thirty-seven ready

 9   mixed concrete plants in Oklahoma and

10   that's about ninety percent of the

11   operating plants in the state.

12             My request is that the Committee

13   keep the rules as stated.   We feel that an

14   invisible source is very restrictive, hard

15   to even understand, much less control. 

16   Most of our operations are in daylight

17   hours, occasionally we pour at night for

18   large -- pour, meaning place concrete or

19   produced concrete for large placements in

20   off hours at night -- but it's certainly

21   not to avoid the visibility issue of

22   fugitive dust.   

23             And all these plants, in my

24   experience with enforcement is, that they

25   do enforce the regulation.   We have to use
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 1   best practices, keep our yards watered

 2   down, eliminate fine sources of dust by

 3   housekeeping methods.   And it seems

 4   unnecessary, at least in this industry, in

 5   pointing out that this one instance, this

 6   one issue affects -- if we were to change

 7   the rule, it could affect a lot of industry

 8   besides Continental Carbon, where there is

 9   not a perceived problem.   Thank you.

10                  MR. WILSON:   I have a question. 

11   It would only impact you if one of your

12   neighbors accused you of depositing

13   particulate matter on their property; is

14   that correct?

15                  MR. EVANS:   Yes.

16                  MR. WILSON:   And how many plants

17   did you represent in this state?

18                  MR. EVANS:   The ORMCA, the

19   Oklahoma Ready Mix Concrete Association,

20   represents a hundred and thirty-seven,

21   which we believe is ninety percent of the

22   total.

23                  MR. WILSON:   So with that many

24   facilities, is that a problem for you,

25   deposition of material from your facilities
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 1   on your neighbor's properties?

 2                  MR. EVANS:   It is an issue from

 3   time-to-time and we do a lot of -- it

 4   depends a lot on where the plant is

 5   located.

 6                  MR. WILSON:   Are those emissions

 7   visible or invisible?

 8                  MR. EVANS:   Yes, they're visible.

 9                  MR. WILSON:   All right.   Thank

10   you.

11                  MR. EVANS:   Thank you.

12                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Pat Jaynes.

13                  MS. JAYNES:   My name is Pat

14   Jaynes, J-a-y-n-e-s.   I'm with the Oklahoma

15   Asphalt Pavement Association.   

16             First of all, I have no knowledge of

17   the Ponca facility whatsoever, so I can't

18   speak to that.   But I can say that the

19   problem that I'm hearing here does not seem

20   to be a fugitive dust problem, first of

21   all.   If there is a problem, it seems to be

22   an enforcement problem.   

23             Now, my Ph.D. is in chemistry and I

24   can tell you from an asphalt plant

25   standpoint, that the bag house that was
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 1   described by the gentleman here, if it

 2   happened at one of my facilities with the

 3   records that we're required to keep, the

 4   fine would be very significant and the

 5   corrective action would be very explicit by

 6   the DEQ, as it should be.   So I'm not quite

 7   sure about how that facility is regulated.

 8             Secondly, I can say we're talking

 9   about one industry but we're talking about

10   a regulation that spans many industries. 

11   And Mr. Wilson, you talked to some people

12   about how would this affect you, how would

13   that affect you?   It comes down to, if you

14   can't see a dust and you're a mile away

15   from one of my facilities and you tell me

16   it's my dust, you can't see it from my

17   property, you can't prove it isn't, there

18   is a lot of work that goes into then me

19   trying to prove to Mr. Terrill, to DEQ, to

20   everyone else, it's not my dust.   And in

21   most of my situations it can be seen.   

22             And I can say that honestly, because

23   I've dealt with DEQ when my members have

24   screwed up and there has been a complaint

25   and somebody said, so-and-so did so-and-so,
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 1   and I can see it and absolutely, so-and-so

 2   did so-and-so.   And there is a very

 3   stringent way to take care of that.   

 4             So I would prefer to leave this rule

 5   the way it is, because I do not believe it

 6   addresses the problem we've heard today.   I

 7   think there may be ways to address that

 8   problem, but I'm not smart enough to figure

 9   them out.   Thank you.

10                  MR. WILSON:   Question.

11                  MR. JAYNES:   Sure, Mr. Wilson.

12                  MR. WILSON:   When you are trying

13   to control your emissions, do you use

14   visibility as a measure of how well you're

15   doing?

16                  MR. JAYNES:   We use visibility in

17   a number of ways.   Now, I want to separate

18   stack visibility from fugitive dust

19   visibility.   But if you're talking about

20   fugitive dust visibility, the dust coming

21   off a stockpile, absolutely.   

22             But I also use it as a way of

23   knowing if one of my asphalt facilities is

24   doing something wrong.   We have people --

25   this is Oklahoma, gentlemen.   We get dust. 
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 1   I have people come to facilities that are

 2   my members, frequently, and say, you have

 3   done this to me.   What most of my

 4   facilities will do then -- it's the onus on

 5   them to show they haven't done that,

 6   because they know the next step will be

 7   somebody will go to DEQ and say the same

 8   thing.   

 9             So not only do we use it as a

10   measure of are we doing something wrong, we

11   use it as a measure of saying, wait a

12   minute, that dust is coming from that

13   subdivision site that's over here a half a

14   mile.   So visibility, I think, is a key

15   word in trying to figure out where there is

16   a problem and if there is a problem.   My

17   wife is a wonderful housekeeper, but I've

18   got dust in my house and I'm afraid there

19   is just nobody I can blame for it.   Thank

20   you.

21                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Mike Peters.

22                  MR. PETERS:   My name is Mike

23   Peters, I'm with Ryan and Whaley.   As many

24   of you know, I was previously with the Air

25   Quality Division, I was an enforcement
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 1   attorney.   And one of the things that I

 2   would like to have on the record is that

 3   the rule impact statement that the

 4   petitioners have submitted before you, and

 5   it indicates Subchapter 29 as

 6   unenforceable.   I can assure you when I was

 7   with the DEQ that I did enforce Subchapter

 8   29 and I can tell you today that of the

 9   various clients that I represent, the DEQ

10   has taken enforcement actions with regard

11   to Subchapter 29.   So I would just like to

12   clarify that Subchapter 29 is an

13   enforceable rule as it is currently

14   written.

15             One of the other things that I was

16   going to previously comment on was the

17   credible evidence.   The petitioner has

18   proposed to include credible evidence as

19   we've already heard today, is in Subchapter

20   43, and I don't see any reason or need for

21   that rule to include repetitive language

22   when it's already in the Air Quality rules. 

23             This rule, as pointed out earlier,

24   this rule was previously considered by the

25   Council back in 2000 in a Council meeting

     in August and one again I believe in

     October or November.   
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 1             During that Council meeting, some of

 2   these same issues came up, whether or not

 3   remove the word "visible" would cause a

 4   concern.   And during that meeting, in the

 5   transcript I've identified that certain

 6   Council Members indicated, you know, I

 7   don't know whether it should or should not,

 8   but I do have a problem if we do remove the

 9   word "visible", then how are we going to

10   prove a violation or what do we do if

11   somebody alleges that we're in violation? 

12   And the burden of proof is on the DEQ any

13   time they take an enforcement action.

14             But as the gentleman that just

15   preceded me indicated, any time the DEQ

16   takes an enforcement action, the company

17   has to defend that enforcement action.   And

18   how do we prove or disprove something

19   that's invisible?   I mean, we can go out

20   and spend a lot of money to test it, but

21   does that mean that it was deposited on

22   that day, due to that event or anything

23   like that?   

24             So I just want the Council to

25   remember the burden of proof is on the
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 1   agency.   This rule has been out there for

 2   many, many years.   It is enforceable, the

 3   DEQ does enforce it.

 4             And the other thought I had is that

 5   the rules of the Oklahoma Clean Air Act

 6   does provide the agency with independent

 7   authority to address any type of condition

 8   of air pollution whenever that is found.   

 9             I agree with the staff that this

10   rule should be left as is and would propose

11   and recommend to the Council that it not be

12   changed.   Thank you.

13                  MR. WILSON:   Mike, I've got a

14   question of you.

15                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

16                  MR. WILSON:   You mentioned that

17   you believe that this is an enforceable

18   regulation.   Do you believe it's

19   enforceable at night?

20                  MR. PETERS:   Do I believe it's

21   enforceable at night?

22                  MR. WILSON:   That's right.

23                  MR. PETERS:   The rule only

24   indicates that it has to be visible.   It

25   doesn't mean that you have to do a method
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 1   nine or a method twenty-two, you just have

 2   to observe the emissions crossing the

 3   property line.

 4                  MR. WILSON:   If that's the case

 5   then, what would normally be visible could

 6   very well be invisible at night.

 7                  MR. PETERS:   I believe that if

 8   you have proper lighting, I believe you

 9   could identify whether or not particulate

10   matter, whatever nature, could be crossing

11   the property line.

12                  MR. WILSON:   But lighting is not

13   enforceable, is it, in this regulation?

14                  MR. PETERS:   Excuse me?

15                  MR. WILSON:   Boundary line

16   lighting is not an enforceable requirement

17   by this regulation.

18                  MR. PETERS:   During my -- to

19   answer your question, no.   Lighting is not

20   enforceable.   But during my service with

21   the DEQ and the previous facility that was

22   addressed in the 2000 Air Quality Council

23   Meeting, one of the conditions that was

24   complained about was fugitive dust.   

25             I, myself, did inspections at that
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 1   facility at night.   The facility did have

 2   lights.   I could tell whether or not

 3   material, fugitive material, was leaving

 4   the building.   I didn't drive to the

 5   property line and shine my headlights to

 6   see if that material was also crossing the

 7   boundary line.

 8                  MR. WILSON:   In some cases, what

 9   you're saying is, depending upon the

10   conditions --

11                  MR. PETERS:   That's correct.

12                  MR. WILSON:   -- then an emission

13   may be -- it may be visible at night?

14                  MR. PETERS:   That's correct. 

15   Now, the rule has two parts.   One part is,

16   if you have a material that's susceptible

17   to becoming airborne or windborne, you have

18   to take reasonable precautions.   

19             The other part is, you shall not

20   allow visible fugitive emissions to cross

21   the boundary line.   

22             My clients that I represent, they

23   comply with both provisions of that rule. 

24   If you've got something that can become

25   windborne, you're required to take
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 1   reasonable precautions.   That doesn't mean

 2   that on certain instances if there's a high

 3   wind or we've had a malfunction, that we

 4   won't have material that is displaced on

 5   the ground and become windborne without

 6   taking reasonable precautions.

 7                  MR. WILSON:   And I agree.   I

 8   mean, the regulation, when it talks about

 9   airborne emissions, doesn't talk about

10   visible or invisible.   But the standard of

11   whether or not you meet this regulation is

12   based upon whether or not you are having a

13   visible emission cross your boundary line.

14                  MR. PETERS:   I don't agree with

15   that.   As I indicated, there is two

16   sections in the regulations and I have been

17   -- my clients have been notified of alleged

18   violations if they were not taking

19   reasonable precautions to prevent a

20   material from becoming airborne.   That's in

21   Paragraph A of the rule.   Paragraph B of

22   the rule says, if you have visible fugitive

23   emissions crossing the property line.

24                  MR. WILSON:   You wouldn't want to

25   take precautions if you didn't have the
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 1   emission occurring, would you?

 2                  MR. PETERS:   Can you restate your

 3   question?

 4                  MR. WILSON:   You wouldn't want to

 5   apply precautions if you did not have the

 6   emission occurring?

 7                  MR. PETERS:   Well, let me put is

 8   this way.   If I had material that was

 9   susceptible, let's say it's carbon black,

10   let's say it's limestone, any type of

11   aggregate, if it's out there and there's

12   wind, I would take reasonable precautions

13   to prevent it from crossing my boundary

14   line.

15                  MR. WILSON:   If a facility has

16   permitted -- if a facility has permitted

17   particulate emissions, couldn't they comply

18   with this rule by allowing those fugitive

19   particulate emissions to occur at night?

20                  MR. PETERS:   Well, it's my

21   understanding that the agency, if you're

22   talking about permitted emissions being you

23   have assigned pounds per hour, tons per

24   year emission limit, I don't believe that

25   they typically assign an emission limit to

                                                                 105

 1   truly fugitive emissions.   They do assign

 2   emission limits to stack emissions, but not

 3   truly to fugitive emissions.

 4                  MR. WILSON:   Wait a minute.   I

 5   disagree.   I think there are many sources

 6   in this state that have limits on their

 7   fugitive emissions.

 8                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

 9                  MR. WILSON:   Am I correct on

10   this?   Can anybody --

11                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, I'm kind of

12   drawing a blank myself here.

13                  MS. SULLIVAN:   You mean, like,

14   from a pile coming off of a rock crusher? 

15   Yes, there would be a (inaudible).

16                  MR. WILSON:   So --

17                  MS. SULLIVAN:   But those aren't

18   fugitive.

19                  MR. WILSON:   All fugitive

20   emissions -- let me just restate this and

21   I'm going to say it the way you're

22   suggesting that it is.

23                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

24                  MR. WILSON:   No fugitive

25   emissions are permitted emissions.   
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 1                  MR. PETERS:   Well, I don't want

 2   to argue with you, Joel, but let's define -

 3   - what's permitted?   Does that mean it's

 4   got a pound per hour, ton per year emission

 5   limit assigned to it?

 6                  MR. WILSON:   It's allowed to

 7   happen by the state.

 8                  MR. PETERS:   It's allowed to

 9   happen under the Oklahoma Air Quality --

10   Air Pollution Control Rules; is that what

11   you're saying?

12                  MR. WILSON:   That's what I'm

13   saying.

14                  MR. PETERS:   There are fugitive

15   emissions that are not addressed or

16   assigned an emission limit in a permit that

17   are authorized under the rules.   As

18   indicated by the slides earlier, the Air

19   Pollution Control Rules do not require a

20   facility to have zero emissions.

21                  MR. WILSON:   I'm not talking

22   about zero.

23                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

24                  MR. WILSON:   I'm talking about a

25   limit on the amount of fugitive emissions
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 1   they can have.   And what you're suggesting

 2   is that the state cannot put a limit on the

 3   fugitive emissions that a facility has and

 4   that they rely on Subchapter 29 to fix this

 5   amount?

 6                  MR. PETERS:   I didn't say the

 7   state could not put a limit on fugitive

 8   emissions.   I -- what I'm indicating to you

 9   is, the rule specifies, we've got a

10   situation.   Let's say you've got a front-

11   end loader that's at a quarry or something

12   like that.   How do you determine what your

13   emission rate is?

14                  MR. WILSON:   Well, to be honest

15   with you, I've done that with Conoco's coal

16   pile.

17                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

18                  MR. WILSON:   Which, by the way, a

19   fugitive emission that is permitted by the

20   state.

21                  MR. PETERS:   Okay, it is

22   permitted.   Does it have a pound per hour,

23   ton per year --

24                  MR. WILSON:   Absolutely.

25                  MR. PETERS-- limit associated
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 1   with your fugitive emissions from that

 2   pile?

 3                  MR. WILSON:   Yes, it does.

 4                  MR. PETERS:   And how do you

 5   remove coal and coal or whatever carbon

 6   from that pile?   Is it a front-end loader?

 7                  MR. WILSON:   We transfer it by

 8   several different means.

 9                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

10                  MR. WILSON:   All of this

11   represents an activity that has an AP42

12   factor associated with it.

13                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

14                  MR. WILSON:   And thereby allowing

15   us to estimate a fugitive emission amount.

16                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

17                  MR. WILSON:   So --

18                  MR. PETERS:   I'm just telling you

19   that -- or saying, based on my experience,

20   that not all fugitive sources are assigned

21   a pound per hour and a ton per year

22   emission limit.   That's my understanding of

23   the rules, that's my understanding of

24   several Title V permits.

25                  MR. WILSON:   I would agree that
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 1   not all of them are, either.   

 2                  MR. PETERS:   Okay.

 3                  MR. WILSON:   So perhaps we're in

 4   agreement on this.   Now, I want to -- I

 5   want to also mention or ask you a question

 6   about something that you had talked about

 7   regarding any credible evidence.   And that

 8   is that you feel like the state already has

 9   the ability to use any credible evidence in

10   determining whether or not we have a

11   violation of this standard?

12                  MR. PETERS:   If you are referring

13   to Subchapter 29 in the paragraph that

14   requires visible emissions crossing the

15   boundary --

16                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

17                  MR. PETERS:   -- Subchapter 43

18   says you can use any credible evidence.   If

19   you were to go out there at night, take

20   your pickup headlights and shine them down

21   the fenceline and you were to observe

22   material and then catch a sample or get

23   some form of that material and say, it's

24   this and we can confirm a hundred percent

25   it's from this facility, then I would say
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 1   yes, you could use that evidence as

 2   credible evidence to show they violated

 3   that standard.

 4                  MR. WILSON:   That there was a

 5   visible emission?

 6                  MR. PETERS:   Yes. 

 7                  MR. WILSON:   Deposition of this

 8   material on property next to where it might

 9   be coming from is not credible evidence

10   that there was a visible emission?

11                  MR. PETERS:   Well, let me back

12   up.

13                  MR. WILSON:   I'm going to ask you

14   a question.   Is that correct?

15                  MR. PETERS:   No, that's not

16   correct.   And the reason why I would say

17   that's not correct is, Joel, you have a

18   facility in the vicinity of this

19   Continental Carbon, which I want everyone

20   to understand this is a rulemaking, this is

21   not a facility-specific matter.   This rule

22   will apply across the whole state of

23   Oklahoma.   But to answer your question,

24   there are several other manufacturing

25   facilities in that area.   Conoco is one. 
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 1   There are -- in that area there are

 2   industries that burn wood or tar or

 3   whatever, manufacturer coating for shingles

 4   or something.   Now, in their combustion

 5   process, they emit carbon, uncombusted

 6   carbon, which is going to be black and may

 7   even appear the same as carbon black.   In

 8   your flares, whenever they go off, there is

 9   smoke from those flares, which I'm not a

10   technical person, but I would assume it's

11   uncombusted carbon, okay, or uncombusted

12   hydrocarbons, which if I say something

13   that's deposited on an adjacent or

14   adjoining property, does that come from one

15   facility?   I'm not going to make that leap

16   without going out there and doing sampling

17   and confirming, did it come -- is that the

18   type of material that they process at this

19   plant.

20                  MR. WILSON:   You would recommend

21   sampling then?

22                  MR. PETERS:   It's my

23   understanding that on numerous occasions it

24   has been sampled.

25                  MR. WILSON:   Okay.   The state has
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 1   sampled it?

 2                  MR. PETERS:   I believe that the

 3   company itself has sampled, when notified

 4   by individual complainants.

 5                  MR. WILSON:   Has the state

 6   sampled this?

 7                  MR. TERRILL:   I'm not aware that

 8   we have.   They haven't done it since I've

 9   been here.

10                  MR. WILSON:   All right.

11                  MS. MYERS:   Before we drift too

12   far, though, I want to get back to the fact

13   that we're focusing on this rule, this

14   change, and how it applies to all

15   industries.   I really don't want to get

16   into an enforcement issue, I don't think

17   this is the time or place.

18                  MR. WILSON:   Sharon, what I'm

19   trying to do is follow that path.   I'm

20   following that path because we have a rule

21   and -- on one hand.   And we have a

22   situation occurring on the other hand.   And

23   the state is saying that we have done all

24   that we can do that is allowed by the rule. 

25   And when I'm talking about things like
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 1   credible evidence, asking questions about

 2   credible evidence that already exists in

 3   our regulations and how that might apply to

 4   what already exists, I'm trying to

 5   understand the impact of this rule change. 

 6   When I ask about whether or not these

 7   companies are using visible, visibility as

 8   a measure by which to control their

 9   emissions, I'm trying to understand how

10   this is impacting them.   Because what I'm

11   trying to get at is whether or not the only

12   way the state can remedy this situation is

13   by a rule change.   

14                  MR. PETERS:   Can I respond to

15   that?

16                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

17                  MR. PETERS:   I think it's

18   addressed in Paragraphs A and B or A under

19   29-2(A).   The prohibition is you shall not

20   -- if you have material that will become or

21   could become windborne, you have to take

22   reasonable precautions.   It doesn't say

23   anything about whether it's visible or not. 

24   If you've got a material there that could

25   be windborne and you don't do anything
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 1   about it, then yes, you could bring an

 2   enforcement action.   But that rule doesn't

 3   say you can't have zero emissions, it says

 4   you have to take reasonable precautions,

 5   wetting, chemical agents, things like that;

 6   would you not agree?

 7                  MR. WILSON:   I would agree.   And

 8   so I'll ask you a question here and that

 9   is, do you believe that the DEQ has done

10   all they can do with regards to

11   understanding that very issue with how it

12   applies to the company we're talking about? 

13   In your opinion.

14                  MR. PETERS:   First, let me say

15   that I do represent Continental Carbon. 

16   Second, let me make sure that you

17   understand that I do have several clients

18   and I'm before the DEQ on numerous

19   occasions.   And I would hate to answer that

20   question -- but --

21                  MR. WILSON:   I bet you would.

22                  MR. BRANECKY:   And I don't want

23   him -- I don't want this to turn into a

24   beat-up on DEQ.

25                  MR. WILSON:   I asked him the
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 1   question so that I would get that answer. 

 2   And I do appreciate you disclosing that

 3   fact to this Council.

 4                  MR. PETERS:   I wasn't trying to

 5   hide it, but I was here speaking on behalf

 6   of all the industry.   We represent --

 7   myself and Don Shandy, we represent

 8   numerous industrial clients that they have

 9   expressed their concern with this rule, as

10   well.

11                  MR. WILSON:   No other questions

12   for this gentleman.   Thank you, very much.

13                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Do we have

14   any other comments or questions from the

15   public?   Any other questions from the

16   Council?   At this point in time, with no

17   further comments or --

18                  MR. TERRILL:   Let me make a

19   statement here.

20                  MS. MYERS:   Sorry, Eddie.

21                  MR. TERRILL:   So it's on the

22   record.

23                  MS. MYERS:   Is it more than five

24   minutes?

25                  MR. TERRILL:   No, it's real brief
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 1   because we've got a fairly diverse group

 2   here.   We've got consultants and lawyers,

 3   owners of facilities, you all need to pass

 4   the word, take the word back that, you

 5   know, we looked at this rule in 2000 and

 6   regardless of what we end up doing here

 7   today, one of the things that we said we

 8   would do is continually try to improve this

 9   rule, we'd come back and make adjustments,

10   but we would also enforce the rule.

11             Don't -- there has been some

12   indications over the past few months that

13   some folks don't believe that we intend to

14   enforce these housekeeping requirements. 

15   Don't make the assumption that that's the

16   case, because I'll assure you it's not. 

17   And that comes from me and that comes from

18   my boss.   

19             And those of you that have been

20   involved in enforcement actions with us

21   know that when I get involved directly with

22   an enforcement action, that's not a good

23   thing.   My staff better be able to handle

24   it, but if they can't handle it or if there

25   is some doubt about our resolve on a
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 1   particular issue, I have no problem getting

 2   involved. So you need to take back to your

 3   -- to the folks you represent that we

 4   intend -- if you've got issues with

 5   housekeeping, you better take them

 6   seriously and you better take care of them. 

 7   I'm done.

 8                  MS. MYERS:   If there is no

 9   further comments or questions, we would

10   entertain a motion.

11                  MR. WILSON:   Sharon, I'm going to

12   make a motion that we -- that a yes vote

13   would represent our intent to maintain the

14   current regulation as it's written.

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   I think what we're

16   considering is the petitioner's proposed

17   changes.

18                  MR. WILSON:   Okay.

19                  MR. BRANECKY:   So we have to look

20   at it from that perspective.

21                  MR. WILSON:   That is -- that's

22   what the vote is going to be?

23                  MR. BRANECKY:   Whether we accept

24   the proposed changes or not, yes.

25                  MR. WILSON:   Okay.   Then in that
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 1   case, I will not make a motion.

 2                  MS. ROSE:   I would like -- I have

 3   a question in that, is it necessary that we

 4   take a vote on this today?   As a newer

 5   member, now I know some people may think

 6   I'm an older member, but I'm new on this

 7   particular council.   This has -- and I've

 8   only -- this is my third meeting.   

 9             I'm very confused about this and I

10   hear a lot of technical jargon and a lot

11   of, well, I can't believe that a company

12   would do this.   Well, I can believe that a

13   company would not abide by an Air Quality

14   rule or a Water Quality rule or regulation. 

15   I can believe that.   I've been involved in

16   it personally.   I've been involved in it in

17   a business where people do not abide by the

18   regulations.   

19             So I'm very concerned about this. 

20   And if you're running out of paper, I'll

21   just make it real quick -- that these

22   people have a problem and we're, you know,

23   we have industry coming before us saying,

24   hey, don't change this, we have these

25   people saying DEQ says we have to change it
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 1   in order to get relief.   Hey, what's the

 2   answer here?   I mean, I am confused.   And

 3   maybe that is my lack of knowledge, but I'm

 4   coming down on the side of these citizens

 5   that experience this problem out there.   

 6             If it's an enforcement problem, by

 7   dang, then we better do some enforcement. 

 8   And if it's a rule problem, then let's come

 9   to some agreement right here.   Senator

10   Muegge, and I respect this man very much,

11   he has done a lot for the citizens of

12   Oklahoma and he says that this is a serious

13   error in the rules.   

14             To assure the public that air

15   quality standards are priority, not only in

16   Ponca City but all of Oklahoma, to protect

17   the citizens of Oklahoma, so I'm saying do

18   we need to -- do we need more discussion on

19   this or do I need to make a motion that we

20   accept this revision of rules in order to

21   protect these citizens?   Can someone on the

22   Council help clarify this?

23                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Well, I'll make

24   a comment and let me start out by saying

25   that when I was about three or four, I
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 1   lived across the street from a carbon black

 2   plant.   And no one should have to go out as

 3   I did then and wash off the front door

 4   every morning.   I'm definitely not a lover

 5   of it.   

 6             But having said that, I don't

 7   believe the changes that have been proposed

 8   here solve the problem.   One, I'm not --

 9   from what we've heard, I'm very discouraged

10   with the enforcement action that

11   apparently, and I must admit DEQ really

12   hasn't said what they done, but apparently

13   this problem really hasn't been enforced

14   very well.

15             Two, I think that the word "visible"

16   is the measure.   I don't think taking the

17   word "visible" out solves the problem.   I

18   think it's going to create more enforcement

19   problems.   I don't agree with DEQ's

20   original, I guess, interpretation that when

21   it says visible fugitive dust emissions

22   that it means that it has to be visible in

23   the air crossing the line.   If you read the

24   definition that's defined in here, it says

25   a contaminant which is visible or
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 1   perceptible to the human eye.   It doesn't

 2   say in the atmosphere, it says if the

 3   contaminant was put in the atmosphere, then

 4   the contaminant has to be visible.   The

 5   contaminant can be visible as a deposition

 6   product as well as actually in the

 7   atmosphere.   

 8             But they probably got twenty-five

 9   years of interpreting it as visible in the

10   atmosphere as it crosses and the lawyers

11   will probably tell us that that set a

12   precedent and so you've got to do it.   I

13   say, well, okay, if that's the problem,

14   then the solution is to change the rule to

15   say it can be visible as one of two ways. 

16   It can be visible in the atmosphere using

17   some standard method.   Or two, it can be

18   visible as a deposition product.   And then

19   you've got to rely on further evidence to

20   be able to associate that product.   So --

21   but just taking the word "visible" out I

22   don't think solves the problem, it just

23   introduces more problems.   We were told --

24   I don't know, I can't find it, but the word

25   "adjacent" means next to or nearby.   Now,
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 1   if that is legally correct, somewhere the

 2   word "adjacent" is defined in the

 3   regulations as next to or nearby, then I

 4   don't see any reason to change the word

 5   "adjacent" in the regulation.   I definitely

 6   believe that you need to make sure that the

 7   word "adjacent" is not limited to

 8   properties that are contiguous with the

 9   facility.   You need to go farther than

10   that.   But I think the word "adjacent" may

11   be defined somewhere else in a way that

12   already encaptures that.   And then, three,

13   I think that the rule, wherever it is where

14   we have credible evidence already

15   mentioned, I think it is already there.   I

16   don't understand why we need to repeatedly

17   spend all this time trying to re-write

18   rules to take out repetitive language, why

19   would we now go back and add it back in. 

20   If it's already there, it's already there

21   and we don't need to put it in.   So I come

22   down to there is no reason to make this

23   change.          The answers I want to know

24   is, one, what's being done to stop the

25   problem with an enforcement action, which
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 1   isn't really our business, but as a citizen

 2   that's what I would like to know.   And if -

 3   - if we can't through enforcement solve the

 4   problem, then let's change the regulation. 

 5   But I think the change is not to take out

 6   visible, it's to change the definition of

 7   visible so that it captures things that are

 8   in theory invisible, at least as they cross

 9   at night and that sort of thing.   We can

10   change the definition to include deposition

11   products.   And we can even get more

12   specific if we want to.   But we can change

13   the rule that way so that we really define

14   what we're talking about.   And that would

15   be my proposal.   So I'm not in favor of the

16   change as proposed.   I think we need to

17   change the rule, we need more work on the

18   rule.

19                  MS. ROSE:   I would think that we

20   need more work on the rule then, because if

21   we have a loophole in the rule which is

22   allowing a lack of enforcement, which is

23   what I'm hearing, it's the rule that

24   prevents the enforcement, not the DEQ's --

25   just a simple lack of enforcement.   It is a
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 1   loophole there with that particular word. 

 2   I would think that there needs to be more

 3   work done on that.   We need to go back and

 4   revisit the rule and what can be done.   Is

 5   that not a possibility?   Are we saying that

 6   that's an impossible thing to do, to go

 7   back and revisit the rule, clarify it, so

 8   these people can get some relief, so some

 9   enforcement can take place, so that perhaps

10   it won't put every other industry out of

11   business in the state of Oklahoma, which I

12   doubt that it will.

13                  MR. KILPATRICK:   To me, the real

14   question is to ask Eddie and the lawyers,

15   how can we find out what is the problem

16   with enforcing the rule in this particular

17   situation?   This particular situation is

18   what is driving the need to do something. 

19   But we don't have the -- we have a

20   complainant alleging that DEQ has said, but

21   we don't have DEQ telling us what do they

22   really -- what did they say and what do

23   they really believe now and all that.   So,

24   you know, we're supporting potential

25   changes based on hearsay, as far as I'm
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 1   concerned.   I would like to know, what are

 2   the facts?   Do we have a problem with the

 3   regulation or not?

 4                  MS. MYERS:   Pam, can you help us

 5   out on this?

 6                  MS. DIZIKES:   I'm afraid my

 7   response is not something that Mr.

 8   Kilpatrick will want to hear.   But I

 9   believe that the Council is now beginning

10   to cross the line into trying to make a

11   decision on whether or not you feel that

12   there has been an adequate enforcement

13   response for a particular company.   

14             And I realize that it is very

15   difficult and I think I've stated before

16   that DEQ staff has an obligation not to

17   comment on current enforcement or

18   litigation proceedings.   And we do not want

19   to make an example of any one of the

20   companies that we regulate.   We've tried

21   very hard to avoid that and talk instead

22   about enforcement as a procedure, a process

23   that we engage in throughout the state, and

24   we had hoped that through the presentations

25   that were made by staff today, that you

     would understand that we would take those

     enforcement responsibilities seriously,
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 1   that enforcement is an ongoing process and

 2   it's not something that we can capture at

 3   this moment for a particular company.   

 4             So I'm going to ask you to redirect

 5   your thoughts again to the process within

 6   this fugitive dust rule and whether or not

 7   the process, as we've discussed it, with

 8   changes that we have made, is an

 9   appropriate process to continue or whether

10   we want to make changes to that process

11   right now.

12                  MS. MYERS:   I would ask that we

13   have a motion directed specifically to this

14   rule, this change.

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   I'll go ahead and

16   make a motion and we can decide whether to

17   accept it or not, but based on what Pam

18   said, that we are a rulemaking body and

19   looking specifically at this rule, I do not

20   believe that the changes are necessary and

21   that the changes would help in the state of

22   Oklahoma.   

23             And, therefore, I'm going to move

24   that we reject the petitioner's

25   recommendation for changes to Subchapter 29
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 1   and leave it as is.

 2                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion.   Do

 3   we have a second?

 4                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'll second.

 5                  MS. MYERS:   Myrna. 

 6                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Rose.

 7                  MS. ROSE:   May I ask a question

 8   first?   Is a yes vote leaving the -- saying

 9   that we would like the rule left as it is?

10                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

11                  MS. ROSE:   Is that what a yes is?

12                  MR. BRANECKY:   We are -- my

13   motion was to reject the petitioner's --

14                  MS. ROSE:   Reject, okay.   

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   -- language.

16                  MS. ROSE:   No.

17                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Martin.

18                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.

19                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

20                  MR. WILSON:   The changes proposed

21   are bad.   It creates problems, it's not the

22   way to solve this problem.

23             Now, to the DEQ's presentation and

24   enforcement, I want to throw up.   I really

25   feel sick.   The vote is, yes.
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 1                  MR. BRANECKY:   Okay.   I prefer

 2   you move on.   I don't think it's our

 3   position or our job to get involved in DEQ

 4   matters.   We are a rulemaking body.

 5                  MR. WILSON:   I'm giving you my

 6   opinion on the record.

 7                  MR. BRANECKY:   All right.   Okay.

 8                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

 9                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

10                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

11                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

12                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

13                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

14                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Treeman.

15                  MR. TREEMAN:   Yes.

16                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

17                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

18                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

19                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.   

20                  MS. BRUCE:   The motion passed.

21                  MS. MYERS:   Okay.   

22

23                    (END OF PROCEEDINGS)

24

25
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 3   STATE OF OKLAHOMA     )

 4                                 ss:

 5   COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA    )

 6             I, CHRISTY A. MYERS, Certified

 7   Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of

 8   Oklahoma, do hereby certify that the above

 9   proceedings is the truth, the whole truth,

10   and nothing but the truth; that the

11   foregoing proceedings were tape recorded

12   and take down in stenography by me and

13   thereafter transcribed under my direction;

14   that said proceedings were taken on the

15   14th day of January, 2004, at Oklahoma

16   City, Oklahoma; and that I am neither

17   attorney for nor relative of any of said

18   parties, nor otherwise interested in said

19   action.

20             IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

21   set my hand and official seal on this, the

22   4th day of February, 2004.
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 1

 2

                             PROCEEDINGS

 3

 4

                    MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   The next

 5

     item on the agenda is Item 5B, OAC 252:100-

 6

     13, Open Burning.   And Ms. Lisa Donovan

 7

     will give the staff position on the

 8

     proposed rule.

 9

                    MS. DONOVAN:   Members of the

10

     Council, ladies and gentlemen, the

11

     Department is proposing amendments to OAC

12

     252:100-13, Open Burning.

13

               The purpose of these changes is to

14

     clarify the scope of the conditions that

15

     allow for open burning.   While the rule is

16

     open, there are also a couple of

17

     housekeeping measures and corrections that

18

     will be made.

19

               During the 2003 spring legislative

20

     session, a new law was proposed regarding

21

     open burning for the purposes of fire

22

     training.   The law establishes requirements

23

     for municipal fire departments wishing to

24

     conduct fire training.   It includes

25
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 1   conditions for notification of a planned

 2   fire training activity and inspection and

 3   removal of asbestos, asphalt and lead

 4   containing materials prior to the training

 5   taking place.   It also addresses waste

 6   disposal following the burn.   The law was

 7   signed by Governor Henry on May 21, 2003,

 8   and became effective on November 1, 2003.

 9             For conformity, the Department

10   proposes to incorporate this statute by

11   reference into Subchapter 13.

12             The following changes and additions

13   to the Open Burning Rule are also proposed:

14             Definitions of "fire training",

15   "human-made structure" and "yard brush"

16   will be added to Section 13-2, to address

17   terms in use in the rest of the rule.

18             Section 13-7 has been amended to

19   clarify the acceptable conditions under

20   which open burning may occur.   13-7(a)

21   refers to State Statute Title 27A Section

22   2-5-106.1, the new fire training law.   13-

23   7(a) also exempts industrial and commercial

24   facilities and fire training schools that

25   conduct on-site fire training from the
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 1   requirements of the statute.

 2             New Section 13-7(h) allows for the

 3   burning of yard brush on the property where

 4   the waste is generated.   Yard brush

 5   includes "cut or broken branches, leaves,

 6   limbs, shrubbery, and tree trimmings".

 7             Revisions are also proposed for

 8   Section 13-9 to correct an error in

 9   numbering, to clarify the general

10   conditions and requirements for allowed

11   open burning, and to correct an omission of

12   the exemption for hydrocarbon flares from

13   the prohibition against burning between

14   sunset and sunrise.

15             Several changes to the proposed rule

16   were made as a result of comments received

17   at the last Council meeting.

18             In the definition of "yard brush",

19   leaves have been added to the list of

20   acceptable materials that may be burned and

21   the words "in-ground" have been added

22   before "tree stumps" in the list of

23   unacceptable materials.

24             The language limiting burning on

25   ozone alert days and burn ban days has been
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 1   removed from 13-9.

 2             Also, the fire training notification

 3   form required by the state statute has been

 4   prepared and is ready for use.   Copies of

 5   the form have been provided to the Council

 6   and are available on the table.   The form

 7   is also available on DEQ's website.

 8             Since the publication of the notice,

 9   two additional changes have been made to

10   the definition of "yard brush".   The phrase

11   "and tree trimmings" has been changed to

12   "or tree trimmings" and the word "other"

13   prior to non-vegetated material has been

14   removed.   

15             The definition now reads, "yard

16   brush means cut or broken branches, leaves,

17   limbs, shrubbery, or tree trimmings.   It

18   does not include refuse, grass clippings,

19   in-ground tree stumps or any non-vegetative

20   material".

21             Notice of the proposed rule change

22   was published in the Oklahoma Register on

23   December 15, 2003, and comments were

24   requested from members of the public.   The

25   EPA supported the proposed changes in
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 1   comments received October 1, 2003.   No

 2   additional comments have been received.

 3             This is the fourth time for the Air

 4   Quality Council to consider these

 5   amendments and staff requests that the

 6   Council recommend the proposed rules as

 7   amended to the Board for adoption.

 8                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Any

 9   questions from the Council of Ms. Donovan?

10                  MR. WILSON:   I have a question. 

11   I was trying to find in here where we use

12   the term "products of combustion".   Do we

13   only use it in the definition of "open

14   burning"?

15                  MS. DONOVAN:   I don't know the

16   answer to that, Joel.   It's not something

17   that I looked at in these revisions.   If

18   you can't find it somewhere else, I'm

19   guessing that's the only place it is.

20                  MR. WILSON:   It just seems odd to

21   me, but I'm okay with that.

22                  MR. TERRILL:   And there is no

23   telling where that came from, either. 

24   That's been in the rule for twenty-five

25   years.
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 1                  MS. MYERS:   So you're thinking

 2   that it needs to be products of incomplete

 3   combustion?

 4                  MR. WILSON:   It just seems

 5   excessive wording to me.

 6                  MS. MYERS:   Are there any other

 7   questions or comments from the public?

 8                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   I've got

 9   three that have indicated they want to

10   speak at this time.   Lester Branch from

11   Guthrie Fire Department.

12                  MR. BRANCH:   Morning, my name is

13   Lester Branch.   I'm the Fire Marshal at

14   Guthrie Fire Department.   In Guthrie, we

15   have, in the past, allowed burning, of tree

16   trimmings, brush trimmings, and some

17   leaves.   In the recent past, there has been

18   some confusion om whether that was legal or

19   not and so we stopped it for a period of

20   time.   

21             I encourage that you adopt this, I

22   think this rule will allow us to continue

23   to do what we did in the past, which was

24   burn yard waste and through your

25   definition.   So, thank you.
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 1                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Jerry

 2   Gammill from Guthrie Public Schools.

 3                  MR. GAMMILL:   I just want to

 4   concur with everything that he said.   We

 5   just want to be able to burn as we did

 6   before.   The provisions that have been

 7   added in here really do take care of

 8   everything that we were concerned about. 

 9   Thank you.

10                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   And Bob

11   Kellogg, from Shipley and Kellogg.

12                  MR. KELLOGG:   Thank you.   Members

13   of the Council, ladies and gentlemen, these

14   words are all clear and I'm not going to

15   suggest that you make any more clear.   The

16   -- I want to applaud the DEQ for the work

17   on these rules for open burning of brush. 

18   I've long been concerned that a brush

19   burning ban was too broad.   And because of

20   my age, I know how they began back in the

21   days of Jack Gallian and the Fire Marshal. 

22   I remember all of those things.   And I know

23   that the DEQ has a difficult task with

24   overcoming federal inertia.   But these

25   rules are good.   They'll have little, if
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 1   any, impact on air quality.   They'll have a

 2   great savings on waste disposal and the DEQ

 3   is doing a good job with these and they

 4   should go forward.   Thank you, very much.

 5                  MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH:   Any other

 6   comments from the public?   Questions from

 7   the Council?

 8                  MS. MYERS:   If there is no

 9   further comments or questions, I would

10   entertain a motion, please.

11                  MR. MARTIN:   I move approval of

12   the new change in the policy.

13                  MR. BRANECKY:   With the changes

14   proposed today by DEQ?

15                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.

16                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion.   Do

17   we have a second?

18                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'll second.

19                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion and

20   a second.   Would you call roll, please,

21   Myrna.

22                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Rose.

23                  MS. ROSE:   Yes.

24                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Martin.

25                  MR. MARTIN:   Yes.
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 1                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

 2                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

 3                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

 4                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

 5                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

 6                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

 7                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

 8                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

 9                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Treeman.

10                  MR. TREEMAN:   Yes.

11                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

12                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

13                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

14                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.

15

16                    (END OF PROCEEDINGS)
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